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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
document, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this document.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & FHBE

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 recorded total
turnover of approximately HK$31.4 million, which was a decrease of
approximately HK$15.5 million compared with the last corresponding
year. It was due to a record of proceeds from trading of securities
of approximately HK$2.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2017, compared with approximately HK$38.0 million for the previous
year, representing a decrease of approximately HK$35.8 million.
Moreover, there were no income recorded in commission income
from precious metals brokerage and spot trading profits on precious
metals contracts for the year ended 31 December 2017 and a total
of approximately HK$1.5 million were recorded in those segments for
the year ended 31 December 2016. On 2 August 2017, a subsidiary
of the Group namely 2 B %815, 5= B & 5 B BR A A (transliterated
as Chongging Sheng Yu Hong Jia International Trading Company
Limited) was formed and established new segment of sales of
parallel imported motor vehicles and provision of relevant agency
services in the PRC. For the year ended 31 December 2017, sales of
motor vehicles and agency fee income were recorded approximately
HK$19.2 million and approximately HK$2.4 million respectively.
There was no information recorded for the year ended 31 December
2016 since the subsidiary was formed in August 2017.

For proprietary stock trading, the Group recorded an unrealized loss
of approximately HK$34.8 million and realized loss of approximately
HK$3.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.

For electronic student card business, as there has been some
technical issues that the Group needs to resolve on the change of
navigating chips of electronic cards and devices of the school safety
network, the segment of the trading of electronic student cards and
school safety products recorded a revenue of approximately HK$5.3
million and incurred an operating loss of approximately HK$16.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The said segment
recorded revenue and operating loss of approximately HK$5.2 million
and approximately HK$113.4 million respectively for the year ended
31 December 2016.

Due to the tightened policy of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) Government on regulating the precious metals trading and
brokerage business in the PRC, the Group did not have revenue
incurred for the year ended 31 December 2017 in these principal
activities and approximately HK$1.5 million was recorded for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

As per the Company’s announcement dated 13 June 2017, our
PRC legal adviser received the execution judgement issued by
Intermediate People’s Court (the “Court”) of Suining City, Sichuan
Province in relation to the compulsory execution application for
the repayment of the refundable earnest money. According to
the execution judgement, the Court terminated the compulsory
execution of repayment of the refundable earnest money from Yang
Shunhong and the Court concluded that Yang Shunhong owns no
executable assets after he pledged his shares of RE) 2 T # 8K
BRAT] (transliterated as Mingin Quantum New Energy Co. Ltd.)
(“Mingin Quantum”) to B2EFEHEA ORI BR AR (transliterated
as First China Securities Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.)
(“Shenzhen First China”) as collateral. As at the date of this report, all
the issued share capital of Mingin Quantum are pledged to Shenzhen
First China. In this respect, the Company has sought legal opinion
from its PRC legal adviser on the execution judgment. The Company
may apply to the Court for resuming the execution procedure
anytime if any executable assets of Yang Shunhong are identified.

In June 2017, we resolved to change the name of the Company
to Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited EE&ZTE£BHR A 7
which would better reflect the current status of the Group’s business
development and its direction of future development.

On 4 July 2017, the Company and ZIIEZE AR HER A A
(transliterated as Shenzhen Ecobeauty Co., Ltd) (“Joint Venture
Partner”), a limited liability company established in the PRC whose
shares are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange under stock code
000010, entered into the joint venture agreement to establish the
joint venture company, B A 5A = BIRE S AR A A (transliterated
as Chongaging Sheng Yu Hong Jia International Trading Company
Limited) (“Sheng Yu Hong Jia”), in Chongaing City, PRC which is
90% owned by the Company and 10% owned by the Joint Venture
Partner.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH 4 & B E

On 2 August 2017, Sheng Yu Hong Jia was formed in Chongging
City, PRC and is licensed to carry out the businesses of sales of
motor vehicles, motor vehicle parts and motor vehicle products;
motor vehicles rental (excluding motor vehicles finance leasing,
passenger vehicles transportation rental and road passenger
and freight transport operations); international freight forwarding
services; import and export businesses; motor vehicles information
consultancy (excluding restricted items); motor vehicles repair and
maintenance (for business items that require approval, shall only be
carried out after obtain approvals) and agency for motor vehicles
registration, transfer and scrap procedures for 50 years from 2
August 2017 until 1 August 2067.

Following the formation of Sheng Yu Hong Jia, the Company had
made an initial capital contribution of RMB90,000,000 and the Joint
Venture Partner had made its capital contributions to Sheng Yu
Hong Jia of RMB10,000,000 pursuant to the joint venture agreement
respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recorded the revenue of sales of motor vehicles approximately
HK$19.2 million and an agency fee income approximately HK$2.4
million.

On 9 November 2017, the board of directors of Sheng Yu Hong Jia
had resolved to increase the registered capital of Sheng Yu Hong
Jia from RMB100,000,000 to RMB150,000,000. The Joint Venture
Partner had indicated that it would forgo its right to subscribe
for and contribute to its entitled 10% of the increased registered
capital of Sheng Yu Hong Jia in the sum of RMB5,000,000 as a
result the Company intends to make the proposed additional capital
contribution and subscribe for the entire 100% of the increased
registered capital of RMB50,000,000 of Sheng Yu Hong Jia.

The Directors consider that the proposed additional capital
contribution will further increase the Company’s equity interest in
Sheng Yu Hong Jia from 90% to 93.33% and the additional capital
contribution of RMB50,000,000 by the Company to Sheng Yu Hong
Jia will significantly strengthen the capital base of Sheng Yu Hong
Jia and will increase its trading capacity and competitiveness in
the parallel import motor vehicle market of the PRC and is in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of the Group

The Group recorded total turnover of approximately HK$31.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017 as compared to total turnover
of approximately HK$46.9 million for the previous year, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$15.5 million or approximately
33.0%. The sharp decrease of turnover was primarily due to the
decrease in sale proceeds from trading of securities which listed in
Hong Kong.

The Group recorded a loss for the year amounted to approximately
HK$136.3 million, compared with a loss of approximately HK$244.9
million for the corresponding year. The loss of the year encompassed
the realized losses and unrealized fair value losses on securities
trading of approximately HK$3.5 million and approximately HK$34.8
million respectively, compared with realized losses and unrealized fair
value losses on securities trading of approximately HK$71.7 million
and HK$30.1 million respectively for the previous year.

The loss also took in the fair value change in contingent
consideration receivables, as the profit guarantee of acquisition of
a subsidiary in 2014 could not be reached and the decrease in the
Company’s share price during the year, for approximately HK$13.4
million for the year under review.

Due to the continuing tightened policy of the PRC Government on
regulating the precious metals trading and brokerage business in
the PRC, the business operation of the Group has not resumed. The
impairment of investment in one associate of approximately HK$31.8
million, no impairment needed for such associate in the previous
year.

The loss also included the impairment of refundable earnest money
paid for proposed business acquisition in 2015 of approximately
HK$23.1 million for the year under review.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH 4 & B E

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s current assets as at 31 December 2017 amounted
to approximately HK$374.0 million compared with approximately
HK$398.2 million as at 31 December 2016 and the liquidity of the
Group, as demonstrated by the current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was 5.39 times, compared with 15.59 times for previous
year. Among them, the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss were approximately HK$34.3 million (2016: approximately
HK$64.0 million). The financial assets invested include the equity
securities listed in Hong Kong and unlisted investment funds lodged
in PRC. As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and bank
balances were approximately HK$180.7 million (2016: approximately
HK$255.0 million) of which approximately HK$9.8 million (2016:
approximately HK$14.1 million) were held on behalf of clients in trust
and segregated accounts.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total borrowing amounted to
approximately HK$54.4 million (2016: approximately HK$8.6 million),
of which, approximately HK$49.9 million (2016: approximately
HK$2.0 million) was repayable within one year. The bank borrowings
were secured by charges over the Group’s land and buildings as well
as corporate guarantee issued by the Company. The borrowing from
related party was unsecured. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31
December 2017 (calculated by the total liabilities of approximately
HK$72.7 million over equity attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$322.0 million) is 22.6% (2016: 6.8%).
Taking into account of the amount of liquid assets in hand, the Broad
is of the view that the Group has sufficient financial resources for
future development of the existing business of the Group and other
business when investment opportunities arise.

The equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$322.0 million as at 31 December 2017,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$140.9 million, or
30.4% from that of 31 December 2016. The decrease was mainly
due to loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company.

The Group manages the foreign exchange exposure arising from
its normal course of business activities and investments in foreign
operations by funding its local operations and investments through
cash flow generated from business transaction locally. As at the end
of the year, the Group did not have any material un-hedged foreign
exchange exposure of interest rate mismatch.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Capital structure
As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s issued share capital was
6,498,958,120 shares of HK$0.01 each.

Precious metals spot trading and brokerage

No commission income was received during the year under
review, as compared to approximately HK$1.5 million for previous
year. It was mainly attributable to the tightened policy of the PRC
Government on regulating the precious metals trading and brokerage
business in the PRC in which the Group operated. It reported an
operating loss of approximately HK$0.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2017, as compared to an operating loss of approximately
HK$2.0 million for the previous year.

Stock information and research services

This segment recorded approximately HK$0.8 million of revenue for
the year under review compared with same revenue for previous
year. It reported an operating loss of approximately HK$28.0 million,
included an impairment of refundable earnest money paid for Yang
Shunhong for approximately HK$24.0 million for the year (2016: loss
of approximately HK6.9 million).

Trading of electronic student cards and school safety
products

It recorded approximately HK$5.3 million of revenue for the year
under review compared with approximately HK$5.2 million for the
same period last year. It is principally engaged in development and
exploration of various telecommunication technologies in the PRC, in
particular, electronic student card for school safety network. For the
year under review, the navigating chips of electronic student cards
and devices needed to change to operate in coordination with the
BeiDou System, a system preferred by the PRC Government. The
Group is studying to modify the devices in order to deal with the
power consumption issues. It led to a slowdown in the production of
electronic student cards and devices and incurred an operating loss
of approximately HK$16.2 million for the year, compared with loss of
approximately HK$113.4 million for the last corresponding period.

Brokerage and securities margin financing service

Total revenue of this segment recorded approximately HK$1.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, compared with
approximately HK$1.4 million for the same period last year. This
segment loss reached approximately HK$3.3 million while loss of
approximately HK$4.1 million for the last corresponding period.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & FHBE

Trading and principal investments

The securities trading recorded a realized loss of approximately
HK$3.5 million while it recorded a trading loss of approximately
HK$71.7 million in the previous year. It recorded a fair value
losses of approximately HK$34.8 million for the year under review
compared with fair value losses of approximately HK$30.1 million
of the previous year. This assignment showed an operating loss of
approximately HK$44.7 million for the year 31 December 2017 and it
recorded a loss of approximately HK$102.6 million last year.

Sales of motor vehicles and provision of agency services

This segment commenced business from a newly company
established in August 2017. It recorded approximately HK$21.6
million of revenue for the year under review. It is principally engaged
in sales of motor vehicles business in PRC. Due to lying in the
development stage, it recorded an operating profit of approximately
HK$2.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment of the Group with a carrying amount
of approximately HK$29.2 million (2016: approximately HK$30.8
million) were pledged for banking facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2016: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES/FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS

On 2 August 2017, Sheng Yu Hong Jia was formed in Chongging
City, PRC which is 90% owned by the Company and 10% owned by
the Joint Venture Partner, & JIIZE BB £ A% 15 B PR A &) (transliterated
as Shenzhen Ecobeauty Co., Ltd).

Following the formation of Sheng Yu Hong Jia, the Company had
made an initial capital contribution of RMB90,000,000 and %3l
EBERERMABER AT (transliterated as Shenzhen Ecobeauty
Co., Ltd) had made its capital contributions to Sheng Yu Hong
Jia of RMB10,000,000 pursuant to the joint venture agreement
respectively.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

On 9 November 2017, the board of directors of Sheng Yu Hong Jia
had resolved to increase the registered capital of Sheng Yu Hong Jia
from RMB100,000,000 to RMB150,000,000 and Sheng Yu Hong Jia
had obtained approval for the increase of its registered capital from
RMB100,000,000 to RMB150,000,000 from the relevant government
authority of the PRC. The additional capital of RMB50,000,000
required by Sheng Yu Hong Jia was determined by the board of
directors of Sheng Yu Hong Jia after due consideration of the
market of imported motor vehicles in the PRC in general, the market
segment targeted by Sheng Yu Hong Jia mentioned in the circular
of the Company dated 19 March 2018 and the needs of Sheng Yu
Hong Jia to increase its capital base in order to negotiate for better
banking finance arrangements and other financing modes such as
financial leasing.

FIIEEAERERM AR A A (transliterated as Shenzhen Ecobeauty
Co., Ltd) had indicated that it would forgo its right to subscribe
for and contribute to its entitled 10% of the increased registered
capital of Sheng Yu Hong Jia in the sum of RMB5,000,000 as a
result the Company intends to make the proposed additional capital
contribution and subscribe for the entire 100% of the increased
registered capital of RMB50,000,000 of Sheng Yu Hong Jia.

The Directors consider that the proposed additional capital
contribution will further increase the Company’s equity interest in
Sheng Yu Hong Jia from 90% to 93.33% and the additional capital
contribution of RMB50,000,000 by the Company to Sheng Yu Hong
Jia will significantly strengthen the capital base of Sheng Yu Hong
Jia and will increase its trading capacity and competitiveness in
the parallel import motor vehicle market of the PRC and is in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

For more details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 4 July 2017, 17 October 2017 and 29 December 2017 and
the Company’s circular dated 19 March 2018.

Save as disclosed, there was no other material acquisition/disposal
which would have been required to be disclosed under the GEM
Listing Rules for the year under review and the Group has no
concrete plans for other material investments.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & & B E

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a workforce of 85
employees (2016: 80). The total staff costs, including directors’
emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$20.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: approximately HK$17.9
million). The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on an
annual basis and commensurate with the industry pay level. The
remuneration package includes basic salary, provident fund, medical
benefits and discretionary bonus. The Group has also adopted a new
share option scheme as an added incentive for its employees.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group will continue to focus on improving
the performance of our current businesses, such as (i) provision
of securities and futures contracts trading services in Hong Kong,
(i) trading and sales of parallel imported vehicles and provision of
relevant agency services in the PRC, (i) research, exploration and
development of the student safety network project and the electronic
student card in the PRC, (iv) provision of stock information and
research services through the internet network in the PRC, and (v)
trading and principal investments in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The stock markets in the PRC and Hong Kong had seen significant
gained and picked up in 2017 and the Group is optimistic about
the prospect of the stock markets in the PRC and Hong Kong and
will closely monitor the changes in these stock markets in order to
improve performance of the Group in this segment of the Group’s
businesses.

Sheng Yu Hong Jia, the subsidiary of the Group, was formed in
Chongaging City because of its strategic location at the terminus of
the Chongging-Xinjiang-Europe International Railway which offers an
alternative route of transporting goods from Europe into the PRC by
land in addition to the traditional route of transporting goods from
Europe into the PRC by sea as well as the favourable policies and
incentives offered by the Chongqging City authorities to import and
export businesses under the Silkk Road Economic Belt and the 21st-
century Maritime Silk Road, better known as the One Belt and One
Road Initiative (“OBOR”) proposed by the central government of the
PRC.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Sheng Yu Hong Jia is located in the China (Chongging) Pilot Free
Trade Zone which offers a series of staggered subsidies policies.
Moreover, Sheng Yu Hong Jia is also the only business within the
motor vehicle import and export category under the Chongging City
Open-up Inland and Highland Development Trade Fair Project under
which subsidies are offered by government authorities of various
levels.

Moreover, under the “3 + N” Scheme, meaning “Government +
State Owned Foreign Trade Groups + Banks” scheme run by the
Chongging City government as an incentive to promote import and
export trade under OBOR, when Sheng Yu Hong Jia opens letter of
credit to overseas manufacturer to import motor vehicles with banks
participating the scheme, the banks will provide discount subsidies
to Sheng Yu Hong Jia, hence, further reducing its cost.

We expect Sheng Yu Hong Jia can provide an opportunity for the
Group to expand its business in the sales of motor vehicles in the
PRC market which is the largest motor vehicles market in the world
and there is still a huge growth potential for the market given the
relatively lower vehicle per capita compared with other developed
markets of the world such as the United States. The Company
believes that Sheng Yu Hong Jia can expand the income base of the
Group and diversify its business portfolio.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & FHBE

The Group will continue to develop other businesses and look for
opportunities to expand the income sources in order to enhance the
revenue of the Group.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, Board
of Directors, our staff and business partners for their continuous
support and commitment.

By order of the Board
Wang Jiawei

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2018
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EERERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jiawei, aged 31, has been an executive Director, a
member of nomination committee of the Company since May
2013. Mr. Wang was also appointed as the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company and a member of remuneration
committee of the Company with effect from 22 September 2015.
He is a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Wang
obtained a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics at Imperial College
London in the United Kingdom in 2009 and a Master of Science in
Finance at City University London in the United Kingdom in 2010.
From October 2010 to July 2011, he was a market analyst of the
investment department in Shenzhen Shouguan Investment Co.,
Limited in the PRC. Since August 2011, Mr. Wang has been a
manager of Sinofortune Securities Limited (formerly known as First
China Securities Limited), a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Wang is also
the director of Victor Creation Global Limited from August 2014 and
Elpis Capital from September 2014, and non-executive director of
Elpis Capital Limited from September 2014.

Ms. Lai Yuk Mui, aged 48, has been an executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2015 and she was appointed as a member
of remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 22
September 2015. She is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Ms. Lai received her Bachelor of Arts degree in Financial
Services from Edinburgh Napier University in Scotland. Ms. Lai
joined the Company in 14 July 2008 as the executive secretary and
has been promoted to the Head of Personnel and Administration
Department of the Company since 13 February 2009.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EEREREBAEERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Runtong, aged 44, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 2 Feb 2010. He is a chairman and
general manager of EIEFEF7HA ORYI)BR QA (transliterated
as First China Securities Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd) and a
general manager of FIIERFELEEABR AT (transliterated
as Shenzhen Sky Picture Culture Communications Company
Limited), both are the wholly-own subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Liu
obtained Bachelor Degree from Department of Chinese of Nankai
University in 1996. He also holds qualifications of economist,
registered securities investment consulting analyst and registered
insurance broker issued by various professional organizations in
China. For the past 19 years, Mr. Liu has held different positions in
various financial media institutions and financial services institutions
in Mainland China. During his tenure from 1998 to 2002 as a
responsible person for marketing the newspaper “Securities Times”,
he participated in establishing the “Panorama Network” (www.
p5w.net), a well-known securities website in China and acted as
its major responsible person. In 2000, he acted as consultant in
establishing and operating the program “Securities Times” produced
by “China Central Television”. From 2002 to 2007, he served as
“Program Supervisor” in “Shenzhen Stock Exchange Shenzhen
Securities Information Co., Ltd”, where he participated in setting up
and managing “Trading Day”, the 24-hour PRC program regarding
securities. Because of his outstanding performance, he was elected
as one of the “Ten Best Staff” of the “Shenzhen Stock Exchange”
in 2004. From 2013 to July 2015, Mr. Liu served Convoy China
Financial Services Holding Ltd as a Vice President. He was the
executive director of Shenzhen Qianhai CONVOY Asset Management
Co., Ltd. from 2013 to July 2015. Mr. Liu has found Shenzhen
Qianhai Yinyan Asset Management Co., Ltd. since 2014 and serves
as the executive director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EERSREEBANERERF

Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. (“Mr. Jim Rogers”), aged 75, was
appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company and a senior
consultant of JFXYIFTE & ZEBIRE R mZ 5F 0 AR A A (transliterated
as Shenzhen Qianhai First China International Commodities
Exchange Centre Limited) on 22 September 2014, Mr. Jim Rogers
is an author, financial commentator, adventurer, and successful
international investor. He has been frequently featured in Time, The
Washington Post, The New York Times, Barron’s, Forbes, Fortune,
The Wall Street Journal, The Financial Times, The Business Times,
The Straits Times and many media outlets worldwide. He has also
appeared as a regular commentator and columnist in various media
and has been a professor at Columbia University. After attending
Yale and Oxford University, Mr. Jim Rogers cofounded the Quantum
Fund, a global-investment partnership. Mr. Jim Rogers also served
as a full professor of finance at the Columbia University Graduate
School of Business, and, in 1989 and 1990, as the moderator of
WCBS'’s ‘The Dreyfus Roundtable’ and FNN’s ‘The Profit Motive with
Jim Rogers’. Mr. Jim Rogers is the chairman of Beeland Interests,
Inc., an adviser of Genagro Limited, a director of Spanish Mountain
Gold Ltd. (a company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange (SPA.TSX.
V)), an independent director of Geo Energy Resources Limited (a
company listed on the Singapore Exchange (SGX: RE4)), a director
of PJSC PhosAgro (a company listed on the Moscow Exchange and
the London Stock Exchange (PHOR)), an non-executive director of
Crusader Resources Limited (a company listed on The Australian
Securities Exchange (ASX: CAS)), an independent director of Virtus
Global Dividend and Income Fund Inc. (a company listed on the New
York Stock Exchange (NYSE: ZTR)), a member of advisory board
of Euro Sun Mining Inc. (a company listed on the Toronto Stock
Exchange (TSX: ESM)) and a director of JSC AgroGard-Finance.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EEREREBAEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Zhang Benzheng, aged 78, has been an independent
nonexecutive Director of the Company since 30 September 2008
and he was appointed as a chairman of nomination committee and
a member of audit committee of the Company in 2008. He was also
appointed as a member and chairman of remuneration committee
of the Company in 2008 and 2011 respectively. Professor Zhang
graduated with a Bachelor Degree from the Faculty of Engineering
Physics of the Tsinghua University in 1965. He was a visiting
scholar in the Brookhaven National Laboratory of USA and the
Stuttgart University of Germany. He was the vice director of the
Tsinghua University R&D department and the general manager of
Tsinghua University Science and Technology Corporation. During
the period from 1999 to 2002, he held various senior positions in
two companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely
Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited and Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan
Group Corporation. He was the chairman and legal representative
of Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan Group Corporation and president
of Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited before he left these companies in
2002. He then joined Tsinghua Unisplendour (Group) Corporation
in 2002 and was its president until 2004. Professor Zhang was
the general vice president and secretary of the Beijing Non-
Governmental Science & Technology Entrepreneurs Association.
With his remarkable business leadership as well as exploratory
initiatives, Professor Zhang had made tremendous contribution to
the companies he worked for. He has not only gained compliments
from the society at large, but has also won a series of honors.
In 1997, Professor Zhang received the national prize of “The
Third Term Science and Technology Light Award for Outstanding
Scientific and Technological Entrepreneur”. In 2000, he won the
“Hong Kong Bauhinia Cup Outstanding Entrepreneur Award” and
the “Entrepreneurial Talent” award issued by the Beijing Non-
Governmental Science and Technology Entrepreneurs Association.
In 2002, he was selected as the first lot of “Zhongguan Village
Outstanding Entrepreneurs”. Professor Zhang is currently the Chief
Consultant of AEEARK (b7 ) B EHEERER QA (transliterated
as Ronghui Future (Beijing) Technology Development Co., Ltd.).
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EERSREEBANERERF

Mr. Li Jianxing, aged 60, has been an independent non-executive
Director, a member of audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company since 28 March 2011. He
was also appointed as chairman of audit committee of the Company
with effect from 22 September 2015. Mr. Li graduated from Shanghai
Maritime University with a Bachelor Degree in accounting. He also
received a Master Degree in Business Administration from Canisius
College of Buffalo. Mr. Li has over 30-year experience working in
the field of accounting and corporate finance and has substantia
experience in management in various listed companies, investment
business, investor relations and project management. He was the
senior manager of both the investment department and finance
department of China Everbright Holdings Co., Ltd from April 1998
to June 2000. He served as the Chief Finance Officer for Intermost
Corporation from June 2000 to 2003. From April 2003 to May 2004,
he was a General Manager of Investor Relations in China Resources
Power Holdings Co., Ltd. He has been a director of Concord
Investment Holdings Limited since 2004.
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Professor Chen Shu Wen, aged 63, has been an independent
non-executive Director, a member of audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company since
23 September 2011. Professor Chen graduated from Ed1bBf4E K
£ (Dongbei University of Finance and Economics) with a Bachelor
Degree in Economics and obtained a Master Degree and a PhD
in Economics from FH#AE (Jilin University). He is a qualified
PRC lawyer currently practising at EZE XA ZAEHFT (Liaoning
Tianhe Law Firm). Professor Chen has substantial management
and leadership experience serving in the PRC government. He
commenced his career as the deputy county chief of the Benxi
Manchu Autonomous County, Liaoning Province, PRC, in 1992 and
became the director (EF) of REMLHEBH K EZE S (Benxi
City Commission for Restructuring the Economic Systems) from
1995. He was the vice director general (BIE 1) of AVE 1 ¥ I
EES5A1EZBE (Benxi Foreign Trade & Economic Cooperation
Committee) from 1998 until 2001. From 2001 to 2009, Professor
Chen was the professor and the tutor for doctorate students at K&
BT RKEEIE AR (Faculty of Management and Economics of Dalian
University of Technology). From 2010 to 2014, he was the dean at
KB T RENHERELEELT (School of Public Administration
and Law of Dalian University of Technology). From 2010 to now,
Professor Chen has been the professor and the tutor for doctorate
students at KEE T KB QN HEFRHEZEERT (School of Public
Administration and Law of Dalian University of Technology). He is
currently an independent non-executive director of %815 # 4% A% 15
BBR A 7B (Weigiao Textile Company Limited) (Hong Kong Stock
Exchange Stock Code: 2698) and an independent director of & F
EEB/EMHBMR AT (Zhangzidao Group Co. Ltd.) (Shenzhen Stock
Exchange Stock Code: 002069).
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated on 24 May 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Company Law of Cayman lIslands.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on pages 72 to 73.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend nor
transfer of any amount to reserves for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution as dividends
to its shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association and a statutory solvency test. In
accordance with Article 137 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company or from any reserves set aside from profits which the
Directors determine to be no longer needed. With the sanction of
an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared or paid out
of share premium account. Accordingly, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution was HK$nil as at 31 December 2017.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lai Yuk Mui

Non-executive Directors
Liu Runtong
James Beeland Rogers Jr.

Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Benzheng

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors retiring by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting are Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. and
Professor Zhang Benzheng. Both directors are being eligible for re-
election and will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The remaining Directors shall continue to
hold office.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(@) Long positions in shares of the Company
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(a) RELERHBZHEFR

Number of shares

B8 E
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Interests Interests Interests Total shareholding
EoEET
Name of Directors EElH 18 A HEZS RIS AT ] =174
Wang Jiawei TRE 202,043,628 - - 202,043,628 3.11%
Lai Yuk Mui HEH 2,780,127 - - 2,780,127 0.04%
Liu Runtong 21 R 2,646,000 - - 2,646,000 0.04%
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(b)

Long positions in underlying shares of the Company (b) MREFLATHEEABRMBZEE
Share option scheme of the Company XL EREE
The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 17 KABRZEE—F+ZA+tBEMN
December 2001 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) has expired ZBERESE ([EBRESEHER
on 16 December 2011. The Company adopted a new share —E——F T AT NEER ARAF
option scheme on its annual general meeting held on 21 June ERZE—ZF AT —BRITZK
2012 (the “New Share Option Scheme”) which complies with RBFRE FRAFEGEM TR A
Chapter 23 of GEM Listing Rules. Fo3E 2 AT EE AR R B ([FIE AR RE AT
) e
The following table discloses the details of the share options TERBEEENTHREHRNEBEEZE_Z
held by the Directors and chief executive to subscribe for —t+tFE+ZA=+—HLEFEMFEEN
shares of the Company during the year ended 31 December REARARG 2 BIREFS
2017:
Number of share options
BRENE
Outstanding Cancelled/ Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised lapsed asat Exercise
Name of 1 January during during during 31 December price
Directors Date of grant 2017 the year the year the year 2017 Option period (HK$)
Rog-t& Rog-t%
-A-8 +-A=+-8 R
EEHE RiHAH AT ERRHT R FhE/ %N HATE  BRERR (#&7)
Lai Yuk M 1310412010 3,186,158 3,186,158 13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 0419
BEiE “3-S5MAT=A “E-ZFRATZA--5-FENA+CH
Liu Runtong 13042010 31,861,575 - - - 31861575 1304/2010- 12/04/2020 0419
Bt ZE-FEMATEA “E-FEMATZA-Z3-TEMA+CA
Zheng Benzheng  13/04/2010 2,124,105 - - - 2124105 13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 0419
RAL ZE2-SFMAT=A “E-TEMATZA--F-FEMA+CA
JamesBeeland  9/11/2016 20,000,000 - - - 20000000 9/11/2016 - 8/11/2026 0.150
Rogers Jr.
James Beeland ZZ-~ET-ANA ZE-AET-AAB-ZEZRET-ANA
Rogers Jr.
JamesBecland  16/10/2015 20,000,000 - - - 20000000  16/10/2015 - 16/10/2025 0238
Rogers Jr.
James Beeland ZE-RETATAE “E-15tA+~E-Z5-RE1+A+AR
Rogers Jr.
James Becland  22/09/2014 20,000,000 - - S 20000000 2209/2014 - 21/09/2024 0518
Rogers Jr.
James Beeland “2-MEAAZTZR “R-MEAAZTZB-ZR-MFAACT-R
Rogers Jr.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or chief executive to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate and neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor
any of their respective spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year.
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(c) Short positions in underlying shares of the Company
No short positions of directors and chief executives in the
underlying shares of the equity derivatives of the Company and
its associated corporations were recorded in the register or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
So far as is known to any Directors of the Company, as at 31
December 2017, the following persons (not being a Director or a
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

(@) Long positions in shares of the Company
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EFRITHRBHEMENRERF R E BB
EEZ ERRADTEE R 2 ARG
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(a) MELTRBZHR

Approximate
Number of percentage of

Name of shareholders Capacity shares shareholding
B ¥ g

% 58 8% 2 54 % 5 8 B Bk

Wang Wenming and Chen Dongjin (Note 1) Beneficial owners 595,328,957 9.16%

T XA RERELE (M) E=mfEEA

Zhu Wei Beneficial owners 350,004,000 5.39%

K E=mEA A

Note: Bt 5

(1) Ms. Chen Dongjin held 145,116,650 shares of the Company. Ms. Chen
Dongijin is the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming who held 450,212,307
shares of the Company. As such, they were deemed to be collectively
interested in 595,328,957 shares of the Company.

& PR L3 & 4 5145,116,6500% AN 2 7] i
HeRLELLATNHALEEZRB M
SRR S A 3 450,212,307 B A A B (D ©
B bt - 1% % 4 4% 78 L A 15 55595,328,957 %
AR BB -
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(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company (b) MNEATHEKRGBZHEE

Approximate
Number of percentage of

Name of shareholders Capacity shares shareholding
BEREE 51 BB #MLAOKIRE L
Wang Wenming and Chen Dongjin (Note 2) Beneficial owners 11,682,577 0.18%
F 3R R PR A (fFEE2) EnlEAA
Note: B 5E
@) Pursuant to the Old Share Option Scheme, Mr. Wang Wenming was @) RIFEBRETE R —ZFFMOA+=
granted share options on 13 April 2010, the number of shares underlying H- T XL ERERAIRE1,682,577R K
which was adjusted on 15 June 2010, to subscribe for 11,682,577 shares NAIRMG 2 BEIRE (HBAROBEE R _F—
of the Company. Ms. Chen Dongjin is the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming TFEXNATHRBELARE) BREEZLT
so they were deemed to be collectively interested in the share options to EXHEEZERS WESHERALRES
subscribe for 11,682,577 shares of the Company. AR EE11,682,577 % AR B i 1p 2 B AR 4 -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the bBrEXEEEN RZE—CEF+ A
Company had not been notified of any other person (other —+—H BEZEEREXEER
than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section TR AR ND REH 2
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions mEARB] —EZESIN ARAFLT
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above) who RBA EREMATRARFRG HAE
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying Bl EETRAEZAREESR X
shares of the Company and was required to be recorded in HE KA FE3B6KFE 2 ELM e
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO SORE KR EE S ERH AR
and/or was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the AR ERER T EREEBFEREAML B
issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances RERERSGREZ B BEITRAGTHESR
at general meetings of any other members of the Group. 5%3k bA EHERS o
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE
COMPANY

Share Option Schemes of the Company

The Company has adopted a share option scheme under which the
Directors or employees of the Company or its subsidiaries or certain
other persons may be granted share options to subscribe for shares
of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the
Scheme.

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 17 December
2001 has expired on 16 December 2011. The Company adopted a
new share option scheme approved by shareholders on its annual
general meeting held on 21 June 2012 which complies with Chapter
23 of GEM Listing Rules.

(1) Summary of the Scheme
(i) Purpose of the scheme
The purpose of the scheme is to provide the people and
the parties working for the interest of the Group with an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interest with the interest of the Group and
thereby providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interest of the Group.

(i) Participants of the scheme

Pursuant to the scheme, the Company may grant share
options to (i) employees of the Company (whether fulltime
or part-time) or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies; (i) Directors (whether executive Directors,
non-executive Directors or independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies; (iii) suppliers of goods and/or
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies; and (iv) professionals engaged
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies.
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(i)

(v)

(v)

Total number of shares available for issue under the
schemes

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of shares
available for issue under the New Share Option Scheme
was 649,895,812 shares, representing 10% of the total
issued share capital.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under any schemes of the Company
(or its subsidiary) if this will result in such limit being
exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted pursuant to the scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including the
Pre-IPO Share Option Plan) to each participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant of the options
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue, save for those share options already
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Plan.

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the scheme at any time during a period of not more
than ten years to be notified by the Board of Directors
of the Company (the “Board”) to each participant which
period of time shall commence on the date on which an
offer of the grant of an option is accepted or deemed
to have been accepted in accordance with the scheme
and expire on the last day of such period as determined
by the Board. There is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.
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(V)

(vii)

(Viii)

Payment on acceptance by option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the participant to the Company
on acceptance of the option offer as consideration for the
grant and received by the Company within 14 days from
the offer date or within such offer period of time as may
be determined by the Board pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price per share of the Company under the
scheme is determined by the Board and notified to each
participant and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer, which must be a day on which the
Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities (“Trading Day”), (i) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five Trading Days immediately preceding the date of offer,
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Remaining life of the scheme

The Old Share Option Scheme has expired on 16
December 2011. The New Share Option Scheme will
remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 21
June 2012 (save that the Company, by ordinary resolution
in general meeting or Board may at any time terminate
the operation of the New Share Option Scheme) and
in such event, no further options will be offered but the
provisions of the Old Share Option Scheme and the New
Share Option Scheme shall in all other respects remain in
full force and effect.

(i)

(vii)

(Viii)
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(2) Details of share options granted by the Company (2) ZALGHRUEBREZFHIE
On 5 September 2007, 13 April 2010, 22 September 2014, 16 RZZEELFNARA ZE—FF
October 2015 and 9 November 2016, options to subscribe for WMA+=H - ZFT—HNMFNLA=Z+=
32,400,000 shares, 84,000,000 shares, 30,000,000 shares, B —Z2—RAF+A+"BR=-Z
20,000,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares of the Company —RE+-—ANBEEERAE
respectively were granted to the Directors and certain NAEH TR’ AR E32,400,000
employees of the Company. As at 31 December 2017, details % ~ 84,000,000/ - 30,000,0000% -
of the outstanding options were as follows: 20,000,0008% }20,000,0000% 75 A &
R zERE-R-_T—+F+=A
=t+—H HARITEEREZFBEL
T
Number of share options
BRERE
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised lapsed as at
1 January during during during 31 December Exercise
Date of grant 2017 the year the year the year 2017  Option period price
RoF-t£ RoF-t%
-A-H EMESE/ T-A=+-8
RiHEH i A 17 ERRY ERTE %% HETE BRERR TR
(Note 1) (Note 1) (HKS)
(Bi3E1) (W) (#7)
05/09/2007 4,248 210 - - (4,248,210) - 05/09/2007 - 04/09/2017 0.215
“EZ+ENREA (Note 2) “ETLENRTAE-E—+ENEMEA
E)
18/04/2010 82,840,095 - - - 82,840,095  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 0.419
—5-TENAT=H “3-ZENA+=RE-E-FENATCR
22/09/2014 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000  22/09/2014 - 21/09/2024 0.518
ZZ-MEARZTZH ZE-PMEARZTZREZT-MEAA-T-A
16/10/2015 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000  16/10/2015 - 15/10/2025 0.238
ZT-R§+A+AA “Z-RF+A+AREZE-RETATRA
09/11/2016 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000  09/11/2016 - 08/11/2026 0.150
ZE-"E+-FAA “E-RE+-AABEZE-NET-ANA
Notes: B 5

(1) Pursuant to the Old Share Option Scheme, 84,000,000 shares of share
options were granted by the Company on 13 April 2010 and were

adjusted on 15 June 2010.

(2 The share options have not been exercised during the option period,

therefore they have been lapsed on 5 September 2017.
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DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as described above and in
Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate and
neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor any of their
respective spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
There was no transactions, arrangements or contract of significance,
save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

LITIGATION

Arbitration Application Filed by Shenzhen First China
Concerning the Repayment of Refundable Earnest Money
According to the announcements of the Company dated 30 January
2015, 3 February 2015, 29 May 2015, 17 September 2015, 1
December 2015, 16 February 2016, 10 June 2016, 13 June 2017,
2015 and 2016 annual reports, Shenzhen First China filed an
arbitration application to South China International Economic and
Trade Arbitration Commission (“SCIA”) against Mr. Yang Shunhong
concerning the repayment of the refundable earnest money of
RMB20,000,000 together with the interest of RMB997,260 and a
penalty of RMB18,800,000 payable to Shenzhen First China.
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The final judgement of the arbitration application has been handed
down by SCIA on 3 June 2016 that (a) Yang Shunhong shall repay
the refundable earnest money of RMB20,000,000 to Shenzhen
First China with penalty at the rate of 24% per annum accrued
since 31 August 2015 until the date of repayment of the refundable
earnest money as damages to Shenzhen First China within 15
days upon the date of final judgment, (b) Yang Shunhong shall bear
the responsibility over the legal costs of RMB500,000 incurred by
Shenzhen First China in the Arbitration and the costs of Arbitration of
RMB343,482 within 15 days upon the date of final judgment, (c) the
final judgment is final and be legally binding.

As Shenzhen First China neither received the repayment of the
refundable earnest money of RMB20,000,000, penalty nor legal
costs from Yang Shunhong, our PRC legal adviser has applied to
the Intermediate People’s Court in Suining City, Sichuan Province,
China (the “Court”) on behalf of Shenzhen First China to include
Yang Shunhong in the list of restricted high consumption, the list of
dishonest persons and the list of restricted departures. On 6 June
2017, the PRC legal adviser of the Company received the execution
judgement from the Court in relation to the compulsory execution
application for the repayment of the refundable earnest money.
According to the execution judgement, the Court terminated the
compulsory execution of repayment of the refundable earnest money
from Yang Shunhong and the Court concluded that Yang Shunhong
owns no executable assets after he pledged his shares of R# & 1
¥eEIR AR A A (transliterated as Mingin Quantum New Energy Co.
Ltd.) (“Mingin Quantum”) to Shenzhen First China as collateral. As at
the date of this report, all the issued share capital of Mingin Quantum
are pledged to Shenzhen First China. In this respect, the Company
has sought legal opinion from its PRC legal adviser on the execution
judgment. The Company may apply to the Court for resuming the
execution procedure anytime if any executable assets of Yang
Shunhong are identified.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchase and sales for the attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

—the largest supplier 71%
—five largest suppliers in aggregate 95%
Sales

—the largest customer 53%
—five largest customers in aggregate 93%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
company’s share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 5.48 TO 5.67 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company’s Directors have complied with such
code of conduct and the required standard of dealings.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and a detailed corporate governance report is
set out on pages 35 to 46 of this annual report.

The compliance officer of the Company is Ms. Lai Yuk Mui whose
biographical details are set out on page 15 of this annual report.
Ms. Woo Man Yi is the company secretary of the Company.
She is an associate member of both The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, United Kingdom.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was
or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit
of the Directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 have been audited by CHENG & CHENG
LIMITED. CHENG & CHENG LIMITED will retire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution for reappointment of CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jiawei
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group, including providing and setting the Group’s
directions and strategies in the interests of the Group. It believes in
good corporate governance and corporate governance practices
that promote investor confidence, development of the Group, and
transparency while having the long term interest of the Group and
enhancement of shareholders’ value as the ultimate objectives. It has
adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the
“Corporate Governance Code”). The Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code,
except for the following deviation:

CODE PROVISION A.2.1

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set
out in writing.

Mr. Wang Jiawei is the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. In view of Mr. Wang has extensive experience in project
management and securities investments and is responsible for the
overall corporate strategies, planning and business development
of the Company. Under the supervision by the Board which is
comprised of three independent non-executive Directors and two
non-executive Directors, which represent more than half of the
Board, the interests of the shareholders of the Company will be
adequately and fairly represented.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the standard of dealings required of directors, the
Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquires of all Directors, they confirmed that
they have complied with the Company’s code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the year.

EXERHRE

EEELRENR
EXeRARERERASE 2 AL
BREHRMEFIEFTAAKREND ZERT A
KR - EEERERFEREAKRFREE
ERERAAREREEREL HBAKEE
BERRREMNEAR FAKERSAKES
AERENEREABRREEZERAER &
EECHRMCGEMLEMRBIM R+ RAERER
STRI(TREERST RN FrEz <7 BIMRS - &
AREETRRE AT ZEA TR
HE T 51 i B BR O

SFRMESLEEA2.115
SFAMEXEA2AGREERAITRAE 2 A
GBREEES YR EH— ARBFE  THEHE
THREBEHR ZEHNBRES TREBEEATIINE
5 & -

ITREAERARRBIERTHRAE -ER
TRERHEBEELEFRETHELEER
BOABARFZERBOERE RENEK
AR -EFEREERGBRETE +&/F
MZUBYFATESLRMAFNTES
EHEBTN ARABRRNAEESESRED
REL B AFER-

EEETHEHRKS
RRAREHEF - EELABTE RNBHEE
FHETBHR P 2BRTER B BIERER
RETHNGEM M B #5.48E5.67FT
HRTRE - CRMBEEERFEEHRE -
EEYERATENTACETARREEE
HETEFRR G ZRTER -

ERSEEEERAT | ZT-LFFR

35



36

CoRrPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEXERME

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Comprising of two executive and five non-executive directors
(including three independent non-executive directors), the present
board has an appropriate composition of directors. The Company
has received from each of the independent non-executive directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules and is in the opinion that all independent non-
executive directors are independent. The present board is composed
of more than one-third of independent non-executive directors.

The present board of directors consists of:

Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lai Yuk Mui (Executive Director)

Liu Runtong (Non-executive Director)

James Beeland Rogers Jr. (Non-executive Director)
Zhang Benzheng (Independent Non-executive Director)
Li Jianxing (Independent Non-executive Director)

Chen Shu Wen (Independent Non-executive Director)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 15 to
20 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” to this annual report, the Directors have
no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with one another.

The Board is mandated to determine and review strategic objectives,
appoint and supervise senior management, approve quarterly,
interim and annual reports, and review the principal risks of the
Group’s business to ensure that these risks are within manageable
limits. It is also mandated to approve any substantial investment,
acquisition or disposal by the Company. Major corporate matters
that are delegated to the management include the execution of
business strategies and initiatives approved by the Board and the
preparation of quarterly, interim and annual reports for the Board’s
approval.
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Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the
board and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

There were four board meetings during the year. The attendance of
Directors at the board meetings was as follows:

EXERHRE

EFEREEEZEE BEUURER

EXZCREEAENERARR YHFA
BEBESI NEBARAERMITERR T
MY - 2REERZTEARR BN EIEH
RIE °

EXCRAREMEBEESTH EF P MK
REH RBLEE NS ERERRER-
EARRS (BHIRKEPRFsBGRE) W
BER ZEEERARAHEBERLES
H-AHETEFERR HERBALLT
AR2ENEEMNBERRTEER

ERRBTNAEEEE R - EEEES
CETLE TR

Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEEERE

Members e EREITERRE
Wang Jiawei FTEE 4/4
Lai Yuk Mui R 116 4/4
Liu Runtong 2 R 4/4
James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 2/4
Zhang Benzheng sk AN IE 4/4
Li Jianxing AT 4/4
Chen Shu Wen BeR 45 32 4/4
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There were two general meetings during the year. The attendance of
Directors at the general meetings was as follows:

FAHBITRMARRAE

ZHEBRNT

CEENBRAE

Attendance number
of meeting attended/
Number of meeting
during term of service

HEHEERRE
Members =] ERNERITERREY
Wang Jiawei FRE 2/2
Lai Yuk Mui RE G 2/2
Liu Runtong 218 0/2
James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 0/2
Zhang Benzheng SRAIE 0/2
Li Jianxing FRIT 0/2
Chen Shu Wen PR 48 X 0/2

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

During the year, Ms. Lai Yuk Mui has attended training courses
conducted by professional parties. The attended director has
provided the Company with her respective training records pursuant
to the Corporate Governance Code. All directors were provided with
reading materials on relevant rules and regulatory updates.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
specific written terms of reference. The present Remuneration
Committee consists of a majority of independent non-executive
directors.
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As at year end date, the present Remuneration Committee consisted
of five directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Ms.
Lai Yuk Mui, Mr. Li Jianxing and Professor Chen Shu Wen. Three
out of the five directors are independent non-executive directors.
Professor Zhang Benzheng, being an independent non-executive
director, is the chairman of the committee. The Remuneration
Committee’s role and function includes making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the establishment of
formal and transparent procedures for developing policy on such
remuneration. It also has the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive directors and
senior management.

The Company’s remuneration policies are determined on the basis of
the contributions of staff and directors. Long-term incentive schemes
for staff and directors include share options and cash bonuses.

The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management (other than the Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2017 by band is set out as follows:
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Number of individuals

Remuneration band (in HK$) FesE(#Erx) A&
Below 1,000,000 1,000,000 2
The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year and HHZE @R FAERIT—AZH HKE

the attendance of its members was as follows:

ZHFERET

Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service
HESHRRY

£ P BITERRE

Members 23=]

Zhang Benzheng SRR IE
Wang Jiawel FTEE
Lai Yuk Mui X
Li Jianxing ZEAT
Chen Shu Wen B f8if 32

1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee’s work includes
conducting a review over the Company’s policy and structure for
remuneration.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with
specific written terms of reference. As at year end date, Nomination
Committee consisted of four directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng,
Mr. Wang Jiawei, Mr. Li Jianxing and Professor Chen Shu Wen.
Three out of the four directors are independent non-executive
directors. Professor Zhang Benzheng, being an independent non-
executive director, is the chairman of the committee. Thus the
present Committee consists a majority of independent non-executive
directors. The Nomination Committee’s role and function includes,
but is not limited to, reviewing the structure, size, composition
and diversity (including but not limited to skills, knowledge and
experience, gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience) of the board of directors on a regular basis
and making recommendations regarding any proposed changes;
identifying and recommending individuals suitably qualified to
become board members; and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year and
the attendance of its members was as follows:
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Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service
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Members B8

Zhang Benzheng SRR IE
Wang Jiawel T=E
Li Jianxing FREIT
Chen Shu Wen Bk 151 2

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1



CoRPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

On the nomination process, the Nomination Committee reviews
the suggested candidates for directorship having regard to the
candidates’ reputation and the specific skills or expertise that
these candidates can contribute to the Company in the light of the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience) of the board
of directors. Only candidates who have integrity and can provide
specific contributions to the Company thereby enhancing the value
of the Company are considered for nomination to the board of
directors by the Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee’s work includes
reviewing the structure, size, independence, composition and
diversity (including but not limited to skills, knowledge and
experience, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
or professional experience) of the Board of Directors and made
recommendations thereon.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with specific
written terms of reference. As at 31 December 2017, the Audit
Committee consisted of three independent non-executive directors,
Mr. Li Jianxing, Professor Zhang Benzheng and Mr. Chen Shu Wen.
Mr. Li Jianxing, being an independent non-executive director, is the
chairman of the Committee. The Audit Committee’s role and function
includes making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor;
review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards; develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-audit services;
monitor the integrity of financial statements, annual reports and
accounts, half-yearly and quarterly reports of the Company, and
review significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;
review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems; and review the Group’s financial and
accounting policies, procedures and practices.
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EEXEERME

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
pursuant to the relevant provisions contained in the Corporate
Governance Code And Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules and was of the opinion that
such statements had complied with applicable accounting standards
and that adequate disclosures had been made in respect thereof.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year and the
attendance of its members was as follows:

EZEE D IRIBEGEM TR+ R FT
HOETATARDEE ARE 2B BIFE
HEHAKBEHE T —tF+=-A=1+—H
HFEZHREVERE TRABZSHEF
AEAEEN YERLIEL RAIEE-

il

% HAK

p=I113

ERZZBERFARBRITRAARE

ZHERMT

\

Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HESHERE
Members 5= ] ERERITEHERREY
Li Jianxing ZEAT 5/5
Zhang Benzheng KA IE 5/5
Chen Shu Wen BeR 158 32 3/5

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the accounts and the
reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out on pages 64 to
71.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 were audited
by Cheng & Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board
that Cheng & Cheng Limited be reappointed as the auditors of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration paid to
the auditors, CHENG & CHENG LIMITED in respect of audit services
and non-audit services amounted to approximately HK$470,000 and
HK$150,000 respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board requires management to establish and maintain sound and
effective system of internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. The Board should conduct a
review of risk management and internal control system of the Group
at least annually, covering the material financial, operational and
compliance controls.

Risk management

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach
to identify, assess and manage different types of risks. At the
first line of defense, business units are responsible for identifying,
assessing and monitoring risk associated with each business or
deal. The management, as the second line of defense, defines rule
sets and models, provides technical support, develops new system
and oversees portfolio management. It ensures risks are within
acceptable range and that the first line of defense is effective. As the
final line of defense, the internal control consultants assist the Audit
Committee to review the first and second lines of defenses.

With the assistance of the internal control consultants, a risk
register with risk rating and risk owners were compiled by taking
into account for continuous risk assessment purpose. Risk owners
are required to take mitigating actions to address the identified risks
and such actions are integrated in the day-to-day activities and
their effectiveness is closely monitored. During the year, the risk
register has been tabled for discussion and assessed the ratings
by key personnel and management, by considering the likelihood
and impact of each identified risk. A written risk assessment report
with the identified key risks, evaluation of related risk and relevant
mitigating actions have been reported to the Audit Committee and
reviewed by the Board. The written report facilitates the Board in
considering the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks,
the Group’s ability in responding to changes in its business and the
external environment, as well as management’s ongoing monitoring
of risks and of the internal control systems.
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EXERHE

Risk management and internal controls

The Group emphasises the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s key
risk exposures. The Group’s system of internal control is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.
The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and shareholders’ interests. The Group is committed to the
identification, evaluating and management of risks associated with
its business activities through ongoing assessment of a risk register,
by considering the likelihood and impact of each identified risk.
The Group has implemented an effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound management system and periodic review of the Group’s
performance by the Audit Committee and the Board. The Board has
conducted review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems, by considering written reports prepared by
internal control consultants to the Audit Committee.

Review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2017,
covering the material financial, operational and compliance controls,
which are considered effective and adequate.

Audit Committee has annually reviewed the adequacy of resources,

qualifications and experience, training and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the price of the shares of the
Company or their trading volume and decides whether the relevant
information is considered inside information and needs to be
disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules
17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Inside Information
Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive Directors have
responsibility for approving certain announcements and/or circulars
to be issued by the Company under powers delegated by the Board
from time to time.

The Company has put in place on handling and dissemination of
inside information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to
place any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time
for the market to price the listed securities of the Company with the
latest available information. The Company has appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information. Dissemination of inside information of the Company
shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms. Woo Man Yi. The
Company Secretary assists the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that Board policy and procedures
are followed. She has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update her skills and knowledge in 2017.
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EXERHE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles and Associations of the
Company, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at general meeting of the
Company by sending the same to the Company at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong ten days before general
meeting.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office. For the avoidance of doubt,
shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be)
to the Company’s head office and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SociaL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE SCOPE, MATERIALITY AND REPORTING PERIOD
OF THIS REPORT

This is the Environmental, Social and Governance report (the “ESG
Report”) of Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known
as First China Financial Network Holdings Limited, collectively
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”). The ESG report is issued
in accordance with Appendix 20 “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” and its “comply or explain” provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report covers the overall
performance, risks, strategies, measures and commitment in four
areas, namely, quality of workplace environment, environmental
protection, operating practice and community involvement of the
Group’s business operations in Hong Kong and the PRC for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (the “Reporting Period”).

During the Reporting Period, the Group was principally engaged
in the: (i) provision of the precious metals spot trading and
brokerage services in the PRC, (i) provision of securities and futures
contracts trading services in Hong Kong, (i) trading and principal
investments in the PRC and Hong Kong, (iv) research, exploration
and development of the student safety network project and the
electronic student card in the PRC, (v) provision of stock information
and research services through the internet network in the PRC, and
(vi) sales of motor vehicles and provision of agency services in the
PRC. Such businesses were mainly operated in Mainland China, and
sales of motor vehicles business started in the second half of 2017.
During the Reporting Period, the businesses did not have a material
influence on the overall environmental and social performance of
the Group, and the Group is reviewing relevant policies. Apart from
certain aforementioned operations, the principal office in Hong Kong
was also responsible for the compliance with relevant rules and
regulations of the GEM of the Stock Exchange and Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC”).

Upon materiality assessment, the ESG Report shall include
operations of the Group’s major subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong
Kong office. All information and data disclosed herein are from
internal documents and statistics.

For information about the Group’s corporate governance structure,
please refer to page 35 to 46 of the annual report.
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By HERERBE

STAKEHOLDER OPINION

We welcome opinions on the Group’'s approaches on the
environmental, social, and governance aspects upon reading the
ESG Report. Please share with us via:

Address: 16/F, CMA Building, 64-66 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong

Phone: (852) 2297 9900

Fax: (852) 2865 3888

Email: info@sinofortune.hk

MISSION AND VISION

We are an integrated financial service and student safety network
provider in Hong Kong and the PRC, offering a comprehensive
platform of financing, brokerage, financial information and wealth
planning services; whilst devoting to the research, development
and exploration of the student safety network project and parallel
imported motor vehicles market.

With the lack of investment information products and far-from-
sophisticated market in the PRC, medium and small investors
have voracious demand for such products. We are dedicated to
minimizing information asymmetry and promoting investor education
through provision of useful information service; improving market
environment with introduction of market competition in terms of
products and services, with a view to safeguarding medium and
small investors’ interests and becoming a quality integrated financial
service provider.

We value communication with investors and shareholders, clients,
employees, business partners and suppliers, community and other
stakeholders while balancing their respective interests and fostering
a sustainable development.
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We are committed to:

Investors and
shareholders:

Employees:

Clients:

Business partners

and suppliers:

Community:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SociaL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Complying with relevant regulations (e.g.
GEM Listing Rules and Securities and
Futures Ordinance etc.)

Disclosing latest information in due course

Reinforcing corporate governance and risk
control

Focusing on improving operating efficiency
and financial growth, creating stable returns

Providing safe workplace

Respecting all employees and ensuring fair
treatment

Supporting career growth and providing
internal training

Assuming product and service responsibility

Identifying client needs and improving
product and service quality

Respecting clients’ privacy and protecting
their interests

Maintaining good internal control and
eradicating corruption

Forging partnership to grow together

Setting up stringent procurement system to
contain risk

Giving back to society and promoting self-
reliance

Raising awareness of environmental
protection and helping the needy, nurturing
virtue and values

Devoting to developing new products for
convenience of society
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RE HERERBRRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT

1.

EMISSIONS

The Group was primarily engaged in financial services where
no industrial production process was involved during the
Reporting Period; therefore, no direct emission of exhaust and
greenhouse gas, wastewater, land pollutants, hazardous waste
and non-hazardous waste were recorded. We incorporate
environmental consideration in our daily office operation,
including more effective use of resources to reduce waste.
We hope that our internal environmental protection measures
can reduce the negative impact of our business operation on
environment and indirect carbon emission.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incident of non-
compliance with local relevant environmental laws and
regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas, emissions,
discharge into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste that had a significant impact on the
Group. The Group confirmed that during the Reporting Period,
our business operation was not subjected to any punishment
by respective governmental authorities due to violation of the
above laws and regulations.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Company and its various subsidiaries strictly comply with
relevant local laws and regulations on environmental protection,
set internal guidelines and measures for this purpose, or work
in line with the rules of the office buildings, in order to achieve
energy saving and consumption reduction, minimizing negative
environmental impact of our business operation.
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GREEN OFFICE CULTURE

We review the operation of our business regularly. For instance,
we take necessary improvement measures for effective use of
water, electricity, paper and other office resources, reduce or
stop the use of materials that cause wastage of environment.
During the Reporting Period, the following measures are
implemented in the course of our businesses:

- Use electronic documents and recycle paper to cut paper
consumption;

- Use telephone conferencing system to reduce business
trips;

- Lower electricity consumption by making use of natural
light and LED lighting system which has energy saving
efficiency;

- Limit the use of air-conditioning to lower electricity
consumption;

We often review the effectiveness of these measures and
make adjustments according to our operation to improve the
efficiency of the use of resources.

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Despite that the Group’s major operations has no significant
impact on the environment and natural resources, we, as
a responsible corporate, are committed to minimizing such
negative impact, and assess environmental risks induced by
our operations, in order to formulate relevant measures.

WASTE DISPOSAL

The waste produced by our operation includes paper, plastic,
office supplies and kitchen waste. Our employees will gather
and dispose of the wastes properly. Meanwhile, we will donate
computers and other electronic devices to charity organizations
to minimize electronic solid waste. We hope to reduce waste to
minimize bad influence on environment.
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SOCIETY
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

1.

Employment

Employment Policies

The Group prepared its internal employment policies and
rules pursuant to the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong,
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and
other existing laws and regulations. We inform our employees
about the Group’s employment policies and other information
through our employee manuals, other internal documents
and communication methods. We want to make sure that
our employees understand their rights and responsibilities,
safeguarding the rights of both parties.

The Group determines employees’ salary, benefits and
promotion based upon their job nature, experience, work
performance, financial results and market condition. The
Group guarantees fair treatment of employees and prevent
discrimination based on gender, race, religion, age, marital and
family status, disability or any other grounds.

In accordance with the above-mentioned legal requirements
and industry standards, we offer employees basic salary,
benefits and rights (e.g. MPF, social insurance, directors and
officers liability insurance, medical benefits, legal and extra
annual leave, sick leave, allowance and severance pay).

Employee Care

We attach importance to employees care and communication.
Various communication channels between the management
and employees have been established to take their
communication to the next level and improve operational
efficiency. We also organize activities (e.g. staff banquet) to
improve the communication among employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not been involved
in any incident of non-compliance with laws and regulations
relating to employment that had a significant impact on the
Group.
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EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND SAFETY

Improve Safety Awareness

The Group is devoted to protecting our employees from safety
risks by providing an appropriate workplace. References to
industry practices and regulations were made to formulate
work safety guidelines which have been strictly enforced.

Employees are constantly reminded of the importance of work
health and safety. The Group provides relevant information on
crime prevention and emergency response and coordinates
with other organizations or property management company of
the office building to join regular fire drills.

Physical and Mental Health

We care for our employees, especially for their mental health.
We have been encouraging our employees to achieve work-
life balance. We hold different activities to promote esprit
de corps, relieve stress and create a harmonious working
environment. Meanwhile, we provide our employees with
information about health and safety, aiming to improve their
health consciousness.

During the Reporting Period, there was no significant incident
of safety and work-related injury. There was no non-compliance
with health and safety laws and regulations that had an impact
on the Group relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Human resources are key assets to corporate success. We
believe that the support from employees is the foundation
of the Group’s core value and competitiveness. Therefore,
we offer employees comprehensive on-the-job training and
platforms for them to explore their potential and achieve
success.

The Group provides professional trainings to improve quality,
qualification and skills of the employees for their growth.
We encourage our staff to discuss with management and
supervisors on their promotion and career objectives, as well
as join business-related training programs.
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During the Reporting Period, professional, training and
development programs arranged by the Group included but not
limited to:

o knowledge of financial service

° knowledge of information technology

o trainings on customer service/product knowledge
° regulatory seminars or guidance

° training on anti-corruption

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group’s internal rules and labour system are made in strict
adherence to the Employment Ordinance and the Regulation
on Labour Security Supervision, the Labour law of the People’s
Republic of China, Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China and Labour Standards Law of the State
Council of the People’s Republic of China and international
standards. All recruitment process and promotion activities
are closely monitored under the Group’s human resources
management scheme to prevent child labour, forced labour, or
any discrimination by race, religion, age or disability. The Group
will conduct investigations, punishment or dismissal of relevant
employees immediately when any non-compliance is being
discovered. If necessary, the Group will further improve the
labour mechanism against illegal behaviors.

During the Reporting Period, there was no child or forced
labour in the Group’s operations, nor any discriminating
incidents involving race, religion, age or disability.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group is principally engaged in finance-related business.
By business nature and needs, the Company did not hire major
suppliers for provision of products, raw materials and services during
the Reporting Period, nor did it take part in any negotiation between
its corporate or institutional clients and their suppliers. Generally,
we did not enter into any long-term or bulk purchase agreements
for stationery, paper, computers and other office stationery and
equipment.

One of our subsidiaries purchases motherboards, modules, display
modules, batteries, cases and other products from its suppliers.
The suppliers are mainly from Chongqging, Chengdu, Shenzhen,
Dongguan and other places.

We promote fair and open competition, aiming to develop long-
term relationship based on mutual trust. Therefore, the Company
keep a close eye on procurement made by our staff and forbid
any practices that are against business ethics. The Company will
closely communicate with its subsidiaries and urge them to handle
relationship with suppliers and business partners in avoidance of
transfer of interests or exploitation of suppliers.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Premium products and services can help build a strong corporate
reputation. We are dedicated to maintaining high level service and
product quality through internal control. Our products and services
include:

1. Securities brokerage and margin lending;

2. Stock information and research analysis;

3.  Corporate finance solutions;

4.  Asset management;

5.  Student safety network project and electronic student cards;

6. Sales of motor vehicles and provision of agency services.
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RE - HERERHRSE

Privacy Policies

Given its business nature, the Group handles a huge amount of
personal data or corporate information. The Group attaches high
importance to safeguarding clients’ interests and privacy, with
relevant guidelines and handbook prepared to regulate employees’
handling of personal data of clients. We sporadically arrange training
to raise the awareness of privacy protection. The Group will maintain
and review all client communication channels to obtain client
feedback, handle complaints timely and conduct inspection so as to
improve client service system.

Publicity and Labels

In terms of the promotion of our products and services, we will
strictly comply with Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Interim Measures for the Administration of Internet Advertising
and other applicable laws and regulations on advertising and labels.
Our publicity should be an accurate of reflection of the quality and
effectiveness of the Group’s products and services. We want to help
clients understand what to expect through our publicity and labels.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impacts on the
Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to our products and services provided.

ANTI-CORRUPTION
The Group strictly complies with applicable anti-corruption laws and
moral standards.

The Group is determined to eliminate any corruption. The Board
adopts a zero-tolerance policy regarding corruption and fraud.
Such standard has been outlined in our operation and employment
policies. The Group proactively maintains a good corporate
governance and risk control to protect interests of stakeholders.

Employees are advised to comply with the anti-corruption and anti-
fraud guidelines of the ICAC; whilst relevant training and information
is regularly provided to raise their awareness. We urge employees to
maintain high standard of professional conduct and strict follow the
laws of Hong Kong and the PRC.
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Whistleblowing Policy

The Group educates all employees on anti-corruption awareness
and encourages them to report any corruption or fraud. We promptly
conduct inspection and take necessary measures while protecting
the identity of the whistleblower. During the Reporting Period, we
had not identified any non-compliance in relation to corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, which had a
significant impact on the Group.

COMMUNITY

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group in committed to becoming a responsible corporate
citizen. We offer appropriate resources to people in need in the
community. We hope that our employees will make a contribution to
communities through various activities and spread their love.

Apart from the above-mentioned activities, the Group will help
different institutions by donations. The Group will try to cooperate
with more institutions and give back to society.
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RE - HERERHRSE

DATA SUMMARY BiRME
Mainland
Hong Kong China
TE oh B X bE
Environment Electricity consumption kWh 45,990 82,5423
RE HEESE TR
Electricity consumption (CO2 equivalent) kg 36,3322 48,7994
AEg——fiiREgs Tx
Water consumption Tonne N/A i 2513
FkE 1A
Fuel consumption (Car) Litre 18,217° 1,599°
EaE(RE) DF
Flight mileage km 25,860 20,227
AT ES NIEES
Employee Total employees Number 21 64
=] BT & ANE
By gender
=R
- male Number 10 36
-5 AE
— female 11 28
— &M%
Training Total training hours
| LN
— male Hour 22 N/A
-5 N N3 A
— female 59 N/A
— i A
1. Electricity consumption: According to electricity bills. REE REEEELHE-
2. The CO:2 equivalent of electricity consumption in Hong Kong: According to HK AFREEN —EltREE - RBEBEESEH  FH
Electric, CO:z (produced by fuel combustion) per unit of electricity (1 kWh) was BET (BTN ARERBMAIEEN =GR
0.79 kg. {EHR £0.79F 7 °
3. Electricity and water consumption of Mainland China: According to payment FEAEAEEREKE  REXEEEERER

notice of property management of office building.

4, The CO:2 equivalent of electricity consumption in Mainland China: According to
Calculation of Carbon Dioxide Emission and Data Checklist issued by the Climate
Change Bureau of the National Development and Reform Commission on 15
May 2016, CO= emission factor of provincial-level power grid in Guangdong was
0.5912 kg per kWh, the CO: (produced by fuel combustion) per unit of electricity
(1 kWh) was 0.5912 kg per kWh.

5. Fuel consumption: According to purchase volume of gasoline and diesel of
company vehicles in Hong Kong.
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CONTENT INDEX OF THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF EHEHAEXSERASE (RE-HER

THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED EQmEES]) &SI

Subject Areas

FEHIE

Content
M=

Section of the report

A EEE

A. Environment
IRIR
A1 Emissions

HRH

General Disclosure

— R R

A2 Use of Resources
BiRER

General Disclosure

— R R

A3 The Environment

and Natural
Resources
RERXAER

General Disclosure

— MR R

Information on the policies; and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRERSREREHN AKELHHNTES BF
LREEBRRYNELSOBRRMNETHRETARE
AREENHBEERRIINER -

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BHERER (BIREEER K REAMRME) BBEK -

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact
on the environment and natural resources.

BARBITABRBERRERENERZENBE -

Environmental Protection —
1. Emissions

RR—1. BERY

Environmental Protection —
2. Use of Resources

RIR—2. BREM

Environmental Protection —
3. The Environment and
Natural Resources

RBRR—3. RENMRKAER
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Subject Areas Content Section of the report

FEHE ks AR & EE

B. Social

HEHEHIE

Employment and Labour

Practices

EFERET =R

B1 Employment

1= 1%

General Disclosure Information on the policies; and compliance with  Employment and Labour
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant Practices — 1. Employment

— MR impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working RBEKRELETIEHR 1. EE
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BRAH AR B RET  TERS - R
#E - 2ol RIBAR DA B B A 15538 J 4@ A ) I 3R
RETFHETABEREZENHBEZRAINNE
Ko

B1.1

KPI Total workforce by gender, employment type, age Data Summary
group and geographical region

B4R B IR IR HERE
BRI EEEL - FiAR R E S D E B A

B1.2

KPI Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Data Summary
geographical region

B8R B IR IR HERE

SRR A B B R b B I B Rk K
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Content

R E

Section of the report

FRETH

B2 Health and Safety
RERZZ

General Disclosure

—RWE

B2.2
KPI

kg gve =t
B3 Development and
Training

R R

General Disclosure

— MR 5E

B4 Labour Standards
2 T %8|
General Disclosure

—RWE

Information on the policies; and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

FHERHEZETIEREMMERERLBELERE
MR RBTHRTABEAZENEBERLS
I E Kt o

Lost days due to work injury

AIEEARXIIFEBE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work and description
of training activities.

BRRTEEERT TERENAE R RENBRER
A A -

Information on the policies; and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

BB LE TSR GIS THEEK: RETHETAR
ERFENHEBERRRIINER -

Employment and Labour
Practices—2. Health and
Safety

BEMSTIESR -2 @EELE

Data Summary

BERE

Employment and Labour
Practices —3. Development
and Training

BRENSTESR -3 BREEF

Employment and Labour
Practices—4. Labour
Standards

BERRBIER -4 5THRE
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BRiE

Subject Areas

RIS

HEREREE

Content

R E

Section of the report

FRETH

Operating Practices

2EEY

B5 Supply Chain
Management
g

General Disclosure

— R R

B6 Product
Responsibility
EREE

General Disclosure

— AR I 5R

B7 Anti-corruption
R&S

General Disclosure

— AR I 5R

Policies on managing environmental and social risks
of the supply chain.

EEMHERNRE R AREER-

Information on the policies; and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

BRMRHEMMRENEZERELZE2 BE BEK
REEENMERENBEER: RETHETARE

A2 R BRI B R -

Information on the policies; and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

BRMILER BR MFERMARENBEE: RET
HBOTABERZENHEBERLBRONER -
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Content
=

Section of the report

FRETH

Community

iz

B8 Community
Investment
#HEHRSE

General Disclosure

— R R

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

FRANMHEBR2ERTREEMELETEMERE
EBEHEEELRMEHBEK-

Community — Community
Investment

tE-itREE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B\ EED IR

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Wmom g w M OF OB A N A

10/F., Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF

SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FIRST CHINA FINANCIAL NETWORK
HOLDINGS LIMITED)

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 72 to 203, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of refundable earnest money paid for proposed

business acquisition in previous year
(see note 25 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Key Audit Matter
FAREZEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B\ EED IR

FREZEE

REESNERHE BREZEFEAES
ERZRAHENGEAVBRRTREZNSE
H-ZERTHRCERMEZERE AV B R
KEEBABRRETRE MIASRLEES
HEBRRER -

RBEFERAEBWBMIATRENS
®iB{E
(RERA M mKRME25)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPHERSZ

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had recorded
a refundable earnest money of RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to HK$23,052,400) paid for the proposed
acquisition for the entire interest in RE)& F#
JRABRAAl (transliterated as Mingin Quantum New
Energy Co Ltd.) which was paid in January 2015
and was included in “prepayments, deposits and
other receivables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position (see note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements). As described in details in note
25, management determined to make a full impairment
of the said refundable earnest money during the year
ended 31 December 2017.
RZE-—RFET+ZA=+—0" BEEHEER_ZF
—IFE-AnEZWERYEFHERGRAANE
B AR RPN AR B S B & A R #20,000,0007T (48
% 723,052,4008 70 ) * Z A B AR A BB AR R IR E
ey (TR FRIE e REMBKFIE] (REAMHR
M FE25) - AT 25Tl EREEENEE
T—tFT_A=+—HALFERLARRERNES
fE AR BURE °

This was identified as a key audit matter given the
amount involved was significant and significant
management judgement was required in determining
whether impairment should be made.
HEBERERAEREAREAFESHNMESINTRE
ARRERBHZRIERERTEZEREEBZEAHEH-

We discussed with management the reasons for full
impairment recognised in the current year.

EFEEEEIWRAFERRTEREZER-

We checked to the relevant supporting documents
provided by management to understand the specific facts
and circumstances and assessed the reasonableness of
the full impairment recognised for the current year.
EEEREEBRANERERAH UTHRAREER
BERARGER R EFERABTERE 2SR

ERSEEEERAT | ZT-LFFR
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Impairment of associates
(see note 19 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Key Audit Matter
FRAEEZXEIE

BtE ABIRE
(RERA M mERME19)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HEEZPHEE S E

The Group owns 38% in FIIAI B EEBEERR
SH0AR AT (transliterated as Shenzhen Qianhai
First China International Commodities Exchange Centre
Limited) (“Qianhai First China”), an entity registered
in the People’s Republic of China. The investment
in the associate has been accounted for under the
equity method with carrying amount of HK$31,754,373
before impairment (2016: HK$39,523,791).
AEEBEAERI A EEEREEARRXSF LOBRAR
([ABEE]  —HRPEARENBEZLNHNER) 2
38%ME T o 2B N AR AR EF AR - R R E AT
BVBREIE /31,754,373 7T » ( ZZF—7X%F : 39,523,791
BIT) °

As explained in note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements, there was a suspension on the business

operation of the above-mentioned associate.

WERE BTSRRI FE19RTH - A ERR R B & R R
BB R o
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We discussed with management the reasons for full
impairment recognised in the current year.

EFHEEEIWRAFEERTBREIER-

We checked to the relevant supporting documents
provided by management to understand the specific facts
and circumstances and assessed the reasonableness of
the full impairment recognised for the current year.
EEREERBREHANEBERAXT UTHARBEER
/RLA&.:MEK@*EEE BBUREzEE -



Impairment of associates
(see note 19 of the consolidated financial statements)
(continued)

The Key Audit Matter
FAREZEIE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B I % B

BEATRE
(RERA M HRKRME19)
(&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZPHEESE

For the year ended 31 December 2017, management
decided to make the full impairment on the carrying
amount of the abovementioned taking into account
continuous suspension on the business operation of
the associate.
HE_Z—+HF+_A=+—-HILFE SERIZHE
RAZEBHEFE BRERAER FAREABEEDLE
HURE -

This was identified as a key audit matter given the
amount involved was significant and significant
management judgment was required in determining
whether impairment should be made.
HEEERAESBREASFTACANMESNERE
AMAERERBERERFTEEERB Z2ERHAG-

ERSEEEERAT | ZT-LFFR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

VAR R

RHMRAEREEMBRRRIENEE

BEENER SHERGAUBRRRETE
FE R PO HRRF 38R AR T G B (E ) E KB RR IR
ABMGEERE AHABRKRESEERNK
RS -BEEER BT ((FARR)®RE
VER BRI ZINRRERIEEME K -
BEETERARENATAEMEMBALER
FHAEEMEE -2 ERERSKFEOR
& BTRERER (BEEZEL) E1TNE
BHEX-ERERRAFER BRI -5
ARERAL P A R R S BR AR Bl IR A IR TR
HeMERNSERERAETEREMBR
REMEMFELAEERTE - A BAER
BR AT AR A K

a2y
[=Ray

ERE (FBERER) ETEZNBREY
BEEERTREHE R TRERRER -

EE L
=Isi :

o EBBIANEEfh M A BRRE Bk 8 AR 1 B B
EMBEBRRFEENBRRANEAR
WA RBMITERIEF AREELLAR
AMERBREMEENEZEE ES
BEEERMER - AR MEFRI LS K B
RoE EEER BRI HEE
KA BB H 2z £ - Btk K 58 3% 30 R AGF
i 28 2R ) B K 88 AR PRt 9 L B Bb B A
RMEFNBAFERRAWRAR S

AR R AZ AR R RO R R - A RFHE
MEZEF BEMNLIFYE BEEE

i
NEIEFIMNBEREERER -

o HEEEMRASFEERNREIERE
SR A AR EENN SR

ERSEEEERAT | ZT-LFFR

69



70

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B\ EED IR

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2018

Cheng Hong Cheung
Practising Certificate number P01802
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENT oF PRroFIT oR Loss AND OTHER CoMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EAaBEFEEREMEZEBRANER X

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
Note HK$ HK$
M 5 T T
Revenue W 25 5 29,186,397 8,896,415
Other income and loss, net HA e A R BB FE 7 (35,919,256) (91,656,382)
Changes in inventories of K8 2 &
finished good (17,821,020) (625,819)
Other direct costs HAth B A (228,682) (259,715)
Employee benefits expenses EERHHFX 10 (19,954,591) (17,854,403)
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #)% - #eS LR EITE
equipments 15 (5,380,884) (6,709,566)
Amortization of intangible assets B EEEH 16 - (17,362,183)
Impairment of refundable earnest MBEFERRFBWE
money paid for proposed I HrARENESRME
business acquisition in prior year (23,052,000) -
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 16 - (122,686,950)
Impairment of property, plant and Y2 s KR ERE
equipment 15 (966,460) -
Impairment loss of interests in REE R RIS REER
associates 19 (31,754,373) (1,028,594)
Finance costs & AR 8 (229,303) (289,184)
Other operating expenses HingE & A (13,259,019) (18,873,125)
Change in fair value of contingent FEWSEAREBE 2 AT EZ
consideration receivable 20 (13,441,448) 140,880
Share of loss of associates JEAGEEE N RES 1B 19 (6,028,114) (9,474,111)
Loss before income tax B FT 1S 4 A B 98 9 (138,848,753)  (277,782,737)
Income tax income S B A 13 2,545,494 32,879,188
Loss for the year FAEE (136,303,259)  (244,903,549)
Other comprehensive Ht2ElA  (EE) :

income/(loss):
ltems that may be reclassified to
profit or loss

HEAJEREFH HHE
Bz HE

Currency translation differences: HESE N Z5
— Group —% 6,300,738 (11,090,916)
— Associates i /NG| 2,837,778 (2,842,509)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMEEU A (EE)

for the year, net of tax Sk 9,138,516 (13,933,425)
Total comprehensive loss FATHEEERE

for the year (127,164,743) (258,836,974)
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENT oF ProFIT oR Loss AND OTHER CoMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EAEFEREMETEBWANERE R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—F—tF —E—RF
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 I 7T
Loss attributable to: FE{LES 1S
Owners of the Company RABHEER A 14 (136,497,133)  (244,075,407)
Non-controlling interests I 12 IR A 2w 193,874 (828,142)
(136,303,259) (244,903,549)
Total comprehensive loss FRESZEBEBREE:
for the year attribute to:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIE TSN (127,211,846)  (258,045,542)
Non-controlling interests FE 1 AR A 2 47,103 (791,432)
(127,164,743)  (258,836,974)
Loss per share attributable FEREATHEAAN
to owners of the Company fEiEEBIREE
for the year
Basic loss per share (HK cents) FREAREE (BWL) 14
From loss for the year FAEE (2.10) (3.76)
Diluted loss per share (HK cents) FR#EEE (O51) 14
From loss for the year FAEE (2.10) (3.76)

ERSEEEERAT | ZT-LFFR
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PosiTioN

REMBNKA SRR

As at 31 December 2017 HW=ZT—t&F+=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—t%F —E—RF
Note HK$ HK$
M =E BT BT
Non-current asset EREEE
Property, plant and equipments ER Ty 15 34,114,533 35,787,878
Intangible assets mEE 16 104,500 2
Statutory deposits and other assets EAFE L& K HE M EE 17 505,001 1,059,936
Interests in associates YR R/NEE] D e 19 - 34,944,709
Contingent consideration receivable  JE S AR (E 20 - 29,441,448
Rental and other deposit paid ENHEREMIZS 25 803,915 940,607
35,527,949 102,174,580
Current assets HEEE
Inventories FE 21 124,155,521 2,590,324
Trade receivables FEWE 5 5/ I8 22 9,424,160 14,550,089
Loans and receivables B K WK IE 23 597,960 33,530,283
Financial assets at fair value BATEAABSEZEHEE
through profit or loss 24 34,275,830 63,967,620
Prepayments, deposits and TER OB - e R H A EUEIR
other receivables 25 24,897,114 28,242,860
Amounts due from former Directors  JE UL AT T8 = 5118 26 = 331,419
Bank balances and cash WITHBR LIRS
— trust accounts —EFERP 27 9,765,651 14,075,403
Bank balances and cash SRITHGB MRS
— general accounts —— R 27 170,932,310 240,921,035
374,048,546 398,209,033
Total assets BEE 409,576,495 500,383,613
Current liabilities HREBE
Trade payables JERTE 5 308 28 7,567,101 14,817,698
Other payables and accruals Ho b e 308 & E AT RIA 29 7,401,511 2,168,841
Current income tax payable Bl EA FE S P15 H0 59,704 -
Borrowings EE 30 54,392,813 8,554,953
69,421,129 25,541,492
Net current assets MEEEERE 304,627,417 372,667,541
Total assets EEHERRHER
less current liabilities 340,155,366 474,842,121
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CoNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PosiTioN
mEMBRKASRE

As at 31 December 2017 R-ZT—tHF+-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—REF
Note HK$ HKS$
B 5 BT 7T
Non-current liabilities EREERE
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTISHAE 31 3,290,066 5,804,700
3,290,066 5,804,700
Net assets BEFE 336,865,300 469,037,421
Capital and reserves BAEREE
Share capital & 7 32 64,989,582 64,989,582
Share premium B0 5 (B 32 1,614,798,866  1,614,798,866
Other reserve H b 33 (16,000,000) -
Special reserve 15 B K % 33 4,778,740 4,778,740
Statutory reserve A TE 33 3,911,530 3,911,530
Translation reserve e 33 (9,181,374) (18,466,661)
Share-based compensation reserve %17 1& {1 34 30,554,498 30,383,874
Accumulated losses 3 (1,371,889,661) (1,237,573,985)
Equity attributable to owners of AATHH ABIEHER
the Company 321,962,181 462,821,946
Non-controlling interests FEIER 14,903,119 6,215,475
Total equity EREE 336,865,300 469,037,421
Wang Jiawei Lai Yuk Mui
TRE RES
Director Director
EZE BEF
ZESREBMERAT | —B-LFER
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CoNSsOLIDATED STATEMENTS oF CHANGES IN EauiTy
EEeRESH R X

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE—Z

—tFtZA=t—RALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATRENERE
Share-based Non-
Share Share Other Special Statutory C ion A lated controlling Total
capital premium Reserve reserve Reserve reserve Reserve losses Total interest equity
BE  RBEE  AREE  BHERE  EREE  ERBE ROGEREE  RHER S kSREE  EROE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B o B AT #Er L BT BT B B o
(Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 33) (Note 33) (Note 33) (Note 33) (Note 34)
(M) (MR (Hiss)  (Wiss)  (Miss)  (Hiis)
Balance as at 1 January 2016 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 - 4718740 3911530 (4496526) 34149275 (994422,010) 723709467 7006907 730,716,364
Loss for the year - - - - - - - (244,075,407)  (244,075,407) (828,142)  (244,908,549)
Other comprehensive loss - - - - - (13,970,135 - (13,970,135 36,710 (13,933,425)
Equity-settled share option arrangements - - - - - - 1,688,031 - 1,688,031 - 1,688,031
Reversal of share-based compensation reserve
upon the forfeiture of share option - - - - - - (4,530,000) - (4,530,000) - (4,530,000)
Transfer of share-based compensation reserve BREXIRERRNBERS
upon the lapse of share options - - - - - - (923,432) 923,432 - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2016 RIB-AFTZA=t-B2E4 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 - ATIBTA0 3911530  (18466,661) 30,383,874 (1237573985) 462,821,946 6215475 469,037 421
Balance as at 1 January 2017 RIZ-+E-A-HZEHR 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 - 4718740 3911530  (18466,661) 30,383,874 (1,237,573,985) 462,821,946 6215475 469,037,421
Loss for the year FRESR - - - - - - - (136,497,133) (136,497,133 193,674 (136,303,259)
Other comprehensive income Efh2ERA - - - - - 9,285,287 - - 9,285,287 (146,771) 9,138,516
Capital contribution from non-controling interest FERE - - - - - - - - - 11,959,200 11,959,200
Equity-settled share option arangements NRELE  BRER H - - - - - - 877,444 - 877,444 - 877,444
Shares retrieval from escrow arrangement W EER 52 K
(Note 20) - - (16,000,000) - - - - - (16,000,000) - (16,000,000)
Reversal of share-based contrioution reverse BREXURERRNBERS
upon the lapse of share option - - - - - - (706,820) 706,820 - - -
Deregistration of the subsidiary - - - - - - - - - (383) (383)
Transaction with non-controlling interest (Note 36) 5 (W3t3) - - - - - - - 1,474,637 1474637  (3,318,276) (1,843,639
Balance as at 31 December 2017 E—tEFZASt-AES 64,980,582 1,614,798,866 (16,000,000 4,778,740 39115530  (9,181,374) 30,554,498 (1,371,889,661) 321,962,181 14,903,119 336,865,300
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CoNsoOLIDATED STATEMENT oF CasH FLows
I%IT = Iﬁ, ﬁ JIL % %‘EC

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—T—tE A S
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 I 7 TT
Cash flows from CETHRMBRHELRR
operating activities
Loss before income tax BrETIS BRI ET 1B (138,848,753) (277,782,737)
Adjustments for: HTH BB
- Impairment loss on trade debts —B5EBRERSE 275,127 -
- Depreciation of property, — B RRETE
plant and equipment 5,380,884 6,709,566
- Loss on disposal of property, plant — &% %  #E K&
and equipment REFEEE 279,964 240,536
- Amortization of intangible assets —ﬂﬁiéﬁfiﬁﬁ - 17,362,183
— Impairment of property, — W BB R RERE
plant and equipment 966,460 -
— Impairment of intangible assets —\EEEERE - 122,686,950
— Impairment of interests in associates — R B & A B 25 2 B E 31,754,373 1,028,594
— Impairment of refundable earnest —FBEFERZERS
money paid for proposed WEEFTZ AR
business acquisition in prior year BES /JESZTE 23,052,000 -
— Written off of property, e/ ERE TN
plant and equipment - 497,136
— Change in fair value of contingent ~ —EURSK AR E > A FEE
consideration receivable 13,441,448 (140,880)
— Fair value losses on securities —-BHEBEEZATEEE
trading 34,756,990 30,108,514
— Share of loss of associates — (R E QA EE 6,028,114 9,474,111
— Reversal of share option expenses — [ B f% 1 £ 2k
due to the lapse of share options iy ¥3% (o] B A% 4 7 =2 - (4,530,000)
- Equity-settled share based — AR E 2 R L
arrangements 877,444 1,688,031
- Interest income — M EWA (1,489,699) (4,404,374)
- Dividend income — R EWA (867,288) (6,146,271)
— Finance costs — R E AR 229,303 289,184
Operating cash flows before BESsEDEZ
changes in working capital BEBHERE (24,163,633)  (102,919,457)
— Statutory deposits and other assets —AF L& N H & &E 554,935 1,244,459
- Inventories —-F8 (121,565,197) 1,139,633
- Restricted cash —%BE%‘JL@@ - 1,815,795
— Trade receivables —EWE SR 4,850,802 (4,749,246)
— Prepayments, deposits and —JEfFFR0E ?E%&
other receivables E b pE W 5008 (19,829,160) 5,335,171
— Amounts due from former Directors — & Ui BT Eé%m 331,419 500,000
- Financial assets at fair value — L AFEFAER
through profit or loss SREE 5,698,080 107,893,676
- Segregated trust bank balances — B EFERP AR 4,309,752 10,336,034
— Trade payables —ERNE S RIE (7,250,597) (1,863,832)
— Other payables and accruals — H b FE 1 3B K AT FRIB 5,232,670 (2,219,241)
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CoNsoOLIDATED STATEMENT oF CasH FLows
EAREREER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—T—tE —T—R
Note HK$ HK$
M 5 I BT
Cash (used in)/generated from BE (9H) EEZERS
operations (151,830,929) 16,512,992
Income tax paid B ER - (541,663)
Interest received 2 WA B 1,489,699 4,404,374
Net cash (used in)/generated mEEE (8A)
from operating activities EEZERLFE (150,341,230) 20,375,703
Cash flows from investing BETHMBEHESRERE
activities
Decrease/(increase) in deposit for W GEIBERE R
purchase of plant and equipment RS 259,215 (940,607)
Purchases of property, HEME HELRE
plant and equipment (4,629,453) (2,990,220)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFAE (104,498) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - R KR EMERIE
a property, plant & equipment 13,122 96,073
Gross increase in loans and B K e ORI N
receivables (8,969,400) (33,530,823)
Repayment of loans and receivables & 3k & f& 1 5 18 H 5% 41,901,723 19,518,885
Dividend received from securities BERBIEEERSFIRE
held for trading 867,288 6,146,271
Investments in financial assets at WERERATEFAERZZ
fair value through profit or loss SREE (10,763,280) -
Net cash generated from/ BETBELE (BH)Z
(used in) investing activities H&FE 18,574,717 (11,700,421)
Cash flows used in financing METBERRERE=E
activities
Acquisition of non-controlling M FE PR R R s B
interest (Note 36) (KT3E36) (1,843,639) -
Capital contribution from IR ERIEE
non-controlling interest 11,959,200 -
Repayments of bank borrowings RITERER (1,998,940) (1,939,060)
Interest paid B 7 (229,303) (289,184)
Proceeds from other unsecured loan H fib K 0 & F 15 5018 47,836,800 -
Net cash generated from/ REESEL (FR)Z
(used in) financing activities REFE 55,724,118 (2,228,244)
Net (decrease)/increase incash RE&RRLZEEH
and cash equivalents (@Y), HEmiEE (76,042,395) 6,447,038
Cash and cash equivalents at FzBEskReEHEER
beginning of year 240,921,035 241,490,110
Effect of foreign exchange rate EEEE) &
changes 6,053,670 (7,016,113)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZESRESZEEH
at end of year 27 170,932,310 240,921,035
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION
Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”).

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders on 23 May 2017, the name of the Company was
changed from “First China Financial Network Holdings Limited
BEMGMBEBRABER AR to “Sinofortune Financial Holdings
Limited EE S ZEEEER A"

INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in (i) provision of the precious
metals spot trading and brokerage services in the PRC, (i)
provision of securities and futures contracts trading services in
Hong Kong, (iii) trading and principal investments in the PRC
and Hong Kong, (iv) research, exploration and development of
the student safety network project and the electronic student
card in the PRC, (v) provision of stock information and research
services through the internet network in the PRC, and (vi) sales
of motor vehicles and provision of agency services in the PRC.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman lIslands under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s registered office
is situated at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
principal place of business is situated at 16th Floor, CMA
Building, No.64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, while the functional currencies of certain
subsidiaries are Renminbi (“RMB”). The Company has
selected Hong Kong dollar as its presentation currency as the
functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars and
management considered it is more beneficial to the users of the
consolidated financial statements. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved and authorized for issue by
the Board of Directors on 20 March 2018.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA).
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of Stock Exchange
(“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“ca”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
the recognition of certain financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

TEE

BRI E

RAENEGEMBERERARAZIIEE
ATBEREINMT R R BERAEIN I
ERRCRMEEBRFEERER-

2.1

EREE

RAaPBRRDREBFE ST
N (BEQFMAG)BEMZE
BHMBHREEA ([BEBBRSE
R PRS- BN - SR B TSR
R EEB ZXGEMRE = L R A
(TGEMEMRAI) REE R BME
5 (TR ARG ) B iR E < 38 R
BME -

A MR IIRE LKA T R R
5 RERE THAFEFAR
B EREERTBAGARIN-

BREEBMGHREENRGRES
M mRBIERE TEZ G
i MEREEERERASES
AR EL A - BRI RES
KA 2 IS B R EE 2
Bl HaRaMBEREAMBERZ L
BRAR K 5T b 2 88 E # AP 14



NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—AIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for an accounting period
that begins on or after 1 January 2017:

o Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative;

° Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised losses; and

° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs, 2014-2016
Cycle

The amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity
to make disclosures that aim to enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities. Reconciliations of
various types of the Group’s financing liabilities are
disclosed in Note 27(b) to the consolidated financial
statements. Other than such additional disclosures,
the application of the amendments has not had
any material effect on the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1

(@)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)

The amendments to HKAS 12 clarify when
unrealised losses on a debt instrument measured at
fair value would give rise to a deductible temporary
difference and how to evaluate whether sufficient
future taxable profits are available to utilise a
deductible temporary difference. The application of
the amendments has not had any material effect on
the consolidated financial statements.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs (2014-2016 cycle)
include an amendment to HKFRS 12 that clarifies
that, when an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest
in a joint venture or an associate) is classified (or
included in a disposal group that is classified) as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued
operations, it is not required to disclose summarized
financial information for that subsidiary, joint venture
or associate, as required by HKFRS 12 Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities. The application of the
amendments has not had any material effect on the
consolidated financial statement.
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NoTes 1o THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—AIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
New and amended Standards issued but not yet

(b)

adopted

The Group has not applied any of the following
new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), amendments to HKFRSs and new
interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) that
have been issued but are not yet mandatorily

effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15 and
amendments to
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'’

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, XEEHBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEEE(E)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures B BFEREEREZEE
(continued) (&)
(b)  New and amended Standards issued but not yet (b) B ZEITEERRANEIFET R
adopted (continued) ANSETER (4E)
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets BRUBRE BREZHEBEN
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its £ 105 Al A E R ER
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture? (B3I R) Rk ZEEHEX

BEGHEN TES
F285% (E7]A)

Amendments to Transfers of Investment BER g ER BERENE
HKAS 40 Property? £40% (BFTR)
Amendments to Annual Improvements to ERUBRE BRMEREER
HKFRSs HKFRS Standards 2014- LB (BFIR) —Z-mEZE
2016 Cycle* “E-R5RH
L E g
HK(IFRIC) Foreign Currency Transactions B (RS IERXFHREF
Interpretation 22 and Advance Consideration’ ERE RE
Z5%)
—-REE2%
HK(IFRIC) Uncertainty over Income Tax Bk (BRBRH%E  FAEHEED
Interpretation 23 Treatments? nERE TREM?
28%)
BEEBR
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 1 BT N\E—A—Ax2%
2018 FA 46 9 4F 5 HA R A 2K
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 E-E—hE—AB—Hxk%
2019 B 16 1 4F B R A 2K
s Effective date not yet determined 3 e ve=R: k=3
4 For those amendments that will become effective for annual 4 BRE—_ZE—-N\F—HA—H%
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 ZEBRARE S BRI A AL
EZEHES
° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 5 E-E-—®—B—H%k %
2021 B 16 1 4F B R A 2K
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments EEM G E R FEIE SR
TA
HKFRS 9 has introduced new requirements for (a) EB B RELERF S| A
classification and measurement of financial assets, EHQ@emEEN DB LT
(b) impairment of financial assets and (c) general 2 (b)E R EERMEMC)—
hedge accounting. AR & 5t BR IR YT AR E ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2.1

(b)

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

With regards to the classification and measurement
of financial assets, financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are subsequently measured
at either amortised cost or fair value. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of each of the subsequent
accounting periods. All other financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each of the
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”).
All other debt instrument financial assets and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods with changes
in fair value recognized in profit or loss, except that
the Group may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is neither held for trading nor
being contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS
3 applies) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss and the cumulative fair value changes will not
be reclassified to profit or loss upon derecognition
of the investment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE—Z

2.

—tE+ZA=t+—RLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1

(b)

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

With regards to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of such changes in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. This differs from the accounting treatment
under HKAS 39, whereby the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

With regards to impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 has adopted an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to the incurred credit loss
model required under HKAS 39. In general, the
adoption of the expected credit loss model will
require the Group to assess at each reporting date
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk
of its financial assets since initial recognition and
to recognize loss allowance equal to the life time
or 12-month expected credit losses depending
on whether or not there is a significant increase in
credit risk.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—AIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2.1

(b)

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

With regards to the general hedge accounting
requirements, HKFRS 9 retains the three types of
hedge accounting mechanisms currently available
in HKAS 39. HKFRS 9 will provide greater flexibility
as to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically by broadening the types
of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled
and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic
relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge
effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about the Group’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
HKFRS 9 will allow the Group when it applies
the Standard for the first time to choose as its
accounting policy to continue to apply the hedge
accounting requirements of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement instead
of the requirements in the Standard. If the Group
chooses to do so, it should apply that policy to all of
its hedging relationships.

HKFRS 9 contains specific transitional provisions
for (a) classification and measurement of financial
assets; (b) impairment of financial assets; and (c)
hedge accounting, which will be adopted by the
Group when it applies HKFRS 9 in the year ending
31 December 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1

(b)

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation mainly clarify and
provide additional guidance as to when a debt
instrument financial asset with a prepayment option
would satisfy the “solely payment of principal and
interest” test.

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and
liabilities as of 31 December 2017 and does
not expect significant impact on the Group’s
investments currently classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss and
the Group does not have any such liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2.1

(b)

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. Under the expected credit loss
model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss event
to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure either a 12-month expected credit loss or
a lifetime expected credit loss, depending on the
assets and the facts and circumstances. The Group
expects that the application of the expected credit
loss model may result in earlier recognition of credit
losses.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation.
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2.

—tE+ZA=t+—RLEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. Specifically, HKFRS
15 introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to
the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as)

the entity satisfies a performance
obligation
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2.1

(b)

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group will recognise revenue
when a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

Far more prescriptive guidance has been added
in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

HKFRS 15 contains a number of transitional
provisions as well as practical expedients to help
preparers so through the transition. Please refer to
HKFRS 15 for details.
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NoTes 1o THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
(b)  New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)
Based on the assessment completed to date, the
Group has identified the following areas which are
expected to be affected:

(@) The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in note 2.22. The management of
the Company has performed a preliminary
assessment of the effects of applying the new
standard on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and preliminary concluded that the
application will not have a significant impact
on the recognition of revenue based on the
existing business model of the Group as at 31
December 2017.

(b)  The Group intends to adopt the new standard
using the modified retrospective approach
which means that the cumulative impact of
the adoption, if any, will be recognised in
retained profits as of 1 January 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2.1

(b)

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease
guidance including HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

With regards to lessee accounting, the distinction
of operating leases and finance leases, as required
by HKAS 17, has been replaced by a model which
requires a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability to be recognised for all leases by lessees
except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.

Specifically, the right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost and subsequently measured
at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at
the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease
liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments.
Furthermore, the classification of cash flows will
also be affected as operating lease payments under
HKAS 17 are presented as operating cash flows;
whereas, under the HKFRS 16 model, the lease
payments will be split into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing and
operating cash flows respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1

(b)

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

With regards to lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, HKFRS 16 requires extensive
disclosures in the financial statements.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
the Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$8,679,980, the majority of
which is payable either between 1 and 5 years after
the reporting date. Some of these amounts may
therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities,
with corresponding right-of-use assets, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted.

However, the Group has not yet assessed what
other adjustments, if any, are necessary for example
because of the change in the definition of the lease
term and the different treatment of variable lease
payments and of extension and termination options.
It is therefore not yet possible to estimate the
amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
that will have to be recognised on adoption of the
new standard and how this may affect the Group’s
profit or loss and classification of cash flows going
forward.
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NoTes 1o THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MW R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)  New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendments clarify the following:

o In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled
share-based payment, the accounting for the
effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions
should follow the same approach as for
equity-settled share-based payments.

o Where tax law or regulation requires an entity
to withhold a specified number of equity
instruments equal to the monetary value of
the employee’s tax obligation to meet the
employee’s tax liability which is then remitted
to the tax authority, i.e. the share-based
payment arrangement has a “net settlement
feature”, such an arrangement should be
classified as equity-settled in its entirety,
provided that the share-based payment would
have been classified as equity-settled had it
not included the net settlement feature.

o A modification of a share-based payment that
changes the transaction from cash-settled
to equity-settled should be accounted for as
follows: the original liability is derecognised.
The equity-settled share-based payment is
recognised at the modification date fair value
of the equity instrument granted to the extent
that services have been rendered up to the
modification date. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the liability at the
modification date and the amount recognised
in equity should be recognised in profit or loss
immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1

(b)

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
(continued)

The Group does not have any cash-settled share-
based payment arrangements or any withholding
tax arrangements with tax authorities in relation to
share-based payments and hence the Directors of
the Company do not anticipate that the application
of the amendments in the future will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 deal
with situations where there is a sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state
that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control
of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in
a transaction with an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method, are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the re-measurement of investments
retained in any former subsidiary (that has become
an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method) to fair value are recognised
in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the
new associate or joint venture.

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

2.

FTEEHBEME (&2)

21 GREE(#F)
B BRRBEFREZEE)
(&)
(b) B ZTTIE 1 R 5T K

ABIEETER ()
RN B mELRNE2R (&
FIAR) [PARRD RERER 3R
RpZnBRFAE] (&)
AR EE W R AR B AR
B R R AR B AR T B (1A
Bea B8 Uk RERN M
REHFREAFBEAR LB
FHit - =R  RERER
REEITRB I EHAEE
MR M BRERIERERT

428

dig

I

BT EHRE LRI FE105
(BRI AR) R BB G ERIE
285 (7] A) [EEHME
BENRREECERZE
EREIEE]

BB B REERIEI1095R
(BRI AR) REB G ERISE
285 (IBFT RN ) RIEBRE SR
HEBENRRAELEY
MHBEEERES ETEMS
MeBBME ZEEBIA
HEAAEHBE S ARRAE
¥ (LERSEAR)NRS
RAREHTEBSER W
BARMIES SRR
JEREBARIERRERAE
LIERBEREBERZBE A
AdAELECETAR-
O TR K B E QA
WABDE (AREZETE)
Z AT AT B B 2 R PR B
BRENFEEFAENSR
B RAIS AR EZERER
BENFHBEREER T
BRAREEDE TR
PR o



NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—AIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2.1

(b)

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture (continued)

The Group did not enter into these transactions
in the current year. The Directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of these amendments
may have an impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in future periods should such
transactions arise.

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration

This Interpretation addresses how to determine
the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to be used on
initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the payment or receipt of advance consideration in
a foreign currency. The Interpretation concludes that
the date of the transaction for the abovementioned
purpose is the date on which an entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the payment or receipt of
advance consideration.

The Directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the Interpretation will have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group Companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform to the
Group’s accounting policies.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of financial position
respectively.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the Company.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWk MW

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE_-Z

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recognized at
cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognize the investor’s share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest
in an associate, any difference between the cost of the
associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Associates (continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognized in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. In addition, when there has been a
change recognized directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statements of changes in
equity. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognize further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of profit of associates” accounted for equity
method in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealized losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the senior executive management that makes
strategic decisions.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional currency and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—AIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rates on the dates of the
transactions);

o all resulting currency translation differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Land and Buildings
Leasehold improvements

25 years
3 to 5 years, or
Over the term of leases

if shorter
Office equipment and furniture 3 to 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognized immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Trading rights

The Group’s intangible assets represent eligibility
rights to trade on or through the Stock Exchange
and on the Hong Kong Future Exchange
Limited. The trading rights are carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BT OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets (continued)

(c) Software
The software has a finite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortization and impairment.
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of software over its
estimated useful life from 5 to 10 years.

(d) Contractual customer relationships
Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date.

The expected useful life of the contractual customer
relationships determined to be 8 years. The
contractual customer relationships have a finite
useful life are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization. Amortization is calculated using the
straight-line method over the said expected useful
life of the customer relationships.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets
Classification
The Group’s financial assets fall into the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition
at fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term or it is
a derivative which is not designated as a hedging
instrument. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade receivables”
and “deposits and other receivables” and “loans
and receivables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Financial assets are derecognized when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the statement of profit or loss
within “Other income and loss, net” in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss as part of other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amount and there is an intention to settled
on a net basic or realise the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

108 Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

2.

TEE

2.9

2.10

FTBURILE (&)

eMEE (&)

BB R B
ERMEECFREBER S A
R X5 AEAREEAEBE AR
EREEZH AR A FER
ABmZIBEEHMEEMS - RE
NTRERFEMR HRATER 12
ARFEFABRZZEMEENS
B TEER MRS MARIRE
eRANEMEEKRARKH -
BREEDRRSREZENT 2
R EE BASECSHEREL
BARE D A A O R ERE - A
MEESRILTER - B3R EKGR
TRE & AE BRI RO 3% 3 55 KA
51 B -

KRB [BAFEFABSNERE

B IAEEREBRRANH
A REBERFE]IF -REERA
FEFABESNEREENRE
WA - 82N SR B R TE WCER B B R IR
HRERE  MIBm R AR REM
WAz =87 e

ST R
TRMEENMBBERB AT RS #E
NEHE RSB LR BRI FE
EEFEYIRABHEEZLRANE
NRER TR mARFER
BN KR A2 < JETE A NITHE
MBATFERBRKEHTE - M
E—REBBIEP AN AF K
HFH-BHIRELN  EEERE
SWERTARBHRA -



NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XEEHBEBE &)
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Impairment of financial assets

211 &S ERE

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’'s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
losses is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11

2.12

2.13

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognized
impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method for the commodities finished
goods and the weighted average method for the
student cards and school safety products and specific
identification basis for the motor vehicles. The cost of
finished goods is arrived at based on purchase cost.
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amount due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in ordinary
the course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at fair value through profit and loss, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

° the amount initially recognized less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in
accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHHERME£2)
POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax

2.19 BHIRIBEEFRRSH

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries where
the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference for
associates. Only when there is an agreement in place that
gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is not
recognized.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates only to the extent that it
is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 219 BEARIBEEFTBH (£)
Deferred income tax (continued) BEFEH (2)
Offsetting A

FTEEHBEME (&2)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully within
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. During the reporting
period, the total amount of forfeited contributions,
which arose upon employees leaving the MPF
Scheme and available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years was nil (2016: Nil).
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NoTes To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (continued)

Retirement benefits to employees in the PRC are
provided through a defined contribution plan.
The Group is required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
after payment of the fixed contribution.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognized as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE_-Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation (continued)
Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognized over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognizes
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognizing the expense during the
period between service commencement period and
grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognized over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity
in the parent entity accounts.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognizes costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 and involves the payment of termination benefits.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHHERME£2)
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Revenue recognition

2.22 Yy s FEER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognizes revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below:

(@)

Commission income from securities and futures
brokerage is recognized on a trade date basis.

Yz 47 B WS FE R B 2 A F
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(@) BHRBELLARWAR
R HEEER

(b) Commission income from precious metal brokerage b) ELBLLHESURAERS
is recognized on a trade date basis. BEERER -

(c) Service income are recognized when the relevant () BRFBU AR BB RS ER M
services have been rendered. B ER o

(d) Realized gains or losses on spot trading on precious d EBREAGHRZH2ER
metal contracts are recorded on a trade date basis BaRXSEBHEEAER:
whilst unrealized fair value gains or losses are MAEBR L AFEEZEB
recognized by translating the contract amounts at BEEWMEMRRCERBRES
the prices ruling at the end of each reporting period. N T AR -

() Realized fair value gains or losses on securities () BHEBEECDERAFEK
trading are recorded on a trade date basis whilst mel EIBERZ S A BEER
unrealized fair value gains or losses are recorded on 8% - MR EIH A FERE
change in fair value on the reporting period. BEAZERE R AT E

()  Interest income is recognized using the effective H  FEWATERAEEREFEE

interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans and receivables is recognized using
the original effective interest rate.

HE 2 o 10 B AR % MR TEURR
B AEBE S8 REER
EEARERE IZER
TERBERMEFE 2
ARBRBESRE WHEER
IR BERAEF B WA - BE
Bz M B U A R U IR
BRABRNERER -

gEepgEarRasa | —=—+t55% 119



NoTes To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEEHBRBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Revenue recognition (continued) 2.22 YRR (&)
() Dividend income is recognized when the right to (99 BREWAEKIMBEEREZ

receive payment is established.

(h)  Revenue from sales of motor vehicles and electronic (h)
student cards and school safety products is
recognised upon transfer of significant risk and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered and the
title has passed to the customers.

TE T4 T ST I T DARE R

HERERETELEFNIR
TERZWETREREES
2 KEBH R M HER
F(BaPHIRNETER
METEREZE ZHE )
TR

()  Agency income from trading of motor vehicles () REBHFREBRARREMR
souring is recognized on a net basis, when the 12 AR 7% B 10T BB A M R
agency services have been rendered. Ao

2.23 Leases 2.23 4

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and RYEH #E 2 B RE 5 R fy & B 8

rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are REHBEARB 2L B AELE

classified as operating leases. Payments made under Mo -BRELEHENSTIHzES
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the (FEMB e EfE AR Z EAER
lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of profit %) RESERBERAERE
or loss and other comprehensive income on a straight-line BakEM2EERARRHE-
basis over the period of the lease.

2.24 Related parties 224 FRAEANT
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: INTATHERBERNEEGHE
e -

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family (a) ZALTRFEATEGHDHA
and that person T A TRAE
()  has control or joint control over the Group; () P gk R AN &

=
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAKEBEEAXE:
57
(i) is a member of the key management personnel (i) AREEFIAKEEAR
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; ANEEETERAE:

(o) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (o) WY EMGHTER &

following conditions applies: BRI B G

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EETBRBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Related parties (continued) 224 FEAEANLT (&)
(b)  (continued) o) (#&)
(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of (i) ZEEHUAKEHRA
the same third party; —EB-ITNEERE:
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy, ZEBEEAE-FEEHN
and the other entity is an associate of the third BELE ME—EE
entity; REZEF=FEBEOEE
YNCIR
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan v) HREEAREKEER
for the benefit of employees of either the SEBE@ABNETENE
Group or an entity related to the Group; B M %5 3% 3 A B B A3 A
sTEl:
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) %EE®(a )Fﬁ;&%”/\i
person identified in (a); and 122 1) 58 A (Rl )

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii)  PA(a)()PTak Bl A I ¥ 5%
influence over the entity or is a member of the BERBEERTE LB
key management personnel of the entity (or of ZERB (HZEEBNE
a parent of the entity). RNANFEEHEAB-

(vii) The entity, or any member of a Group of (vii) FZEEIAEE MK
which it is a part, provides key management IEUNGIIEPNCSE NS
personnel services to the Group or to the B AREHREES
Group’s parent. BEABRS-

Close members of the family of a person are those family REATHEORKEKR B RTERZE
members who may be expected to influence, or be BRXINBHeEYEZBEATRL
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity. SREZBANTRENREKE -
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. HMBEmEE
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 MBEKER

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial $EIZZ“‘%/E@JE¥TXEWWH
risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk, fair % 5B iz ER (BEIINER
value interest rate risk, and cash flow interest rate risk), G BISEAR - A FEFERR A&
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk iﬁimLEﬂTH 2) - EERR
management program focuses on the unpredictability of mEE R $%€IZ¥E‘5H[§M
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse BRI EE N © BT 5N A TR A
effects on the Group’s financial performance. M BSOS B K RIR

TReBEAEMPERERE-
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk

3.1

(1)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Transactional currency exposures arise from
the sales or purchase by operating units
in currency other than the unit’s functional
currency. The Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk is minimal as almost all of the
Group’s revenue and costs of the operating
units are denominated in the HK$ and RMB,
the respective functional currency of the Group
entities, with most of the Group’s monetary
assets, liabilities are principally denominated
in the respective functional currencies of HK$
and RMB. The Group manages the foreign
exchange exposure arising from its normal
course of business activities and investments
in foreign operations by funding its local
operations and investments through cash
flows generated from business transactions
locally. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from trading of listed equity securities
which are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong and the market price change on
the unlisted investment funds classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. To manage its price risk arising from
these investments, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to related
price risk of these investments.
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NoTes 10 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Price risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the
quoted market prices of the trading securities
had been 5% higher or lower while all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s
net loss for the year would decrease or
increase by approximately HK$985,000 (2016:
HK$3,198,000) as a result of changes in fair
value of securities held for trading.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

During the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2017, the Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate on bank
deposits and borrowings which carry prevailing
market interest rates. The directors considered
that the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to its variable bank deposits and
borrowings. The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However, management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

3.1

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, if interest
rates on the bank borrowings had been
decreased/increased by 50 basis points
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s post-tax loss for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$27,000 and
HK$36,000 respectively.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, if
interest rates on the bank deposits had been
decreased/increased by 50 basis points
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s post-tax loss for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 would increase and
decrease by approximately HK$792,912 and
HK$1,231,976 respectively.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group
is exposed to the fair value interest rate risk
relating to the loans and receivables. However,
the Directors consider the repayable term of
the loans and receivables is within one year,
therefore, the fair value interest rate risk is
immaterial.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE_-Z

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial
assets periodically to ensure that potential credit
risk of the counterparty is managed at an early
stage and sufficient provision is made for possible
defaults. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets
relate mainly to cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, loans and receivables
and amounts due from former Directors. It arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.

—tFEtZA=t—RALEEE

3. MBERERE (&)
3.1 MBERER (&)

(b)

EELBEMERAT | —F—

EEmEE
AEBTEHRRISESREE
Z AT Y [ & FE - DA REAR AT R
RHRSH T ZEERFEER
@ 1F B IR 3B R
ERR RN AEE
FESRERESHRZBER
MASE ZZERRY &
* o

rEESREEZZERR
FEEN R RRESEEE
B EWE S HIE R EMmE
Wk B e W s IE K e
WRTEEHREBEZEER
o HTTERXZHE FENM
EA Ak EREBERZSE
IEZEEETE EE@J"E%U
EEEHRRELZEEER
BB E AR T

ThFE W E 5 3R o B At B IR
RME AEEERMER
RBBAX -—SBENEREE
B & P AT IE R E B AR -
ZEFHEETREPBET
HAS R0 RC 8% 2 B AT 30
BN UEEINBFHEBER
PREPEEEBMELE

EIREOE R

tees 125



NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMBEMERE(~=Z)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBREKER (&)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEREMRE (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group KSR AEEBEET
has certain concentrations of credit risk as EPEERAR BXAEER
approximately 48% (2016: 32%) and 93% (2016: RESGEBALAKRKES
88%) of the Group's trade receivables were due BB AD RGN EEH48%
from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the (ZZF—7"%F:32% ) &93%
five largest trade debtors respectively within the T RF:88%) ZEI
Brokerage and securities margin financing services B 55 IA ZEREBGIAE
segment. However, the directors of the Company ZEREBAKERESFRES
consider the credit risk is limited since the Group BB RS E o AT - A QA
has held certain listed equity securities of clients as EERREERRBR:
collateral over these receivables. Further quantitative REAEEREREPHNEAET L
data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit MREFEHERZ S REBR
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in WEF L BN EEERK
Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements. BEORBEEEFEERRK 2 E
—SEEE REETE

KM F22H 5 o

(c) Liquidity risk (c) HEERELE
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management EEEARDESRRE
rests with the board of directors. The Group BE FHREF-NEE4H
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate B R e N R A E R
reserves and reserve borrowing facilities, by B TEHERBALRERE
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash eRE UREHEMEE
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial LBaEZREHA EUER

assets and liabilities. RBE e RR -
At 31 December 2017, the Group had borrowings RZE—+tF+A=+—
with carrying amounts of approximately B A&EBEERZEEE
HK$54,393,000 (2016: HK$8,555,000) (Note 30). #) /54,393,000 0 (=

T — ;X4 : 8,555,00058 7T )
(H$5¥30) ©
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMBEMER(&Z
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBREKER (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) HEELELE (&)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities AEESRABERRE AN
as at the reporting period, based on the contractual FARIEA QRITIRA R B
undiscounted payments, was as follows: IR :
On demand Between Between Total Total
or within 1and 2 2and 5 Over undiscounted carrying
1 year years years 5 years cash flow amount
BEX KRR E
DR 1E26F 2F5% 5N REAE BREE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
2017 —F-tE
Trade payables ERESHE 7,567,101 - - - 17,567,101 7,567,101
Other payables and ~ E BN FUAR
accruals JERTAUA 7,401,511 - - - 7401511 7,401,511
Bank borrowings (Note) 8772 % (Hiz) 6,872,170 - - - 6872170 6,556,013
Other borrowings ~ E#f& 51,663,744 = = - 51,663,744 47,836,800
2016 —TRE
Trade payables R ES5E 14,817,698 - - - 14,817,698 14,817,698
Other payables and ~ E#EMFUAR
accruals JEGH R 2,168,841 - - - 2,168,841 2,168,841
Bank borrowings (Note) ST 3 (M &) 9,100,483 - - - 9,100,483 8,554,953
Note: Bt 5T
Bank loans HK$6,556,013 (2016: HK$8,554,953) with a repayment BEREXKEEGRZIRBTE
on demand clause are included in the “on demand or within 1 56,556,013 L (=T — N F:
year” time band in the above maturity analysis. At 31 December 8,554,953 L) Ll BB A i
2017, the aggregate undiscounted amounts of principal of the FFATRERK D IF] 2 B EE6
bank loans and interest thereon amounted to HK$6,872,170 (2016: NeRZE—EF+=ZA=+—
HK$9,100,423). Taking into account the Group’s financial position, B RIOTERTS RTINS REF
the directors do not believe that it is probable that the banks will EA#46,872,1708 L (ZF— X
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. #F:9,100,4283%8 L) st R AEE 2
The directors believe that such bank loans will be repaid over MgMhRE  EERERIT T A8
a period of 3 (2016: 4) years in accordance with the scheduled TEEERARER BB -EF
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. iz ZFROTEBESBRBEERBE

FEEEERBH  K3F (ZF—KX
FaF)HEANEE-
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Capital management

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries are regulated by the
SFC and are required to comply with certain minimum
capital requirements according to the rules of the SFC. In
addition, the Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debt (including current and
non-current liabilities but excluding current or deferred
income tax liabilities as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity (including share capital and premium, reserves,
accumulated losses and non-controlling interests as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position).
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMBEMERE(~=Z)
3.2 Capital management (continued) 3.2 EXEE(£&)
During 2017, the Group’s strategy was to maintain the REBE-ZZT—+LFHESFITZ
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio within 50%, which was T-RERNRE  BRAKERY
unchanged from 2016. The debt-to-adjusted capital AR AL ZEFFES0%A < 10
ratios as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were as *”*tE&*”*/‘TE‘T’:ﬂ
follows: ST -AZEBHERABRRAL
i

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE-RF

HK$ HK$

T 7T

Total debt BER 69,421,129 25,541,492

Less: Bank balances and cash, W RITEBREIES
including bank trust BIERITELERRP

accounts (Note 27) (M$5E27) (180,697,961)  (254,996,438)

Net debt BB FE (111,276,832)  (229,454,946)

Total equity I BE 336,865,300 469,037,421

Adjusted capital R Y N 336,865,300 469,037,421

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio EHHEAERA LR N/A FiE R N/A 7138 3

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AF{EZMEE

The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at TREZGHEFTEDTARFEE

fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have ZERMITAE-ZERZEEWMT:

been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . *Eﬁﬁ%i%%ﬁ(‘iéﬁ%ﬁ%
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). ZHmE(RERAE) (F—
&) e
e Inputs other than quoted prices included within e EENBEBEVEE (EH)L
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, M (CkEER)BR 28 A
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, HE(TEEE-—RIWME)
derived from prices) (level 2). (=) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

MBEEER (&
3.3 AF{EZME (&)
e HENABWIIFRIEAERE
2GR 2 A BE (&
FER 2B ASE) (F=

) e
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
@t -1 -t ] £=4
HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT
At 31 December 2017 R-B—tE
+ZA=+-H
Financial assets at fair value &2 F{EFIABZZ
through profit or loss SREE (Hie4)
(Note 24)
- securities held for trading —H{EEEZE 5 23,512,550 23,512,550 - -
- designated at fair value ~ —ETEELTFE
through profit or loss FAER 10,763,280 - 10,763,280 -
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+-B=+-H
Financial assets at fair value A F(EFFABZZ
through profit or loss SREAE (Mo4)
(Note 24)
- securities held for trading —#{EE E &5 63,967,620 63,967,620 - -
Contingent consideration ~ [EUR L AR (B
receivable (Note 20) (F5E20) 29,441,448 - - 29,441,448

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level
1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level
3.

Please refer to Note 20 for the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.
3.4 Financial instruments by category

MEREmER (&)
34 &MIASE

2017 2016
—E—tHF ZE—RF
HK$ HK$
AT 7T
Financial assets classified as loans R iE&R A MR HE
and receivables as per consolidated 7 #8 4 E 3k & EW
statement of financial position HEZCHEE
Statutory deposits and other assets (AT L& & E & E 505,001 1,059,936
Trade receivables FEWE 558 9,424,160 14,550,089
Deposits and other receivables e REAMmE 1451 RIE 21,012,266 26,926,353
Loans and receivables B R e R 597,960 33,530,283
Amounts due from former Directors [ Al EE%%/T - 331,419
Bank balances and cash RITEBNIAS
including restricted cash (BHEXEHR®) 180,697,961 254,996,438
212,237,348 331,394,518
Contingent consideration receivable [ Uk sk S K (B - 29,441,448
Financial assets at fair value through & A F BT AEBZE 2
profit or loss SREE 34,275,830 63,967,620
246,513,178 424,803,586
Financial liabilities at amortized cost 4R & B ##A L 3R &
as per consolidated statements of BEEAASIR 2 SREBE
financial position
Trade payables JETE 558 7,567,101 14,817,698
Other payables and accruals H th B A 5008 M FEET FRIA 7,401,511 2,168,841
Borrowings EE 54,392,813 8,554,953
69,361,425 25,541,492
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a) Estimated useful lives of intangible assets
other than goodwill
The Group has significant intangible assets. The
Group is required to estimate the useful lives of
intangible assets, in order to ascertain the amount
of amortization charges for each reporting period.

(b) Impairment of intangible assets other than
goodwill
The Group periodically reviews internal or external
resources to identify indications that the intangible
assets other than goodwill have suffered any
impairment in accordance with accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. If the recoverable amount of
an intangible asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
intangible asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. The assessment of the recoverable amount
requires the use of estimates and assumptions.

(c) Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the
impairment of trade and other receivables on
a regular basis. This estimate is based on the
credit history of its customers and current market
conditions. Management reassesses the impairment
of trade and other receivables at the end of the
reporting period.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)
(d) Impairment of interests in associates

(e)

()

Determining whether interests in associates are
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amounts of the interests in associates.

Estimated useful lives and impairment of
property, plant and equipment

The Group has significant property, plant and
equipment. The Group is required to estimate the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to ascertain the amount of depreciation charges for
each reporting period.

The useful lives are estimated at the time of
purchase of these assets after considering business
developments and the Group’s strategies. The
Group performs annual reviews to assess the
appropriateness of the estimated useful lives.
Such review takes into account any unexpected
adverse changes in circumstances or events,
including declines in projected operating results,
negative industry and economic trends. The Group
extends or shortens the useful lives and/or makes
impairment provisions according to the results of the
review.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in certain
overseas jurisdictions and Hong Kong. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination are made.

4. EXESHEFRAE (&£)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)
(g) Fair value of contingent consideration

(h)

receivable

The Directors of the Company use their judgment
in selecting appropriate valuation techniques for
contingent consideration receivable. The estimation
of fair values of the contingent consideration
receivables are derived after taking into account
the Company’s shares price and the probability the
vendors will acquire the Company’s shares by cash
payments at the end of reporting period.

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions requires determination of the most
appropriate valuation model, which depends on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate
also requires determination of the most appropriate
inputs to the valuation model including the expected
life of the share option or appreciation right, volatility
and dividend yield and making assumptions about
them. The Group use a binomial model for new
share options scheme to measure the fair value
of equity-settled transactions with employees at
the grant date. The assumptions and models used
for estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions are disclosed in Note 34.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE_-Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying the company’s

accounting policies

Determining the basis on impairment made on the
interests in associates

The Group has made substantial investments in
associates. The Group conducts impairment reviews
of these assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable.

During 2017, after reviewing the business environment
and past performance of the investments, management
considers to make the full impairment for two PRC
associates of HK$31,754,373 (2016: HK$1,028,594)
(Note 19) due to the continuing suspension of business of
those associates during the year.

As the commodities trading policies review conducted
by the government of Qianhai, there was a suspension
on the business operation of Qianhai First China, an
associate of the Group, in prior year. The review was
still not completed as at the end of the current reporting
period and therefore the business operation of Qianhai
First China has not yet resumed up to present. Due to
the uncertainty in the timing of the new industry policies
introduced, the management of the Group considers that
it is appropriate to make full impairment on the interests in
the associates.
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4.2
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B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, EXEsHhsrRHER (=2)
JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying the company’s 42 FERXATEFBRIFELHZE
accounting policies (continued) KHER (&)
Determining the basis on impairment refundable ETBREEHREZKBEEY
earnest money paid for proposed business o BERELRIEEGE

acquisition in previous year

The Group has paid the refundable earnest money of
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$23,052,000) for the
proposed acquisition for the entire registered capital
of Mingin Quantum in January 2015. The Group has
received the collaterals which are the entire shares
of Mingin Quantum from the vendor. The proposed
acquisition terminated in May 2015 and the Group filed
an arbitration application to SCIA for the repayment of the
overdue receivables.

Although the final judgment ordered the vendors to repay
the refundable earnest money to the Group, the vendor
did not return the said deposits to the Group. On 6 June
2017, the PRC legal adviser of the Company received
the execution judgment issued by the Court of Suining
City, Sichuan Province dated 25 April 2017. According
to the execution judgment, the Court terminated the
compulsory execution of repayment of the said deposits
from the vendor and the Court concluded that the vendor
owns no executable assets after he pledged his shares of
Mingin Quantum to the Group. In addition, the Group may
need to take up Mingin Quantum’s significant existing
and potential liabilities if the Group get possession of the
pledged shares of Mingin Quantum. Based on the facts
and circumstances described above, the management
determined to make a full impairment of the said earnest
money during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, EXEsHEETR¥E (&)
JUDGMENTS (continued)

4.2 Critical judgments in applying the company’s 42 FERXATEFBRIFELHZE

accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition in respect of new motor
vehicles trading business

The Group assesses its business relationships with
suppliers and customers of the motor vehicles trading
business and determines that the Group acts as a
principal in some arrangements and acts as agent in
other arrangements. For the latter, the Group determines
that it just provides sourcing services for its customers.

In determining whether revenue from trading of motor
vehicles shall be recorded on net basis or gross basis,
the Group has made reference to indicators and
requirements stated in HKAS 18 “Revenue”. Determining
whether the Group is acting as a principal or an agent
requires judgment and consideration of all relevant facts
and circumstances, and the Group considers itself as
an agent regarding the PRC-purchased motor vehicles
and as a principal regarding trading of imported motor
vehicles by assessing the following features:

° Whether the Group has the primary responsibility to
provide motor vehicles to the customers (e.g. only
after the quality inspection).
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NoTes To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying the company’s
accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition in respect of new motor
vehicles trading business (continued)
° Whether the Group has significant inventory risk.
The Group has minimal inventory risk regarding
trading of the PRC-purchased motor vehicles as
the Group only places purchase orders to suppliers
only when receiving sales orders from customers
and the risk and rewards or control of the motor
vehicles are not transferred to the Company before
the motor vehicles are transferred to the customers.
The Group has significant inventory risk regarding
trading of the imported motor vehicles as the Group
did not receive any sale orders from customers
before purchasing the imported motor vehicles.

° Whether the Group is exposed to significant credit
risk. For trading of imported motor vehicles, the
Group settles amounts due to suppliers before
motor vehicles are sold to customers. On the
contrary, the credit risk of the Group is minimal as
customers are required to pay full amount to the
Group before motor vehicles are delivered to them.

After assessing the above features, the management
concluded that the Group acts as principal regarding the
trading of imported motor vehicles and acts as an agent
regarding the trading of PRC-purchased motor vehicles.

138 Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

4.

EXEsH st R¥ER (&2)

42 ERAASETBREELZE
K¥IER (2)
FIREHE R Z I am tEaT

(#&)

AEBREFHEERFRER
B ANEERHERRNBE
MEMNFERBREKE T H
RARBREEKRIZFFH
HERTERTERMHERT
ERBIE EREEET
B AEMRAR KD R
HEFELEEEE AR
AleNEEEELEDTE
FEEAFERR RER
AEERBEEOAEML
EEEP WER EMHER
-

AEBREEHBREANEER
e BUHEE D AEMS @ K
SENAEETEPAGEHE
PR IR R 2 - AR
BEPARANEE2EMNIE
FAERAE BMAKEZ
EERBEIE-

R R RR - EEE R
SEAEHEENREPRETE
iy MEHREERNBE TEHE
ERESMD-



NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

REVENUE 5. Wiz
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows: AEERFEHRAEITHAT
2017 2016
—F—tHF ZE-RF
HK$ HK$
T 7S TT
Commission income from securities BHEMBELLEAS KA
and futures brokerage 724,089 659,425
Commission income from EeBRELASBA
precious metals brokerage - 1,028,710
Spot trading profits on EeBREANIRS
precious metals contracts, net FEFE - 511,054
Trading of electronic student cards and 4% & T E 4 &
school safety products REZZE S 5,282,451 5,175,956
Interest income from clients ?K BEREFPZHBHRA 734,163 745,406
Consultancy fee income BHRERRA 839,364 775,864
Sales of motor vehicles EEETEEEHZ
which the Group acts as principal EHE 19,202,360 -
Agency fee income from RERNREZ AEES
trading of PRC-purchased REBIA
motor vehicles 2,403,970 -
Revenue W= 29,186,397 8,896,415
Proceeds from trading of securities & B H 2 1S RE 2,214,371 37,995,615
Turnover - 31,400,768 46,892,030
SEGMENT INFORMATION sipEE

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors (the “Executive Directors”) of the Company.
The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. Operating
segments were determined based on these reports.

In prior financial years, the Group was organized into five
operating divisions and each of the operating divisions
represented an operating and reportable segment: (1) provision
of brokerage and securities margin financing services; (2)
precious metals spot trading and brokerage; (3) trading of
electronic student cards and school safety products; (4) trading
and principal investments; (5) provision of stock information
and research services. During the year ended 31 December
2017, the chief operation decision maker considered the new
business of the sales of motor vehicles and provision of agency
services as a new single operating and reportable segment. As
a result, six operating and reportable segments were identified
by the Executive Directors.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
The segment information of the reportable segments for the
year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

SEEH (&)
HE-ZT—+tF+-A=1+—HULFE
ZAREDB A WERMT :

Brokerage Trading of Provision of Sales of
and electronic stock motor
securities Precious student information vehicles
margin metals spot cards and Trading and and  and provision
financing trading and  school safety principal research of agency
services brokerage products investments services services Total
BERES 52E HETY R
RESME REXHR BEERKE BER REEAR HERER
BR% BERE R2ER BERE WERE  RERERE @zt
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
o i i i b AL o
Segment revenue from external DREFPHHMA
customers 1,458,252 - 5,282,451 - 839,364 21,606,330 29,186,397
Other income and loss, BAMHNEMRAR
net by segment BRFE 93,289 (74,134) 32,228 (37,254,892) 612,905 76,549 (36,514,055)"
Segment results PHEE (3,310,926) (494,309) (16,231,861) (44,726,648) (28,005,672) 2,853,774 (89,915,642)
Net unallocated expenses AOBRFAXFE (11,516,120)
Other income and loss, net Ht AR BBFE 205,9911
Finance costs BERA (229,303)
Interest income FIEMA 388,808"
Share of loss of associates ElEB 2N AEE (6,028,114)
Impairment loss of interests REEARER RESE
in associates (31,754,373)
Loss before income tax BESHAER (138,848,753)
Income tax income FERBA 2,545,494
Loss for the year FREE (136,308,259
1 Equivalent to the total balances stated in Note 7 ! BB FE7 2 B REAR AT
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ﬁ*lzis*il (%)
The segment information of the reportable segments for the (BT -RFETA=+—RHILFE
year ended 31 December 2016 is as follows: ZAMEDH 2 OEERMAT
Brokerage Trading of Provision of
and electronic stock
securities Precious student information
margin metals spot cards and Trading and and
financing trading and school safety principal research
services brokerage products investments services Total
EERES ESR HEET b
RESBE REXHR  EBEERRE BEER REAAR
R BRR% ZRER BERE T RS it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Segment revenue from external IREPAHHRA
customers 1,404,831 1,639,764 5,175,956 - 775,864 8,896,415
Other income and loss, AHFNEMBARBEFE
net by segment 100,957 92,974 354,944 (95,311,974) 2,448,383 (92,314,716)"
Segment results ABEE (4,093,016) (2,009,354)  (113,390,780)  (102,586,026) (6,888,117)  (228,967,293)
Net unallocated expenses AERZFE (8,180,739)
Other income and loss, net L RAREEEE 226,390'
Finance costs BERA (289,184)
Interest income FIEMA 431,944
Share of loss of associates EEHEARER (8,928,647)
Impairment loss on interests REERAERAERSR
in associates (1,028,5%4)
Loss before income tax BEGRAES (246,736,123)
Income tax expense FEHRAY 1,832,574
Loss for the year FRER (244,903 549)
1 Equivalent to the total balances stated in Note 7 ! BB FE7EY B REAR AT
The measure used for reporting segment profits or losses is RARmER % BFHEE 2 75BN
adjusted losses before interest and taxes. To arrive at adjusted FIERFIBRI S FAREIE - BIEK uﬂ
losses, the Group’s losses are further adjusted for items not KE1E $ E BB EWRETE

specifically attributed to individual segments, such as share of
profits or losses of associates, impairment loss on interests in
associates and head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted losses before interest and taxes, management is
provided with segment information concerning revenue, interest Weas -~ F
income and finance costs from borrowings, share of profits
or loss of the associates and impairment loss on interests in

associates.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. SEEHR (=)
Other segment information for the year ended 31 December BHE_ZT—+HF+-_A=1T—HILFE
2017 is as follows: ZEHMEERINT
Brokerage Trading of
and electronic Provision of ~ Sales of motor
securities Precious student stock  vehicles and
margin metals spot cardsand  Trading and information provision of
financing trading and  school safety principal  and research agency
services brokerage products investments services services Unallocated Total
FER E2E HE i3
#5REE  BEXSR  EY4ER BER  RE&AHR  HERER
B GERE REX2ER BERYE HARE RERERE FHE it
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
& T T e T T # T
Addition to property, plant % BERZETE
and equipment - - 116,056 - 3,439,454 932,389 141,554 4,629,453
Depreciation and amortization REREH - 121,985 2,999,917 49,992 530,049 3,157 1,675,784 5,380,884
Impairment of property, plantand ¥+ #3 Rk BRI E
equipment - - 966,460 - - - - 966,460
Change in fair value of contingent ~ MBI AR EZ AFEES
consideration receivable - - 13,441,448 - - - - 13,441,448
Fair value losses on securities FREELLNTEEE
trading - - - 34,756,990 - - - 34,756,990
Impairment of refundable eamest ~ FHAEEEEEERIE
money paid for proposed business  FTX AT REFE 2R (E
acquisition in prior year - - - - 23,052,000 - - 23,052,000
Impairment loss of interests REENEER JHERE
in associates - - - - - - 31,754,373 31,754,373
Other segment information for the year ended 31 December HE_ZT—R"F+_A=+—HLFE
2016 is as follows: ZEMDFEERMT
Brokerage Trading of
and electronic Provision of
securities Precious student stock
margin metals spot cards and Trading and information
financing trading and school safety principal and research
services brokerage products investments services Unallocated Total
gRRES EeR HEET R
RESRE REXHR  BAEERRE EER BREAR
fRis LR ZE2ER BERE W R% RAE st
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$
B B B AT BT B B
Addition to property, plant NE BERRERE
and equipment - 235,824 2,640,371 - 54,003 60,022 2,990,220
Depreciation and amortization FEREH - 718,418 21,299,187 279,800 271,693 1,502,651 24,071,749
Impairment of intangible assets EREERE - - 122,686,950 - - - 122,686,950
Change in fair value of contingent ~ EWHAREZ R FEEY
consideration receivable - - 140,880 - - - 140,880
Fair value losses on securities trading - - - 30,108,514 - - 30,108,514
Impairment loss of interests REEREERZHERE
in associates - - - - - 1,028,594 1,028,594
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2017

and 2016 are as follows:

BEEF (£E)
RZE—+FER_ZE—XFE+ A
—t+—HMoHBEEREENT:

Segment assets 2017 2016
SHMEE —F—tF —E-RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Brokerage and securities margin KENBLHRESHERE
financing services 34,832,881 44,961,059
Precious metals spot trading and EeBRERZ RELRL
brokerage AR 7% 19,591,506 18,646,616
Trading of electronic student HEETEEFE
cards and school safety products REZ 2 E @ 9,632,932 41,886,646
Trading and principal investments EENBERE 53,328,020 125,881,078
Provision of stock information and REREENRATRSE
research services 42,404,137 72,197,138
Sales of motor vehicles and HE T E RIRRAIERE
provision of agency services 175,851,667 -
335,641,143 303,572,537
Interest in associates REZERNA 2= - 34,944,709
Unallocated Ko 73,935,352 161,866,367
Consolidated assets HEBE 409,576,495 500,383,613
Segment liabilities 2017 2016
SEEE —F—tF —ZE-RF
HK$ HK$
ST BT
Brokerage and securities margin K kBHRESMERE
financing services 7,750,081 15,010,828
Precious metals spot trading and EeBRERHRERL
brokerage AR 7 337,086 301,625
Trading of electronic student HESTELE
cards and school safety products REZZER 195,515 368,761
Trading and principal investments EERBERE 36,760 69,154
Provision of stock information and REBREENRHTRE
research services 232,582 323,271
Sales of motor vehicles and HE B RIEHRIERE
provision of agency services 53,370,110 -
61,922,134 16,073,639
Unallocated AOE 10,789,061 15,272,553
Consolidated liabilities FERE 72,711,195 31,346,192
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A MWW R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, statutory deposits and other
assets, contingent consideration receivable, inventories, trade
and other receivables, deposits, loan receivables, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and bank balances
and cash.

Segment liabilities consists primarily of trade payables, other
payables and accruals, current income tax payables and

deferred income tax liabilities.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC.

SEEHE (&)

DHMEETZEREYE HBERRE-
BREE LZERENEMEE BK
FARE - FE BREZFFRAERHEAM
WA e RBRER BRATVE
FPABZmZ EREENARRITERER

DHMBEIERRENEZRA  Hit
FERNRIENESE R - A BN EHR
FMIEEFRBHARE-

AEEETERFERTEEE -

2017 2016
—F—tF —T—RF
HK$ HK$
T BT
Revenue I &5
Hong Kong a5 1,458,252 1,404,831
The PRC s 27,728,145 7,491,584
29,186,397 8,896,415
Other income and loss, net Hipl A\ REBEFEE
Hong Kong &5 (36,674,217)  (94,933,043)
The PRC s 754,961 3,277,561

(35,919,256)

(91,656,382)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. SEEHR (=)
Revenue from external customers are allocated based on the REINARF P ZBWAREF & E
geographic areas in which the customer is located. e
2017 2016
—F—tF —E-RF
HK$ HK$
T 7T
Specified non-current assets SHEEREEE
Hong Kong B 29,341,908 31,430,967
The PRC sl 4,877,125 41,302,165
34,219,033 72,733,132
Interest in associates are allocated based on the location REERNR 2R TR EE D '%
of operations, property, plant and equipments, intangible ¥ OMRLRE BREEE -EATERS
assets, statutory deposits, deposits paid and other assets are BEftiEe Eﬁﬂﬁ&)ﬂkﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁiﬁlﬂ
allocated based on where the assets are located. 7 e
Information about major customers EEEZRZEH
During the year, two of the customers located in the PRC FRN MEREFPENES D AMER
accounted for 15.4% and 59.8% of the Group’s revenue in EBUWEE15.4%K%59.8% £ F D R A
amount of HK$4,517,263 and HK$17,459,632 respectively, 4,517,263/ 7T 217,459,632/ 7T » T 2K
which were from segments of trading of electronic student BEHEETFE2LBMRELZEZERZD
cards and school safety products and sales of motor vehicles HBRHEETBERRHRERE 25 -

and provision of agency service respectively.

During 2016, one of the customers located in the PRC RZE—RF —RREFENESG
accounted for 50.3% of total revenue of the Group in the REBE B U EE50.3% & 58 54,475,784
amount of HK$4,475,784, which was from the segment of BT EXQ}EL\Mﬁépﬂ&Eﬂﬂﬁk
provision of stock information and research services. 2L
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7.

OTHER INCOME AND LOSS, NET 7. HtAREBIEEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$ HK$
I 7T
Other income Hi A
Central Clearing and Settlement System HREE R XKW RF ([FHR
(“CCASS”) fee income HEHES])EBRRKRA 17,703 16,703
Handling fee income FEBWRA 52,906 42,679
Interest income on bank deposits IRITIF KA B WA 558,149 558,706
Other interest income! HAh F B U AL 197,387 3,100,262
Dividend income from BIEEERHFHREWMA
securities held for trading 867,288 6,146,271
Sundry income MIEUA 684,380 828,632
2,377,813 10,693,253
Other gain or loss, net Hibhd =i #5185 E
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEFAERmZ
through profit or loss (Note 24) eREE (Hik24)
— Unrealised fair value losses -~ REBEBLHEEZ
on securities trading NEEEBIE (34,756,990) (30,108,514)

— Realized losses on trading of securities

— Exchange gain

— Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

— Written off of property,
plant and equipment

—HEESYOEREA

— B X s

—HEDE BERRE
Sk A

— M R RREHE

(3,478,154)
218,039

(279,964)

(71,729,841)
226,392

(240,536)

(497,136)

(38,297,069)

(102,349,635)

(35,919,256)

(91,656,382)

! The other interest income of the Group are arising from the loan

receivables from third parties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE_-Z

—tFEtA=t—RALEEE

FINANCE COSTS 8. MIERF
2017 2016
—F—tF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
T BT
Interest expenses on bank borrowings WITER T EHZ 229,303 289,184
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. KRFIEHAEE
2017 2016
—ET—t%F —E—RF
HK$ HK$
I BT
Loss before income tax has been bR TS T AT ES 18
arrived at after charging: 2R N5 EIE
Auditors’ remuneration % 26 B &
— audit services —BZR 470,000 450,000
- other services — E b AR 75 150,000 70,000
Foreign exchange difference, net fEHEZRFE (218,039) (226,392)
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEYEZRELHENES
rented premises 1,770,705 4,790,470
Legal and professional fee FEEREEER 976,291 4,038,529
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 10. EEwEAMAX
2017 2016
—E—tF —TE—REF
HK$ HK$
I BT
Wages and salaries TEEHS 18,826,906 20,466,921
Share options granted to BETESREE 2BRE
Directors and employees 877,444 1,688,031
Pension costs — defined contribution RIRE A
schemes —EREHREE 250,241 229,451
19,954,591 22,384,403
Less: Reversal of share option R ¢ A B A R O LA R
expenses upon the forfeiture 7 [B] B s B B =2
of share options - (4,530,000)
Employee benefits expenses including BRERFAL
Director’s remuneration BIEEFRE 19,954,591 17,854,403
ERESEEEARAT | —ZE—tEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. EEREETHAEMNE
EMOLUMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_FT—t&E+-A=+—HILEE
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances, contributions
and benefits to pension
Name of Director Notes Fees in kind scheme Total
(Note (i)
Fe
EER  BHestEz
EEkE i g BYAE EEHR @t
(BEEG)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT oo
Executive Directors WiTES
Mr. Wang Jiawei IREEE
(Chairman and Chief Executive) (ERRITHEH) - 1,800,000 18,000 1,818,000
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui REfgat - 600,000 18,000 618,000
Non-executive Director ERTEE
Mr. Liu Runtong AEmLE - - - -
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers
Ik (i) 877,444 877,444

Independent non-executive BIFHITES

Directors
Professor Zhang Benzheng RAEHE 130,000 - - 130,000
Mr. Li Jianxing ZEIRE 125,000 - - 125,000
Professor Chen Shu Wen BRI 120,000 - - 120,000

375,000 3,277,444 36,000 3,688,444

148 Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017



11.

NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—AIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. EERFETHAENE (£)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2016 HEZZT—R"F+_A=1+—HLEFE
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances, contributions
and benefits to pension
Name of Director Notes Fees in kind scheme Total
(Note (i)
e
RER RKEFEZ
E e i e B BEHX @t
(M3EG)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Wang Jiawei IREEE
(Chairman and Chief Executive) (ERRITHEH) - 1,800,000 18,000 1,818,000
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui REBLT - 600,000 18,000 618,000
Mr. Chen Li BAHEE (ii) 600,000 - - 600,000
Mr. Chen Li BhEE (ii) - (4,530,000) - (4,530,000)
Non-executive Director kBTES
Mr. Liu Runtong Ebaliohs - - - -
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers
kA 0] - 1,688,031 - 1,688,031

Independent non-executive BILFHITES

Directors

Professor Zhang Benzheng RAEHE 130,000 - - 130,000

Mr. Li Jianxing FROLE 125,000 - - 125,000

Professor Chen Shu Wen [F3 D€ €5 120,000 - - 120,000

975,000 (441,969) 36,000 569,031

Note: Bt 5 -

(i) Benefits in kind include share options. During the year ended 31 (i) EMAmpEERE-BHE-_ZS—tF R
December 2017 and 2016, 20,000,000 and 20,000,000 share options ZE-RF+ZA=+—HLEFE 2F
with an aggregate fair value of HK$877,444 and HK$1,688,031 were B4 877,444 7t 121,688,031 L 2
granted respectively by the Group to the Director of the Company under 20,000,0001% 20,000,000 i A% #e FA 2 52
the Company’s share option scheme. EREADE 2 BRESFEME TARRE

S

(ii) Resigned on 1 July 2016. (ii) RZT—RFEELA—HEE-
Mr. Chen Li resigned position of director and the vesting condition on PR A S BT 2 BRI B R > SR B S
share option has not been satisfied, his entitlement of the share option has REBR BN L ERENEFNNEE
been forfeited and reversed through profit and loss for the year ended 31 T-XNE+-A-+—BIFEERD LK
December 2016. RiE BB EE .
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

11.

12,

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

“Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind” paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments paid in respect
of those persons’ other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2016: Nil). None of the
directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2016: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include three (2016: three) directors of
whose remuneration are set out in Note 11.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2016:
Nil).

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two
(2016: two) individuals are as follows:

11.

12.

EFERIETHBAEME (&)

ENHTEFTIRTABZ[FHE 2
BREDNZE] —MAREZFIALE
IR AR B N E B B AR R RO H A AR
PSS B &

FRNAEEVTERMESINERES
YEAWR S| hBE 3 N B AN & B B 2 4R B
HIERBBEE (ZT—RNF &) -F
N TEEEREXRZRETAHS
(ZZ—RF #&)-

AEmEHAL
FAXAEBRERSFALTERE=4
“E-RFZREE REZHE
ESEE R

FA-AEETERALEERSHFALX
ERB S EARSIINE R B AR E
6 2 SRR SR S RE R B
FE)

e
—ZE—R

HM MR ( ZZT—/5F @) AR
SHRENT

2017 2016

—F—tF —T—RF

HK$ HK$

I BT

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMm#ME 5,160,000 5,160,000
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIfH 3R 36,000 36,000
5,196,000 5,196,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—AIFE

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) 12.
The emoluments of the two (2016: two) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

AemmHmAL (&)
M (—B—AF Bl BEHALZ
B 402 34 T 51 96

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

Number of Number of

individual individual

HK$ T A& N
Nil to 1,000,000 Z£ %=1,000,000 - -
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,00121,500,000 - -
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,00122,000,000 - -
2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,001 £2,500,000 1 1
2,500,001 to 3,000,000 2,500,001 £3,000,000 1 1

13.

INCOME TAX INCOME

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Hong Kong for the year. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial statements
as the Group incurred a tax loss for the year (2016: Nil). PRC
Enterprise Income tax has been provided at the rate from 15%
to 25% (2016: 25%) on the assessable profits of the PRC
subsidiaries arising in or derived from PRC for the year.

In accordance with the “Catalogue of Encouraged Industries in
Western Region” approved by the State Council, as one of the
subsidiaries engaged in an encouraged business in Chongging,
it enjoys the reduced PRC Enterprise Income tax rate of 15%.

13.

Frg Bl A
EENEHRAFERETBELENR
BEB 2 G ERBEFEIER E16.5%

ZE—RF:16.5%)FTE-AAEE
FNEEMBEE BRI EHRE
HEBFESRIELBEBE(ZE—RF:
m|) PRCEMSHRIOARTRHNE A
RIFAEAB IR B B8 ERT R A
H15%E25% ( ZZ—RF 1 25% ) OFR
TETR -

Rz BB A 2 (AR SR E
XBE) HP - XMBRARIREED
RETEZMHZEBMERY WERLE
SR EEHE15% °

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
T 7 TT
Current income tax: BUEAFTS 1
Current tax on profits for the year AR A B ER B IR
- PRC Enterprise Income tax —FEEMSR 58,965 -
Total current tax BIHAFH T8 48 %8 58,965 -
Deferred tax income (Note 31): BIEFSH (MIEE31) -
Current year KEE (2,604,459) (32,879,188)
Income tax income FriS U A (2,545,494) (32,879,188)
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13.

INCOME TAX INCOME (continued)

Under the current general provision of the PRC enterprise
income tax law and published tax circulars, deferred taxation
has been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the withholding tax that would be payable on
unremitted earnings of a PRC associate of the Group at
the rate of 10%. As at 31 December 2016, the deferred
taxation provided for the above-mentioned deferred tax of
approximately HK$2,333,085. As the management determined
to make full impairment on the interests in PRC associate
in the current year, the deferred tax liabilities attributable to
withholding tax on unremitted earnings of the PRC associate
made previously had been fully reversed during the year.

As at 31 December 2017, the unrecognized temporary
differences in respect of the unremitted earnings of a PRC
associate attributable to the Group is RMB15,791,236.

No deferred tax liabilities have been recognized in respect
of the unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries because the
Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of these
subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2017
and 2016, the unrecognized temporary differences in respect
of the unremitted earnings of the PRC subsidiaries attributable
to the Group are RMB57,679,623 and RMB60,315,667
respectively.
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13. FIRHKA (&)

REFEIEMETEZRIT -RIEX
RETEZBHEL CRER TR
REPRAKE 2 H B E QR ZKE
H 2 M ZA3Z10% 2 T R Gk 2 I B E
HEERBEREE - R _F—RF+_A
=+—R e LR R AR ETR IR
#92,333,0858 7T - N B IR ERTE XA
FEMRRPEEEQAFTNERIELEE
BB - Z BB BB R R H R E &
FMFrET R EEHELEHRIBERED
RERED -

RZEB—+F+_A=+—0 k¥R
BETEBE N2 AEEFAEER
MzERFERABARK15791,2367T ¢

AR AEBFRESNZENBRARZ
EEK BEBEEREIFEITIERTR
R W ERFRBEMB AR 2K
ERBEMNEREEHBEEE KN2F
—+tFRZE-RF+A=+—H8"
RERBBEAEB 2 KEMB AR 2
RELZBF2EREZESF AARE
57,679,623 & A R#60,315,6677T ©



13.

NoTes 1o THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX INCOME (continued)

A MW R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

13. FIRHKA (&)

The tax on the Group’ loss before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate
applicable to losses of the consolidated entities as follows:

WEAEARGAER BB B R

B oAEBE RS HABIEH AR
BReENE:

2017 2016

—F—tHF —E—RF

HK$ HK$

B IT 78 TT

Loss before income tax

B P 15 154 A1 /B9 18

(138,848,753)

(277,782,737)

Tax calculated at company’s domestic
tax rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%)

Tax effects of:
— Different tax rates of subsidiaries

BN T A B 2R 16.5%
(ZE—RF:16.5%)
STE A

UTHEBZHBEE:
—REMBDEERES 2

(22,910,044)

(45,834,151)

operating in other jurisdictions WEBRAR .z TR E (8,075,400) (12,935,058)
- Income not subject to tax — AR A (8,214) (1,107,133)
- Expenses not deductible —SEBIBE TR

for tax purposes -3 14,394,607 7,508,549
— Others —H A 1,427,236 22,417
— Unused tax losses not recognized —RERZADARKEE 9,014,491 19,778,241
— Tax loss not allowable —NEF R 2 BIEEE 1,674,328 1,343,972
— Prior year’s tax losses —FREBAZBEFE

utilized in this year s EE (523,051) -
— Temporary differences not provided —REBECERER (116,537) -
— Reversal of withholding tax — B BRI (2,422,910) (1,651,025)
Income tax income FriS B A (2,545,494) (32,879,188)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company are based on the

following data:

14. BREBE

RRABHREANEBEERERN B ERE
TIRBIA T BUERRT &

2017 2016
—FT—tF —T—RF
HK$ HK$
T &I
Loss  CE]
Loss for the purposes of basic and ARAESRELRR
diluted loss per share HEEiEcEE (136,497,133)  (244,075,407)
2017 2016
—FT—+tF —E—RF
Number of shares AV =]
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January and »—A—H X
31 December +—A=+—B82
BEITEBR 6,498,958,120  6,498,958,120

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for calculating basic

At EERERR
BMERBEZOBITEAR

and diluted loss per share (Note) it e (BH3E) 6,498,958,120 6,498,958,120
2017 2016

—E—tF ZE-RF

HK$ HK$

T 7 TT

Loss per share ! (0.0210) (0.0376)
Diluted loss per share F#HEEE (0.0210) (0.0376)

Note:

B 5 -

HE-_T—+FR-F-—A"FTA=+—HIEF
ENESRETEEZ ETERSAARNHE-T
—tERZE-ANFt A=t BILFEZKRT
ERERERETE BT, 8RERE-

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 did not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options
outstanding during the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 since their
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—AIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS 15. Y% - HBERRIE
Land and Office
Plant and buildings Leasehold equipment Computer Motor

machinery (Note 1) improvements  and furniture equipment vehicles Total

THREF BAERE
BERRE (Ha1)  HENERE &R £ R RE act
HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$
AT BT BT BT AL B BT

As at 1 January 2016 R=F-"¥-B-H

Cost B 917,846 40,327,455 3,548,134 18,781,976 479,300 6,396,429 70,451,140
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (280,805) (7,931,065) (2,878,713) (13,434,410 (460,079) (4,755,007 (29,740,079)
Net book amount EHFE 637,041 32,396,390 669,421 5,347,566 19,221 1,641,422 40,711,061

Year ended 31 December 2016 ~ HBE-F-*%&

+-A=t+-BLEE
Opening net book amount BNREEE 637,041 32,396,390 669,421 5,347,566 19,221 1,641,422 40,711,061
Additions NE - - 235,824 2,694,374 60,022 - 2,990,220
Currency translation difference EBERER (31,513) - (15,795) (266,383) - (56,401) (370,092)
Disposals and written off i Rl - - (117,912) (587,186) - (128,647) (833,745)
Depreciation charge FEEX (76,726 (1,613,009) (694291)  (3,524,959) (16,984) (683,507)  (6,709,566)
Closing net book amount IR EFE 428,802 30,783,291 77,247 3,663,412 62,259 772,867 35,787,878
As at 31 December 2016 RZB-"%
+-RA=+-H
Cost A 861,157 40,327,455 962,626 14,926,695 539,322 5,642,314 63,249,569
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE (432,355 (9,544,164) (875379)  (11,263,283) (477,063 (4,869447)  (27,461,691)
Net book amount REFE 428,802 30,783,291 77,247 3,663,412 62,259 772,867 35,787,878
Year ended 31 December 2017  HE-F-t%&
+ZA=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount HNEAEE 428802 30,783,291 77,047 3,663,412 62,259 772,867 35,787,878
Additions "E - - 2,061,341 1,266,507 90,720 1,210,885 4,629,453
Currency translation difference EBERER 16,509 - 71,410 182,004 - 67,710 337,633
Disposals and written off HE R - - - (293,087) - - (293,087)
Impairment loss (Note 2) RERZ (F2) (287,574) - (2,471) (676,415) - - (966,460)
Depreciation charge TERE (157,737) (1,613,099) (318,240) (2,915,796) (48,440) (327,572) (5,380,884)
Closing net book amount IR FE - 29,170,192 1,889,287 1,226,625 104,539 1,723,890 34,114,533
As at 31 December 2017 R-F-tE+-R=+-H
Cost A 927,024 40,327,455 3122176 13,806,510 630,042 7104235 65,918,342
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERRESE
impairment (927,024) (11,157,263  (1,232,889)  (12,579,885) (525503  (5380,345)  (31,803,809)
Net book amount FHFE - 29,170,192 1,889,287 1,226,625 104,539 1,723,890 34,114,533
Note: Bt 5T
1. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, land and buildings in Hong Kong 1. RZE—+FRZF-—R"F+ZA=+—
under long lease with a carrying value of HK$29,170,192 (2016: B REEBEAOREESEAREES
HK$30,783,291) was pledged to secure the bank borrowings of the Group 29,170,192t (= Z — /X 4 : 30,783,291
(Note 30). B2 T REFEREANBAEEY
SRATIE B IR (FIFE30) ©
2. The impairment loss was relaled to assets that have become obsolete. 2. BMEBESREESSRICER-
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16.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. B EE

Contractual
customer
Software Trading rights relationship Total
B X5 EHNEFRf st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2016 R=-FB-R"E—-H—H
Cost A 28,819,759 3,224,000 218,582,540 250,626,299
Accumulated amortization and ZEHEAERAE
impairment (11,558,839)  (3,223,998)  (93,191,960)  (107,974,797)
Net book amount REFE 17,260,920 2 125,390,580 142,651,502
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-E-~¥
+ZHA=+-HILEE
Opening net book amount BREHE 17,260,920 2 125,390,580 142,651,502
Currency translation difference ERBEER (314,888) - (2,287,479) (2,602,367)
Amortization charge (Notes (i, ii)) By (M G0)) (1,974,295) - (15,387,888) (17,362,183
Impairment loss (Note (i) A (P EE i) (14,971,737) - (107,715213) (122,686,950
Closing net book amount R EREFE - 2 - 2
As at 31 December 2016 R-B-R"E+-A=+-H
Cost A 26,528,746 3,224,000 201,996,340 231,749,086
Accumulated amortization and ZEHHAERAE
impairment (26,528,746)  (3,223,998)  (201,996,340)  (231,749,084)
Net book amount REHE - 2 - 2
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-E-tf¥
+ZHA=+—-HILEE
Opening net book amount HREHE - 2 - 2
Addition RE 100,713 - - 100,713
Currency transaction difference ERHEES 3,785 - - 3,785
Closing net book amount HRERE F(E 104,498 2 = 104,500
As at 31 December 2017 R-B—-t&E+=-A=+-H
Cost A 26,633,244 3,224,000 201,996,340 231,853,584
Accumulated amortization and A EERAE
impairment (26,528,746) (3,223,998)  (201,996,340)  (231,749,084)
Net book amount REFE 104,498 2 - 104,500
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The amortization charge for the year is presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income separately.

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(il

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the software mainly represents X2
BN RS A8 HV2.0 (Registration No.: 2013SR144807), X 2 BRI
L8R F & #FV2.0 (Registration No.: 2013SR144929), X £ i & (i bR
M IEEHV2.0 (Registration No: 2013SR145090) and 2.4G A JERFIDE
BZ% @ AR EF (Registration No: 2014SR037656) with the estimated
useful life of 10 years.

The contractual relationships with customers were acquired through the
acquisition of FIITT K EBE I BRAF (transliterated as Shenzhen
Star Technology Co., Ltd) in year 2014. The management of the Group
reviewed the expected useful life of the contractual customer relationships
and determined that the useful life assessment is 8 years. The contractual
customer relationships are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method over the said
expected useful life of the customer relationships.

In prior year, for the purpose of impairment testing of the contractual
relationships with customers and the software, those intangible assets
have been allocated to a CGU representing the operating activities of )&
YT AEBEHBRAF (transliterated as Shenzhen Star Technology
Co., Ltd). An impairment test of these intangible assets was carried out
by management based on value-in-use calculation and with reference to
business valuation conducted by an independent professional valuer.

Based on the impairment test performed, an impairment of
RMB92,750,000, which is equivalent to HK$107,715,213) on contractual
relationships with customers was made during year 2016 due to
unsatisfactory performance of the business.

6. BE&E (&

AREEBHEAXNEEBaEMEE
WABRKANEBZS -

GEE

0] RZBE—tFRZTE—R"F+_A=+—
B #MHEXEBRTMREF & EM4V2.0
(sE 4 5% : 2013SR144807) * X EBR
RESRSFEEMHEV2.0 (EMEEN:
2013SR144929) ~ X £ i 7& i1 iR 75 48 uh 8%
HVv2.0( s 4R 5% : 2013SR145090) &%2.4G
BIRRFIDHENE 25 # AR B (GEMRAR 5%
2014SR037656) ' st Al E M EFEA AT ©

(i) BHAFPZENANBEREBNR_FT—HFE
WHEARIIMREBRRERRFES A%
EEREEMNANEPBAENENERSF
B WARECAFHRFERNF - EHNEP
AR AR R IR A AN R R AT HE 8K D1 BR - B EH TH
REAREREPRRR LR BRI R+ 5t

o
(=1
>

@iy FPBEFE RENEPBARUMZRE
BEME ZFBEVEEEDEERR A
TREBHEARARKEEH 2 RSESL
B -EREERBEEMAEAEFELLZA
BYBEMEMETZEBGHEYLELE
BEETTRAER A -

BRETRENS RZZE—XFARA
HREBEKRETEEBRTFANBEERER
WEZ &8 A ARK2,750,0007T (HHE R
107,715,213% 7T) ©
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16.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iv)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the recoverable amount of the contractual
relationships with customers and software are determined based on value-
in-use calculations by preparing cash flow projections of the relevant CGU
derived from the financial forecast approved by the management. The
projected cash flows reflected the expected effects of the change of the
navigating chips used in the products mentioned in above paragraph. The
discount rate is the key assumptions used by the Group to determine the
recoverable amount of the assets and CGU. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to cash flow projections in year 2016 is 29.14%, which is arrived
after the adjustment of the Weighted Average Cost of equity to pre-tax
rate and cash flows beyond three years period are extrapolated without
considering any growth rate. The discount rate used is based on market
risk free interest rates adjusted for inflation differentials and also include
the debt premium, market risk premium, specific risk on intangible assets,
gearing corporate tax rate and asset beta.

As at 31 December 2017, the three-year-period profit guarantee specified
in the acquisition agreement of &I T X £ @EHE B R A 7 (transliterated
as Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd.) signed by the Group and the
vendors could not be achieved (see note 20).

The trading rights as at 31 December 2017 represent two (2016: two)
trading rights on the Stock Exchange and one (2016: one) trading right on
the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (“HKFE”).
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16. B &E (&
MaE: (48)

(ii)

(iv)

(&)

RIE-—RF+_A=+—H EBEEFZH
EHRREBRANAIKESFEIRIEEEE
Frit/EMBIEAREARREELEMLD
Rene8BRAETEREEME B RS
MERRE SR FRIRDWERMABEHE
e AEBTANIERXBERE
FOPETEERASEABEMZ KD S
R T R"ERLRERR BB
REB29.14%  THEER B EINEF D
KAZBRAMNERERI =ZF 2 RRTEE
EMERBNRSRE - ABZBBRETIR
BEHSERRANEGE RBRERENEE
EBEE THRREE BPEERFIR
o EECEREREEREMHE-

RZB—+tF+-_A=+—HB HAEEK
BEAETHERYMREANBEERARN
BHEFAIN=FHRFREFEZEDEE
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STATUTORY DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS 17. AERERHAMEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$ HK$
AT 7T
Hong Kong Securities Clearing BEERREHEBR QA
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) ([BEBHEE])
— Contribution fund deposit —REEREZS 100,000 100,000
— Admission fee deposit — W EIZRE 100,000 100,000
The Stock Exchange of BEABEZTZHERAA
Hong Kong Limited
— Compensation fund deposit —-BEESES 100,000 100,000
— Fidelity fund deposit —-ERESESE 100,000 100,000
- Stamp duty deposit — iR e 5,000 5,000
The Securities and Futures BEABFNMPEEH
Commission of Hong Kong ERELEEw
— Deposits for responsible officers -BEAEBES® 100,000 100,000
Shenzhen Qianhai First China FINEG E E R E @
International Commodities RS LERAA
Exchange Centre Limited
— Reserve fund deposit —REEEES - 554,935
Guangdong Previous Metals BEREESCBRSFLERRAF
Exchange Limited (“PMEC”) (BB Z%0])
- Reserve fund deposit —REERES 1 1
505,001 1,059,936

zEepeEsRLAE | —2—+tx228 159



NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

RHBATZRE
ATRR-ZZ—tFER-F—XF+=
A=Z+—RZAARAETEWEBARASA

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18.
The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016:

f

Place of incorporation/ Principal activities Particulars of

establishment and kind of and place of issued share capital/ Interest
Name legal entit operations registered capital held
aE AL, I B R ERTRE/
2z EEBRER TEEBREEDY at iR A 1R RAEELD
Sinofortune Financial Holdings British Virgin Islands, Limited Investment holding 611,700 ordinary shares 100%
(BVI) Limited liability company of US$1 each
(formerly known as First China
Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited)
Sinofortune Financial Holdings RERZES BRAF REER 611, 7000 B EE 100%
(BVI) Limited 1ET2ERR
( B 78 AFirst China Financial
Holdings (BVI) Limited )
Stockmartnet Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability ~ Securities trading in HK$3 100%
company Hong Kong
ERHEARLA B BRARA REBUEEFEE 3BT 100%
Sinofortune Securities Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability ~ Securities and futures HK$67,000,000 100%
(Formerly known as First China company brokerage and
Securities Limited) securities margin
financing services in
Hong Kong
EBEFERAA BB BRAA F%ﬁéfﬁé%uﬁ& 67,000,000/ 7T 100%
(ABREEEFERAA) R
BFRECHERS
Sinofortune Processing Services  Hong Kong, Limited liability ~ Provision of a trading HK$2 100%
Limited company platform in Hong
(Formerly known as First China Kong
Processing Services Limited)
Sinofortune Processing Services &8 ' AR A A REERER ST A 2B 100%
Limited
(#178 AFirst China Processing
Services Limited )
IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Limited Investment holding 1ordinary share 100%
liability company of US$1 each
IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited EBEX#S ARAE  REER 1REREE 100%
1ET 2 ERR
Sinofortune Global Wealth Hong Kong, Limited liability ~ Provision of wealth HK$6,000,000 100%
Management Limited company management
(Formerly known as services in Hong
First China Global Wealth Kong
Management Limited)
ERRIERERAA BE BRAR REBRHME 6,000,0007% 7T 100%
(RERBERITEN ERRH%
BRRA)
Sinofortune Property Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability ~ Property holding HK$1 100%
(Formerly known as First China company
Estates Company Limited)
ERMEBRAA BB BRAA RENER 18T 100%
(ABREEEXRRAA)
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NoTes 1o THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE_-Z

Place of incorporation/

18. RMIBATIZIRE (&)

Principal activities

Particulars of

A MR R M

—tFEtA=t—RALEEE

establishment and kind of and place of issued share capital/ Interest
Name legal entit operations registered capital held
aE WAL IL, /B 3L i B % EBTRE/
& EEERER TREBREEDY HAMBRAFE  REED
Aceview International Limited British Virgin Islands, Limited Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100%
liability company of US$1 each
HRERERAA HERREE BRAA REZR IRERAEE 100%
1ETZERR
GoHi Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Limited Investment holding 35,000 ordinary shares 100%
liability company of US$1 each
GoHi Holdings Limited RERLEE BRRA  REER 35,000l R EE 100%
1ETZERAR
BEEAZACFRINABLRE PRC, Foreign wholly-owned  Provision of stock Registered capital 100%
(transliterated as First China enterprise information and of RMB40,000,000
Securities Consultancy research services in
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd) the PRC
BEZEFZA(RINERRA  HE-IFHBEGE RPBERERZEEAR AU 100%
7R A AR 40,000,000
FINEXRFHELBEBERAD PRC, Limited liability Investment holding Registered capital 100%
(transliterated as Shenzhen company and provision of RMB3,000,000
Sky Picture Culture of development
Communications Company and design of TV
Limited) (Note 1) programs and
artwork in the PRC
RYNEXTZRERBERAT HE BRAA R ERE 2R AMERAR 100%
MHEE1) E'-ﬁ%”‘&uxﬁr@%ﬁﬂﬂ ] A K. #3,000,0007C
REM
RINEERZBEREERADF PRC, Limited liability Development and sales Registered capital 100%
(transliterated as Shenzhen company of school safety of RMB7,000,000
First China School Safety products
Network Technology Company
Limited)
AINEERLBERRERRA  FE BRAF FERHEREZ 2E AMEXE 100%
M AR #7,000,0007T
RN EBRERMERA PRC, Limited liability Development and Registered capital 100%
(transliterated as Shenzhen company sales of software of RMB10,000,000
Wealth Alliance Networking for information
Company Limited) (“Wealth network equipment,
Alliance”) (Note 1) terminal products
and calculators in the
PRC
AINEBRERMERD A mE BRAA WPIE* % RHE A AMEXR 100%
(I=81) (M) B ES R AR ¥10,000,0007T
ERLEE
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RMIBATZ®E (&)

Place of incorporation/ Principal activities Particulars of

establishment and kind of and place of issued share capital/ Interest

Name legal entit operations registered capital held
aEM AL PRI B R ERTRE

% EEERER TREBREEDY A MRS FAER

AT REBREERAA PRC, Limited liability Trading of electronic Registered capital 100%
(transliterated as Shenzhen Star ~ company student cards of RMB20,100,000

Technology Co., Ltd)

RYTREBRRBERRA hEARAA HEETEAR AMERRARE 100%
20,100,0007T

FYBEEREECBLEHERDE PRC, Limited liability Precious metals Registered capital 80%

(transliterated as Shenzhen company brokerage and spot of RMB20,000,000  (2016: 55%)
Guoyin Brilliant Precious Metals trading (of which RMB10,000,000
Limited) (“Guoyin”) (Note 2) has been paid up as at
31 December 2017)

REBREHECBIEEERAT RE ARAF ERBELERBRERS AMERE 80%

(TBIR]) (MEE2)

EERAMEEBRESER AR PRC, Limited liability Sales of motor vehicles
(transliterated as Chongqmg company and provision of
Sheng Yu Hong Jia International agency services

Trading Company Limited)
(“Sheng Yu Hong Jia") (Not 3)

EFRAAEERESBRAR B BRAA HEERIEMR
(TaaE]) (M) RIERE

Note 1:  The equity interests in these subsidiaries are directly or indirectly
held by nominees on behalf of the Group and the Group holds 100%
effective interest in the subsidiary.

Note 2:  The proportion of ownership interests held by the Group interests in
Guoyin has been changed from 55% to 80% during the year (see note
36).

Note 3:  This subsidiary was formed on 2 August 2017.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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AE#20,000,0007T  (2016: 55%)
(& A E#10,000,0007T
RZZE—+F

+-A=t—HE&R)

Registered capital of 90%
RMB150,000,000
(of which RMB100,000,000
has been paid up as at
31 December 2017)
AMEXAR 90%
AR #150,000,0007T
( &+ AR%100,000,0007T
RZT—LF

+-A=t—HE&R)

Mgt BRBARKAKREEEIMEREZ
EMBARZEAERD RAKERE
X I B A B 100% 2 R A 2 o

fieEe . FAREERFEBEROESELHIR55%
H580% (R HIFE36)

MizEs: WHBARR -_Z—-—tFNAZHK

X o

RN ESA/UAKRERENEE
BREBFEINBRAR -EERA
FOIEAL KB A B 2 BRHE EBR R R
RITEK e
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of
subsidiaries

The Group has the following commitments relating to its
subsidiaries:

18.

RMBASZRE (&)
ARMBASI ZRBERNAGR

AEBREBEEBEMB AR Z AT A

=

Commitment to provide capital funding
for subsidiaries

BTHBLRRES 2 RE A

o

k=1

2017 2016
—E—tF TE—RF
HK$ HK$
T BT
68,167,440 3,329,610

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there are no contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the subsidiaries.

Material non-controlling interest

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December
2017 is HK$14,903,119 (2016: HK$6,215,475), of which
HK$2,654,964 (2016: HK6,215,092) is relating to Guoyin and
HK$12,248,155 (2016: Nil) is relating to Sheng Yu Hong Jia.
The non-controlling interests in respect of other subsidiary is
not material.

Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interests

The following table lists out the information relating to Guoyin
and Sheng Yu Hong Jia, the two subsidiaries of the Group
which have a material non-controlling interests (NCI). The
summarised financial information presented below represents
the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

R-F—tFR-B-AF+=A
=+—A LREBARERHEAR
2T AR

BEXIFEIERERS
RZE—tEtF+ A=+ —H3kE
A% ¥ %5 48 18 214,903,119 1 (=
T — N4 :6,215,475%F t)  E &
B 68 fE (52,654,9648 T (=& — X
F:6,215,092/%8 71 ) I B% A1 5k 32 FE MY
12,248,155 BT (ZE—RF H) A
BEAMIEARRIEERERL T E
7{0

FEXHBRERZHBLASZHEE
HHTE
TREIIANEE R E A EANFFEBE
m (GRS ) 2 M8 A 7] B8R & a8
AEhERZBER e TX 25 2 M AR
BRRER QB EE HA 2 KIE -
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RMBATZHRE (&
Material non-controlling interest (continued) BEXFEERER (F)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with FEAXFEREDZHBLAGZHEE
material non-controlling interests (continued) FIHFE (&)
Summarized statement of financial position HBEMIHEHZE
Sheng Yu
Hong Jia Guoyin Guoyin
Bl 4R B4R
2017 2017 2016
-t -t —E-RF
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT AT
Current k)|
Assets BE 174,002,368 19,524,210 18,341,861
Liabilities =1 (53,370,110) (337,086) (301,625)
Total current net assets MEBEERFE 120,632,258 19,187,124 18,040,236
Non-current EI5 )|
Assets BE 1,849,297 67,296 304,755
Liabilities afE o - _
Total non-current net assets FERBEELEE 1,849,297 67,296 304,755
Net assets EEFE 122,481,555 19,254,420 18,344,991
Non-controlling interests R 12,248,155 2,654,964 6,215,475
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RMBATZ/E (&)
Material non-controlling interest (continued) BEXFEERER (F)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with FEAXFEREDZHBLAGZHEE
material non-controlling interests (continued) FIHFE (&)
Summarized statement of profit or loss and other Bam RAEMEEHKAREXEZE

comprehensive income

Sheng Yu

Hong Jia Guoyin Guoyin
BganhE BlR R
2017 2017 2016
-t —®B-t5 —T-REF
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Revenue W= 21,606,330 - 1,539,763
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETEBARE, (EB) 2,912,736 (494,309) (1,840,315)
Income tax expense FEMAXS (58,965) - -
Profit/(loss) for the year ERFIE/ (B8E) 2,853,771 (494,309) (1,840,315)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hthzm (BE) /A 35,783 (753,128) 81,577
Total comprehensive income/(10ss) AU/ (BEB)EE 2,889,554 (1,247,437) (1,758,738)

Total comprehensive income/(10ss) EPREFERES L
allocated to non-controlling interest 2EBA/ (BE)HE 288,955 (241,852) (791,432)

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests & 3E ¥ AR # 25 R 2 A% 2. - - -
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

18. RMIBATIZIRE (&

Material non-controlling interest (continued) BEXFEERER (F)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with FEAXFEREDZHBLAGZHEE
material non-controlling interests (continued) FIHFE (&)
Summarized statement of cash flows HermeEkimE
Sheng Yu
Hong Jia Guoyin Guoyin
BiABE IR ElR
2017 2017 2016
—T-tf —E—-tF —T-XF
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Net cash (used in)/generated from WETES (B EEZ
operating activities ReFE (100,095,933) 9,873,398 (6,227,643)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES (BA) /EEZ
investing activities BeFE (1,035,593) 4,858 (235,824)
Net cash from financing activities RETHELZHEFE 119,592,000 = -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RekH&EEEA
cash equivalents #m/ Rl ) FE 18,460,474 9,878,256 (6,463,467)
Cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#] 2R ¢ ZEHEH - 8,285,985 15,415,001
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ERE& v F % 23,576 633,305 (665,549)
Cash equivalents at end of the year FRzBeEEER 18,484,050 18,797,546 8,285,985

The information above is the amount before inter-company
eliminations.
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. REFEAT ZH#EE

2017 2016

—F—tF —E-RF

HK$ HK$

I BT

Share of net assets (R FEE - 34,944,709

Started from November 2015, there was a suspension on
the business operation of the material associate, Qianhai
First China due to the commodities trading policies review
conducted by the government of Qianhai. Up to present, the
review was still not completed as at the end of the current
reporting period and therefore the business operation of
Qianhai First China had not yet resumed. During the year,
the management determined it is appropriate to make the full
impairment on the interests in these associates because they
do not expect the associate can resume its business activities
in the foreseeable future.

Apart from the above, the accumulated impairment of interests
in associates includes the full impairment on the investments in
respect of B (EE) REMKX ZH LAR QA (transliterated
as First China (Liaoning) Agricultural Products Trading Centre
Company Limited) due to the continuing dormancy of the
associate during the year. The management of the Company
do not expect any active business of these associates in the
foreseeable future.

During the year, the associate named FYI & 8 Hif (= B
fir BB A A (transliterated as Shenzhen Zhongcai Yingtong
Information Technology Company Limited) had been
suspended by the PRC authority. The interests in this associate
had been fully impaired in previous year.

B-ZE-RF+— AL BRAEEA
ETERXZ2BEHRER EBHZ
REANBEENKEEBE I -ZED
REMBERARESIDARTA - B LA
BEEZEBRERNRRE - RAF
T EEERATEEHRTHE AR
SFMABRE AAREBEAZE S
RENA RO BRI EMEXEES -

i

B badtESN R E ARz sz Rat
BEERAHREE (EE)REMRS
FLABERARZKEZEHRE JiH
REAFEEE (EBE)RERRHF L
BERARFEER ARAEEERY
ZBERRNAROKRIEBERE
i

FR-BERRIRYIF M FBESXM
BRAR ERTEBREEDHERN
fRo-ZBENFRAERNANEFEER
BURE -
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19. REFEAT Z#% (&)
R-F—tF+-_A=1+—H0 XKHE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2017 are

as follows: e NRZHBENT
Place of
incorporation/
establishment Particulars of
and kind of issued shares capital/
Name legal entity Principal activities registered capital  Interest held
MR R FRC#TRE/
Z% HREEEREN IEXH AR RAHE i f i i
RIFGEEER AR PRC, Limited Provision of trading platform Registered capital of 38%
RHHLERAT liability company ~ for precious metal and RMB38,000,000
(transliterated as Shenzhen provision of related (of which RMB19,000,013
Qianhai First China International consultancy services has been paid up as
Commaodities Exchange Centre at 31 December 2017)
Limited)
AYFEEERRER hE - BRADA REEEBR ST RTREE HMERA 38%
XHHLERAT B ARS AR #38,000,0007C
(B
AR 19,000,013 2
R_E—+F
TZA=+-B&R)
BE(EE)RERRSHFDL PRC, Limited Sale of agricultural products, Registered capital of 45%
BRAR liability company ~ provision of transportation RMB225,000,000
(transliterated as First China services and e-commerce (of which RMB2,000,000
(Liaoning) Agricultural Products services has been paid up as
Trading Centre Company at 31 December 2017)
Limited)
BE(RE)RERRHPL hE BRAA HERER REEHRBEAN AMERS 45%
BERRA ETRBRSE AR #225,000,0007T
(&% AR ¥2,000,0007C
BER-ZZ—+F
TZA=+-B&R)
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

The above associates are private companies and there is no
quoted market value available.

Commitments in respect of associates
The Group has the following commitments relating to its
associates:

19. FREEE

ATz HEE (F)
LA E AR RBERERGS
B HRERAARR-

A EBERRIESMARRRILE™T
BEEH2E-

ARBE A Z&iE
KEsz&ﬁ*ﬁF‘ﬁﬁHﬁ’*A’“TZJ«(T%

=

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
HK$ HK$
T &L
Commitment to provide capital LTBMERRIBES KA
funding for associates s 289,412,624 268,588,526

Litigation in respect of associates

At 31 December 2017, there is no unresolved legal cases
relating to the contracts disputed with some investors. All
previous legal cases had been settled during the year. The
associate has paid the compensation to some investors and
the related litigation fee in accordance to the related court
judgements.

Individually immaterial associates

Due to the suspension of the two associate’s business,
the management of the Group consider both associates to
be immaterial associates. The Group has interests in two
individually immaterial associates that are accounted for using
the equity method.

EESPEEERAT | =2

BB E AT R Z SRR
R-E—tF+-_A=+—H 8EMD
RBERZWEER? WW@E’J%&;#
FERRNEREMHERARFERIR -
LR REAERIERHIRAE D afx,\
EXRERAAREFAR -

BT EEBHEAT
HR—ABERRZEBER AEHE
MEEERSUEREAR S TERY
ERE - ARERRKAEDEARN
BER T B SN EHEA -
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19.
Individually immaterial associates (continued)
Aggregate information of associates that are not

individually material

REEAB 2 #ExE (&)
BRFEEBREQT (&)
ERTEEHELEZELEH

2017 2016
—FT—tF —T—RF
HK$ HK$
I BT
Aggregate carrying amount after &l 5~ E 28 & AR
impairment of individually immaterial ~ R&RA B EHRERBER 2
associates in the consolidated HBEREE
financial statements - 34,944,709

Aggregate amounts of
the operating loss of
those associates

REBMENRKREERBELZ
HEHE

(16,027,413)

(24,637,447)

Aggregate amounts of translation
reserve arising from translating of the
associate’s financial statements

ESERC R AN Y B E E
MELZER FEETRE

7,805,876

(7,609,592)

Total comprehensive loss

2 HEERARE

(8,221,537)

(32,247,039)
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20. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE 20. FEUsLRK1E

2017 2016

—F—tF AN S

HK$ HK$

AT 7T

At 1 January n—H—H 29,441,448 31,511,100

Currency translation difference BERHRESE - (2,210,532)

Change in fair value NE(EE (13,441,448) 140,880
Shares retrieval from WEEE LB K’

escrow arrangement (16,000,000) -

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H - 29,441,448

The contingent consideration receivable is related to the
acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Limited in year
2014.

The Group made an initial payment for acquisition totaling
RMB16,000,000 (equivalent to HK$19,656,000 at the time
of acquisition) in cash and issued 350,000,000 new shares
in the capital of the Company (the “Consideration shares”) of
which 200,000,000 new shares were subject to the escrow
arrangement according to the profit guarantee requirement as
indicated in the acquisition agreement. Such escrow shares are
kept by the Company’s lawyer.

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, the vendors guaranteed
to the Group that the net profit after tax of Shenzhen Star
Technology Co., Ltd. (based on its audited accounts) for each
of the three financial years ending 31 December 2015, 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2017 shall be as follows:
(i) for the year ending 31 December 2015, not less than
RMB20,000,000; (i) for the year ending 31 December 2016,
not less than RMB30,000,000; (iii) for the year ending 31
December 2017, not less than RMB40,000,000.

ERTEEEABRAR | —ZF—

WS AR B ER T —HFRER
YMmREBHBRARAER-

AEEEURSHZKESEL HEH
A H AR 16,000,0007T (7 U B 8540
& 719,656,000/ 7T ) + W A AN A & f%
7K AR £ 17350,000,0000% F A% 19 ([ (B
BEAD 1) - H #200,000,0000% % A% 1) #5
R IR UL 175 5 R IR PR M FDBR B IR E
XAELTHERR - ZEREBROGHAEAR
AIMRAENFLE o

BEKERE EHARNAEERE
MmMREBRIEERA WAEQI_?
— A+ _A=+—"H ZFT—RHF
+—A=Z+—BEKR=-ZE—+tF+=A
—t+t—HIE=ENBRFESF2BRTE
FANE (BRIFEEEEZERE )T« ()&
E-T-RF+ZA=t+—HILFE:
T AR #20,000,0007T : ()8 =
E—RNF+_A=+—"HIFEE : T
» AR #30,000,0007T: (i E-F
—+F+ZA=F+—HLEFE:TIPR
A R #40,000,0007T °
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20.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE
(continued)

Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd failed to achieve any of
abovementioned profit guarantees. As of 31 December 2017,
none of the ordinary shares of the Company (i.e. 200,000,000
shares of the Company) mentioned above have been released
to the vendors.

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, since the
abovementioned profit guarantee could not be met from year
2015 to 2017 based on the applicable audited or management
accounts of Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd, the vendors
have an option to choose to pay cash settlement or to give
up the ordinary shares kept in an escrow account. As of 31
December 2017, the vendors have confirmed to the Group that
they would give up the 200,000,000 shares, the escrow shares
will then be released to the Group and to be cancelled after 31
March 2018.

The decrease in the fair value of contingent consideration
receivables, during the years ended 31 December 2017,
was due to the decrease in Company’s share price in the
corresponding period. The fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable at 31 December 2016 was based on
the valuations under probability model, which was performed
by an independent professional valuer. The variable and
assumption used in computing the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable are based on the management’s
best estimate. The value of the contingent consideration
receivable varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. As at 31 December 2017, all contingent
consideration receivable has been derecognised as the
vendors have confirmed to the Group that they would give
up the 200,000,000 shares, i.e. the escrow shares with the
corresponding adjustment recognized in “other reserves”.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

20. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE 20. EEWEHANKE (£)
(continued)
Inputs into probability model: BB 2 i N B
Probability
Scenario &R [
Optimistic* “E (B> 20%
Expected* HETE” 75%
Pessimistic* IR=FE* 5%
Company’s share price as at RZE—ARF+ZA=+—H 0.148
31 December 2016* AR PRAE
Company’s share price as at RZE—+F+=—A=+—H 0.080
31 December 2017 KRNBIHEE
* Those inputs are for the valuation as of  * It Z 8 A #UiE
31 December 2016 ERARZE—RET_H
=t+—BZ2@FEE
21. INVENTORIES 21. &
2017 2016
—ET—t%F —E—REF
HK$ HK$
BT 78 T
Finished goods B &h 124,155,521 2,590,324
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NoTes 10 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22, FEWESRMIE

2017 2016
—EF—tF —E-RF
HK$ HK$
T 7T

Amounts receivable arising from TSI TS T R UNGRIA

securities broking:

Margin clients REFEEEF 2,614,525 5,888,186
Cash clients ReEP 4,490,031 5,820,001
Brokers and dealers BHEERHE 6 7

Hong Kong Securities Clearing EEPREEGR AT CFE)
Company Limited (net) 487,628 428,834
Other trade receivables H bW E 5 5RIA 1,831,970 2,449,061
9,424,160 14,586,089
Less: Provision for impairment loss OB EBIERE = (36,000)
Trade receivables, net JEWE 5 5/ IA 5 E 9,424,160 14,550,089

Amounts receivable from margin clients are repayable
on demand, bearing interest at prevailing market rates
and are secured by clients’ pledged securities which are
listed on the Stock Exchange with a total market value of
approximately HK$22,584,000 as at 31 December 2017
(2016: HK$25,580,000). No aged analysis is disclosed as,
in the opinion of the directors, the aged analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of the business of
securities margin financing.
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NoTes 1o THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWk MW

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—AIFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The settlement terms of amounts receivable arising from
securities broking are one or two trade days after the trade
execution date. Except for the amounts receivable from margin
clients as mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30
days.

The trade receivables arising from the trading of electronic
student card and from the trading of motor vehicles are due
immediately from date of billing.

22,

FEWE ZRRIE (&)

RE IR R AL RIS P A PR RN ETT R
5 AR —HMERHHRZMNT R E
AR & B P BRIRIN - R BRIk
R=tTBR-

HEETEABRAEELEZRKES
R RBEHREE HAIRDIH -

The following is an aged analysis of other trade receivables Hith R E 5 IER RS HARIEEREH
based on invoice date at the reporting period: B ZBRERDITIT -

2017 2016
—F—tF —T—RF
HK$ HK$
I T
0-30 days 0%&30H 1,831,970 2,268,463
31-90 days 31290H - -
91-180 days 912180H - 144,598
181-365 days 181%365H - -
Over 365 days 365H A £ - 36,000
1,831,970 2,449,061

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amounts of trade receivables.
Other than the amounts receivable from margin clients, the
Group does not hold any collateral as security in respect of its
trade receivables. There is no recent history of default on the
trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, all other
trade receivables, except for the impaired amounts indicated
below, were not past due.

RBEMRGERE FAEERRJE
WESHBEZEHAE - RRESEFZ
FEMRIRIN REE W Ep LK E 5
IR A E A E R R - b F R
B 5 BRI AT HI R KRS 8% o

RZE—+F+_A=+—HBEK=E
—RNFE+ZA=Z+—H BTXREE
A Z AN FTE H W E 5 5RE
SRR
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22, BWESRIE (&
Movements on the provision of impairment of trade receivables JEWE ZFHIBREREE ZEHB RN
are as follow: ™
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$ HK$
T 7T
At 1 January and at 31 December R—A—BFK+=-A=+—H - 36,000
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade receivables of RZE—ARF+_A=+—H0 4~%£H
HK$36,000 were individually determined to be impaired. 2 JEUN B 5 /I8 36,0008 7T A B & P
B S FRE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are REFEEWE SHFIBEZREEZRATE
denominated in the following currencies: 5 ME -
2017 2016
—F—tF —T—RF
HK$ HK$
T 7 TT
Hong Kong dollars BT 7,592,190 12,137,028
RMB AR 1,831,970 2,413,061
9,424,160 14,550,089

176 Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017



23.

NoTes 10 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, RMB500,000
(equivalent to HK$597,960) of the Group’s loans receivable
were arising from one PRC subsidiary of the Company and
are denominated in RMB. This loan receivable bore interest
at annual effective rate of 1.95%. The Group did not hold
any collateral on these loan receivable. The loan receivable is
expected to be recovered within one year.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, two of the
PRC subsidiaries of the Company lent the amounts of
RMB30,211,000 (equivalent to HK$33,530,283 to some
independent third parties of the loan receivables amounts, of
which RMB14,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,538,180) was
secured by the pledged securities which are listed on Shanghai
Stock Exchange and Shenzhen Stock Exchange and such
securities were transferred to the nominee of the Group and in
his custody. The fair value of such securities was approximately
RMB18,912,300 as at 31 December 2016. As at 31 December
2016, in the opinion of the Company’s directors, the Group
held collateral with value not less than the carrying amount
of the loan receivables. The loan receivables bore interest at
annual effective rate ranged from 2.3% to 18% in previous year.
All these loan receivables had been repaid by the borrowers
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

23.

BERREKRIE
HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=+—H8IHF
€ AREE 2 EWE R ARES500,0007T
(F8E K597,9605% 70) JTh K B AR &l HY
—MHPBENE AR IAAREE %
FEUE IR BB F 5 £1.95%5F B o K
EEWEFZ S RWE TS B EAHKIE
Mo TBHIEWRE RN —F Rk D -

Bz - Z—X"HE+-_A=+—H1t
FE-ARRHME S BHKNB QT
MEFBYUE=ZABEEEAAR
#30,211,0007T (42 & 733,530,283
BN EWRE R EHh ARK
14,000,0007T (8 & 715,538,180/
T)UR EBFELER SR FINEHRR
S LM BRBHIEERR MZEE
FPEBTASEE 2 ARBZALHER
BN -_E—XNE+-_A=+—H &%
EBEHF I NFEHRARK18,912,300
T WRZE—R"F+_A=+—H &
RAEERA FAEEFEEENMR
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BT OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

23. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. BERREWRIE (&
At initial recognition, the Group determined the fair value of REBXERR NEEETRERERZ
the loans receivable equivalent to their principal amounts. The AFEHEREREE R —+F
analysis of the carrying amount of loans receivable as at 31 F_E—RF+_A=Zt+—HEKER
December 2017 and 2016 are as follows: ZHREESTWOT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
I 75 T
Current BN HA 597,960 33,530,283
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, no loan receivables were RZE—tFR_ZE—-—X"F+=A
past due. =t+t—H FEAERERKREFZE®H-
Management of the Group determined no impairment loss on AEBEBEEHATE SERAEEME
these loans receivable are required to be recognized, after B2 EBR R LEE R R ERKIE
taking into account the collaterals held by the Group and/or no Wik %  HEARRZERWERZ
past due on loans and receivables. EEE -
24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24, BAFEFAANERZEMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS
2017 2016
—F—tF —E-RF
HK$ HK$
I 7 TT
Listed equity — held for trading LTRE-—FIEER
Equity securities — Hong Kong AR FESH BB 23,512,550 63,967,620
Financial asset designated as at BEZRAFEFAEBRZ
fair value through profit and loss SEEE 10,763,280 -
34,275,830 63,967,620
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NoTes 1o THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—AIFE

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

24, RAFEFANERZEMEE

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (%)

Fair value

No. of share held Approximately Fair value loss on securities

as at 31 December percentage of as at 31 December held for trading

Stock code Company name 2017 shareholding 2017 for 2017

RZB-t% R-B-t% —T-tEE

+=A=t+-H +ZA=+-B2 BEEEESZ

RER AEER rRYE XEBRERL AF{E ATERE

HK$ HKS

AT AT

01335 Sheen Tai 75,238,000 3.06% 20,690,450 (33,480,910
%12 AR

06898 China Aluminum 2,454,000 0.26% 2,822,100 (1,276,080)
el

Listed shares-held for trading IiRE-HEEE 23,512,550 (34,756,990)

The financial asset designated at fair value through profit and
loss represents an amount of RMB9,000,000 invested in a
fund known as BfEE (transliterated as Cai Fu Bao) which
is managed by BB HESEERMHABRAA (transliterated as
China Southern Asset Management Co., Limited) during the
year. This investment fund provides the unguaranteed expected
floating returns of approximately 4% per annum and can be
refunded one day after instruction is given to the securities

company.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within “operating activities” as part of changes in
working capital in the statement of cash flows.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in “other income and loss, net”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The fair value of all equity securities held in trading is based on
their current bid prices in an active market.

The fair value of the financial asset designated as at fair value
through profit or loss of the end of reporting period was
determined based on purchase cost of fund which is very close
to the end of reporting period.

ERTEEEABRAR | —ZF—

FA-BEEAFEFABRNEHE
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

25. AFNRIE -ZEREEKRIE

RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
—ET—tF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
#IT BT
Other receivables H b e W SRR 20,434,990 25,398,536
Other deposits and prepayments H Atz & RIBN B 5,266,039 3,784,931
25,701,029 29,183,467
Represented by: B T3 &EERR:
Non-current assets EREBEE 803,915 940,607
Current assets MENEE 24,897,114 28,242,860
25,701,029 29,183,467

As at 31 December 2017, the other receivables mainly
represents the net amounts of the Input and Output Value-
Added Tax on the purchase and sales of the imported
motor vehicles in amount of RMB15,674,573 (equivalent to
HK$18,745,536) (2016: Nil). Such receivables in relation to the
value-added tax would be utilized while selling motor vehicles
in subsequent period.

The amount of other receivables included the amount of
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK22,197,400) as at 31
December 2016 which represents the refundable earnest
money paid for the proposed acquisition for the entire
registered capital of Mingin Quantum in January 2015. The
vendors had pledged their owned shares in Mingin Quantum
as a collateral on the refundable earnest money paid by the
Group. The proposed acquisition has been terminated in
May 2015 and the Group had filed an arbitration application
to South China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission for the repayment of the overdue receivables in
same year.
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26.

NoTes 10 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25 ARRIE - -ZERHEBEKRIE
RECEIVABLES (continued) (#)
Although the final judgement of the arbitration had been issued BEMENRBIAECRZZ—RF
on 3 June 2016, the receivables have not yet been repaid up to ANAZBBEL BEWREES HAKE
present. Although the management continue to negotiate with B-RATHEEENAET 3 AR
the vendors on the settlement of the said refundable earnest BRERZENETER BEEER
money paid, the management considers it is appropriate to BEER_T—+tFT_HA=T—8HL
make a full impairment of the said deposits during the year FEAR LIRS ELBEURE T
ended 31 December 2017. It is because the management has HREEECZERPBIEZBEMFI
considered its PRC legal adviser’s opinions on the execution EEEMHRRAREREHNBSH A=
judgment issued by Intermediate People’s Court of Suining T—+FNA-THHNRATEEER
City, Sichuan Province dated 25 April 2017 and the existing FRASERRYEFHRBETE LMK
completed and outstanding lawsuits involving Mingin Quantum TEEEFANERL - BEERS M
during the year. The management consider the Group may AEBERSRYEFHEEMRG - R
need to take up Mingin Quantum’s significant existing and AEENERERPETFHEREF R
potential liabilities if the Group get the possession of the BEAFE W MRTHESHL B
pledged shares of Mingin Quantum. In addition, as mentioned AT B E LAB B FRIR
in the execution judgment, the vendor owns no executable
assets to repay the amounts.
AMOUNTS DUE FROM FORMER DIRECTORS 26. FEMWRIEESENRIA
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
HK$ HK$
T T
Amounts due from former Directors JEWRITEEE - 331,419

The SFC has served a petition under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance against the Company, three former Directors (Mr.
Yin Yingneng Richard, Mr. Wang Wenming and Mr. Lee Yiu
Sun) of the Company in November 2012. At that time, SFC
was seeking disqualification orders against such Directors and
an order that the Company should itself or otherwise procure
Aceview International Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, to bring court proceedings against Fame Treasure
Limited and/or other parties at fault to recover the dividend
of RMB18,692,000 (equivalent to HK$23,268,362) with the
interest accruing at 1% above the prime rate published by
the HSBC from 31 December 2008 to the date hereof and
thereafter at the judgment rate until the date of payment to the
Company. The amounts have been settled during 2017.

e

E
=)

b=l

EenN T ——F+t—AREESFR
HEKRHRAARQR  ARBZ =ZAFME
BE(FEERE ITXHLERETR
FEE)RBEZEF Bl BEQLESXK
HZSESCHUEEBR SRR ARA]
KEHBITREARRZEZEWNB A
AR SEEERAGMBEER QA
M/ FEERRZEMALRE AR
FAURES N FZAFZEEAR
#18,692,0007T (48 & 723,268,362/
L) WIREEERITE ST NEFE+ =
B=Z+— B2 RAHBMAMZRER
FIERSIMEE B - Z&IZHIAF| KT B
BEERAARANMNZFBH FHEKBEER
TE—LFEHEE
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NoTes To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
(a) Cash and cash equivalent

27. SRITHGBRIRE

(a) BHERFEFEFE

2017 2016

—E—tHF ZE-RF

HK$ HK$

AT BT

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHEIRE 168,739,802 252,923,389
Short-term pledged bank AR EEERTT R & H) 52 Bf

deposits used for securing BEMIBITER

banking facilities 9,875,538 -

Short-term bank deposits EHRERITIF X 2,082,621 2,073,049

Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeHEEAR 180,697,961 254,996,438

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank balances
and cash of approximately HK$88,552,762 (2016:
HK$34,486,314) which are denominated in RMB. The
remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC
Government.

The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

Bank balances and cash include the following for the
purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows:

RZE—+F+ZA=+—H X%
BEUAARBINBCRITESBRER
& #188,552,762 L (& — )N F ¢
34,486,314/ 70) ° 5% £ FIAE B A
B 3% M52 A B IR AT B e 2 SN IE B I
R o

BRRTESRFREERFAEINE
RECERZIRTT

BERRBRERERME  RITHEHNE
EEREATEE:

2017 2016
—F—tF —E-RF
HK$ HK$
#IT BT

General accounts and cash —REFPERS
Segregated trust bank balances B {Z L8R F & &

170,932,310 240,921,035
9,765,651 14,075,403

Cash and cash equivalents e kReEBEEER

180,697,961 254,996,438
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wr & MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE_-Z

27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flow were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

27. SRITHGBRIRE (£)
MEEHMEEEBEZHER

(b)

FRAMHAREE
ELAEZED

—tFEtZA=t—RALEEE

BEEE AT

BRERENIER

TEH BELTHAELREEN

$%lﬂ?é—\ i/}lbg

%W/'\*ﬁﬁ[

@Eéﬁ/é@ﬁﬁ?iziﬁi/mij@ﬂi

KESREZAE-

Unsecured Total
borrowing - liabilities
Secured related party from
bank (see note financing
borrowing 37(iii))) a_ctjvities
EIEFEE- Bl 5 i &
HikE ﬁﬁﬁﬁki FREXE
MITEE  (RBEE37(i)) BEes
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT T T
As at 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 8,554,953 - 8,554,953
Changes from financing @MERESRELH
cash flow:
Proceeds from new g mE I EEME
unsecured borrowing - FEBE-HBHEAL
related party - 47,836,800 47,836,800
Repayments of bank IBITERZER
borrowings (1,998,940) - (1,998,940)
Interest paid 2ARFE (229,303) - (229,303)
Total changes from BMERCREFHEE
financing cash flows (2,228,243) 47,836,800 45,608,557
Other changes: H b & &) -
Interest expenses FMBERX 229,303 - 229,303
Total other changes Hith E B 4a%E 229,303 - 229,303
As at 31 December 2017 R =T —+4F
+=—A=1+— 6,556,013 47,836,800 54,392,813
Comparative figures are not required as this is the first HHEAKEE/AJE%E/%QE P

year of the application of the amendments to HKAS
7 and there are specific transitional provisions in the
amendments that allow the Group not to disclose the
comparative information.

ERTEEEARAR | —ZF—
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NoTes To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

28. TRADE PAYABLES

28. ENESRIE

2017 2016
—F—tF AN S
HK$ HK$
AT T

Amounts payable arising BHIE A TSP E £ R RUIE

from securities broking:

Margin clients REFEEEP 716,274 90,320
Cash clients BeEP 6,844,930 14,721,481
Other trade payables Hiv e & SR8 5,897 5,897
7,567,101 14,817,698

Amounts payable to margin clients are repayable on demand.
No aged analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors, the aged analysis does not give additional value
in view of the nature of the business of securities margin
financing.

The settlement terms of amounts payable arising from
securities broking are one or two trade days after the trade
execution date. Except for the amounts payable to margin
clients as mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30
days.

The following is an aged analysis of other trade payables based
on invoice date at the end of each reporting period:

ENRESEPFPRABREREE -E
REFRECBEXB ML EFR
RRE DT AL B RESMEE - 8RB
BERARER DA ©

EF R ERGIELRMNFAARET
RZABPER-FIMER S BRI
EARENRE S TP IR SRR AR
=tBRAREE-

H e B 5 BURN & S A RE
HEREAHZREDTET

2017 2016

—T—tx —T—RF

HK$ HK$

I BT

0-30 days 0£30H - -
31-90 days 31290H - -
91-180 days 912180H - -
181-365 days 181%£365H - -
Over 365 days 365H A £ 5,897 5,897
5,897 5,897
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o= E?I 5‘% W& MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE
29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. HihFEMRIERERIE
Included in other payables of the Group as at 31 December AEERZZ—tFR TR F+=
2017 and 2016 were the following amounts: A=+—RAZEMENKEBREATK
15 :
2017 2016
—T—tF —T—RF
HK$ HK$
& IT 78 TT
Other payables and accruals E e S FROB N FE AT A 2,951,611 2,168,841
Received in advance from B@AEE %Z%)E'iﬁﬂﬁlm
customers in respect of
trading of motor vehicles 4,449,900 -
7,401,511 2,168,841
30. BORROWINGS 30. f&®
2017 2016
—T—tx —T—RF
HK$ HK$
I 78 TT
Secured borrowing included in ARSI BENBEBER
current liabilities — bank borrowings —RITER 6,556,013 8,554,953
Unsecured borrowing included in ARSI BENEKEER
current liabilities — related party — B EEE AL (R MEES7(i))
(see note 37 {iii) 47,836,800 -
54,392,813 8,554,953
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE—Z

Notes:

(a)

—tFtZA=t—HLFE

30. BORROWINGS (continued) . BR(E
B 5

The maturity of borrowings is as follows (Note (b), (c)): (a) BEREEHAFBEET (M) () :
2017 2016
—E—tE TR
HK$ HK$
BT BT
On demand or within one year BEfek— 49,896,532 1,998,932
In the second year F_F 2,122,380 2,059,731
In the third to fifth year FZEFERF 2,373,901 4,496,290
54,392,813 8,554,953

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the bank borrowings of the Group were
secured by the charges over the Group’s land and buildings (Note 15)
and corporate guarantees executed by the Company (Note 37). At 31
December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s bank borrowings are denominated
in HK$, bearing floating interest rate of 3% (2016: 3%) per annum.

At 31 December 2017, the unsecured borrowing from related party are
denominated in RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to HK$47,836,800) bearing
interest rate of 8% (2016: Nil) per annum and repayable within one year.

The related party is controlled by the father-in-law of Mr. Wang Jiawei, the
Company’s director and is therefore a deemed connected person of the
Company as defined in the GEM Listing Rules.

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements.

The bank borrowings are shown under current liabilities as the loan
agreement contains a repayment on demand clause.
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31.

NoTes 10 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 31. BEFBEHAERE
The movement on the deferred tax liabilities is as follows: RIEFTISTHABE 2 E8HuT
Fair value
adjustment
on
Undistributed non-monetary
Accelerated profits of assets through
tax foreign business
depreciation associate  combination Total
Zia
B 3L
BEATZ FEREE
R H A E K9 Bt F ATERE &%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Balance as at 1 January 2016 RZE-R"F-A—BNER 3,653,164 4,168,371 31,623,516 39,445,051
Credited to profit or loss FAES (181,549) (1,651,025)  (31,046,614)  (32,879,188)
Currency translation difference BEIBnES - (184,261) (576,902) (761,163)
Balance as at 31 December 2016 RZE—-AFE+=ZA=+—-HK
ek 3,471,615 2,333,085 - 5,804,700
Balance as at 1 January 2017 NZE—tE-A-HNER 3,471,615 2,333,085 - 5,804,700
Credited to profit or loss AR (181,549) (2,422,910) - (2,604,459)
Currency translation difference EWihEE - 89,825 - 89,825
Balance as at 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+ZA=+—HH
Ee 3,290,066 - - 3,290,066

The deferred tax liabilities are attributable to accelerated tax
depreciation, and withholding tax on unremitted earnings of a
PRC associate as at 31 December 2017. As the management
considers to make full impairment on the interests in associate
in current year, the deferred tax liabilities attributable to
withholding tax on unremitted earnings of the PRC associate
made previously had been reversed during the year.

A deferred tax asset has not been recognized in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of estimated
unused tax losses available for offset against future profits due
to the uncertainty of future profit streams.

As at 31 December 2017, the unrecognized tax losses
of the Group amounted to HK$289,329,550 (2016:
HK$246,128,426). These tax losses have no expiry date except
that HK$54,721,208 will expire from 2018 to 2022 (2016:
HK$60,418,771 expire from 2017 to 2021).

RZEBE—+F+ZA=+—H REH
HREERAMRBEHIERTEBEZA
AIAREHBNZEMKR - AREEES
BRAFERREE QR ZBEFHE
BRE BERPEBRERARREL A
Mz BIBHAERETCHARERED
RERRED -

B 0 R BEHEE B & AUE R - ML | R
REMBRRETAUEHEBRMEZ
BRI ADARBERERELEREE
o

R-_ZE—+E+=-_A=+—H #£&
B v KR IAE 18 5289,329,550/%
T (ZF — /N5 :246,128,4268 7T ) °
Fr54,721,208 B TN =_ZE— \F =
TE_FHMEERR (ZE— T
60,418,771 B TN T —tFE2_F
——FHEER) N ZERIBEBEYE
fEim B 8o
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NoTes To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 32. BAREE
Number of Share
issued shares Ordinary shares premium Total
ERTRHHE LiER R E st
(in thousands) HK$ HK$ HK$
(Fi&) BT BT bonn
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, RZE-~"E—fA—H"
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 SV s e =

—Z—+tF-A-BRk

—E—tF+ZA=1+—H 6,498,958 64,989,582  1,614,798,866  1,679,788,448

The total authorized number of ordinary shares is
10,000,000,000 shares (2016: 10,000,000,000 shares) with a
par value of HK$0.01 per share (2016: HK$0.01 per share). All
issued shares are fully paid.

33. RESERVE
() Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the nominal amount of the
issued share capital and share premium of Sinofortune
Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited acquired pursuant to the
corporate reorganization undertaken in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on GEM on 11 January
2002.

(ii) Statutory reserve

PRC companies are required to appropriate 10% of
statutory net profits to statutory reserve, upon distribution
of their post-tax profits in accordance with the PRC
laws and regulations. A company may discontinue the
contribution when aggregate sum of the statutory surplus
reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserves shall only be used make up
losses of the companies, to expand the companies’
operation, or to increase the capital of the companies.

(iii) Translation reserve
Exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 2.5.

(iv) Other reserve
Other reserve comprises of the effect of the escrow
shares retrieval and to be cancelled, in accordance with
the arrangement set out in Note 20.
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NoTes 10 THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a)

The Old Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which persons working for the interest of the Group are
entitled to an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the
Company. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the share option scheme
and any other share option schemes is not permitted to
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The maximum number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted pursuant to the Old Share Option Scheme and
any other share options schemes of the Company to any
person (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-monthperiod up to the date of grant of options
shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders.

The Old Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 17 December 2001. The
purpose of the Old Share Option Scheme is to provide
the people and the parties working for the interest of the
Group with an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the
Company, thus linking their interest with the interest of
the Group and thereby providing them with an incentive
to work better for the interest of the Group. Under the
Old Share Option Scheme, the Board of Directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
outside third parties for settlement in respect of goods or
services provided to the Group.

34. RBRRHERTE

(a)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE—Z

—tFtZA=t—HLFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(a)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee provided that the period within which the option
must be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the shares for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

On 5 September 2007, share options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 32,400,000 shares of the Company
were granted to certain Directors and employees of the
Company. All those share options had not been exercised
and became expired and lapsed during the year.

On 13 April 2010, share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 84,000,000 shares of the Company were
granted to certain directors and employees of the
Company. The fair value of 84,000,000 share options
granted under the share option scheme on 13 April 2010
was determined by the Directors to be HK$23,382,573
with reference to a valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional valuers using a binomial
model. The inputs into the model included grant date
share price of HK$0.4, exercise price of HK$0.419 per
share, expected volatility of 103.41%, expected option life
of 10 years, no expected dividend and estimated risk-free
interest rate of 2.833%.

The Old Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company
on 17 December 2001 had expired on 16 December
2011. The Company has adopted the New Share Option
Scheme on 21 June 2012.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+-A=+—HIFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. MEMRMESTEI (&)
(a) The Old Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) EERERRMERTEI (&)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TRERHZE-T—+tF+=A
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme =T —HILEFEEREBEERERER
during the year ended 31 December 2017: SR ERE 228
Number of share options
BRiExE
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Reclassification Exercised Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  Exercisable period 2017 the year the year the year 2017
RoF-t% Rog-t&
-A-8 +-R=+-H
REARE HHEH ik fTEHE HATE REREHIE ERITHR ERKH HATTE
Lai Yuk Mui (executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 3,186,158 - - - 3,186,158
RERRL(HES) —3-%% 04198 T-ZFMAT=RE
mA+=H “ECTENATCA
Mr. Liu Runtong 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - - 31,861,575
(non-executive director)
UBALE (FuTES) —Z-%E 04198T %
mA+=H
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HKS$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - - 2,124,105
(independent non-executive
director)
FALHR (BUkHES) —T-TF 0.419% T
MmA+T=H
Sub-total for directors 37,171,838 - - - 37,171,838
BN
3 employees* 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 45,668,257 - - - 45,668,257
—tEE" “3-%F 041987 ?
mA+=H
1 employee’ 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007 - 04/09/2017 4,248210 - - (4,248,210 -
-%EE It S S 3 021581  —ETLENARAZ
NALR “2-tENARA
Sub-total for employees 49,916,467 - - (4,248,210) 45,668,257
EE /Gt
Total 87,088,305 - - (4,248,210) 82,840,095
&t
Weight average exercise price 0.409 - - - 0.419
METHTEE

gEepgEaRasn | —=—+t555% 191



NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34, MERxHERTE (&)
(a) The OId Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) EERBRRIESTEI (&)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TRERZHZE-T—<F+=A
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme =t+—BLEFEREEBRES
during the year ended 31 December 2016: SIFr % A 2 B
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
asat  Reclassification Exercised Lapsed asat
Exercise 1 January during during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  Exercisable period 2016 the year the year the year
RIE-RE
-f—-H
AR =K 1 TREE HATR  REREFAE ERTE ERER h%ﬂ@
Lai Yuk Mui (executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010 12/04/2020 - 3,186,158 - - 3,186,158
REW/RL (H17ES) -2 0.419% 7 2
MmA+=A
Mr. Liu Runtong 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - - 31,861,575
(non-executive director)
UBALE (FuTES) —2-%2f 041987 —T-TE@AT=RZE
MAt=A ZE-TEMATCA
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HKS$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - - 2,124,105
(independent non-executive
director)
FALHR (BUEniTEE) _—5-T% 04198 -Z-ZFMAT=AZE
MmAt=H “3-FEMAT=A
Sub-total for directors 33,985,680 3,186,158 - - 37,171,838
BN
3 employees* 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 52,040,573 (3,186,158) - (3,186,158) 45,668,257
—EREE —%-%% 04198 —Z-TENMAT=HEZ
mA+=H
1 employee’ 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007 - 04/09/2017 4,779,236 - - (631,026 4,248,210
-%EE It S 3 021581 ZETLENARAZ
NALR —2-tENARA
Sub-total for employess 56,819,800 (3,186,158) - (3,717,184) 49,916,467
EE /Gt
Total 90,805,489 - - (3,717,184) 87,088,305
&t
Weight average exercise price 0.408 - - - 0.409
METHTEE
* As one of the employees has resigned from his position on 30 May * REF—ZEBER=ZZT—XFH
2016, the options granted to him which are not exercised have ﬁ =T HEER - SRR T AREST
been lapsed accordingly. FRERED SRM -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(a)

(b)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had 82,840,095
(2016: 87,088,305) share options outstanding for the
share options granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under result in the issue of 82,840,095
(2016: 87,088,305) additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$828,401 and
share premium of HK$33,881,599 (2016: share capital of
HK$870,883 and share premium of HK$34,752,482).

The New Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a New Share Option scheme
under which person working for the interest of the Group
are entitled to an opportunity to obtain equity interest in
the Company. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes is not
permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company
in issue from time to time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The maximum number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted and to be granted pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share options schemes of
the Company to any person(including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant of options shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

34. RBRRHERTEI (&)

(a)

(b)
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued)

The New Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to
are solution passed on 21 June 2012. The purpose of the
New Share Option Scheme is to provide the people and
the parties working for the interest of the Group with an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interest with the interest of the Group and
there by providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interest of the Group. Under the New Share Option
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including Directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from
time to time, grant share options to outside third parties
for settlement in respect of goods or services provided to
the Group.

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee provided that the period within which the option
must be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the shares for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)) the
nominal value of a share of the Company.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34, MERxHERTE (&)
(b) The New Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) FREERRHESTEI (&)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TRERHZE-T—+tF+=A
options granted under the New Share Option Scheme =T —BHIEFEREBERERER
during the year ended 31 December 2017: SR ERE 228
Number of share options
BREYE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  Exercisable period 2017 the year the year 2017
R-B-tf§ R-F-t&
-A-H +ZA=+-H
REALE jidu] =L fiEE  fTEHE fo) AT 1 EREH ERER i RATHE
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 22 September 2014 HK$0.518  22/9/2014 - 21/9/2024 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Begland Rogers Jr i ZZ—MF 0518%T —F-MEAA-T-AZ
(Fu7EE) hEZt=H ZZNEARZT-B
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 16 October 2015 HK$0.238  16/10/2015 - 15/10/2025 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Beeland Rogers Jr i —E—HF 0238%T Z—E-RFTATRHEZE
(FaEE) TA+RE “E-RFTATEA
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 9 November 2016 HK$0.15  9/11/2016 - 8/11/2026 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Beeland Rogers Jr 52 —E—R%F 0.15%8T ZET-~ET-ANBE
(Fa7Es) +—ANA ZEZRE+-ANB
Total 60,000,000 = = 60,000,000
&t
\Weight average exercise price 0.302 - - 0.302
MEFHREE
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

34. RBRRHERTEI (&

(b) The New Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) FREEARMERTEI (&)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TRERZHZE-T—<F+=A
options granted under the New Share Option Scheme =t+— BRI FERENBRAE
during the year ended 31 December 2016: BRI B AR 2 B B -
Number of share options
BRELA
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Lapsed as at
1 January during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant Exercise price  Exercisable period 2016 the year the year 2016
RZE-R% RZZ-R%
B B -A-H B ) TZA=1-H
AR RitAH IRE 8 AR FREM EREN HALTE
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 22 September 2014 HK$0.518  22/9/2014 - 21/9/2024 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Begland Rogers Jr i ZZ—MF 0518%T —F-MEAA-T-AZ
(Fu7EE) hEZt=H ZZNEARZT-B
Mr. Chen Li* (executive Director) 13 November 2014 HK$0.500  13/11/2014 - 12/11/2024 15,000,000 - (15,000,000) -
Bh%E (B178%) —Z-|mF 05908T Z—E-EE+-AT=RAZE
T-At=8H “EmET-ATZH
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 16 October 2015 HK$0.238  16/10/2015 - 15/10/2025 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Beeland Rogers Jrs  —E—HF 0238%T ZT-RFTATAZE
(F#7EE) THATRR “Z_RF+HATER
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 9 November 2016 HK$0.15  9/11/2016 - 8/11/2026 - 20,000,000 - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Beeland Rogers Jr i ZE—RF 0158 ZE-~E+-ANBZE
(FH1TES) T-ANE “ECRET-ANE
Total 55,000,000 20,000,000 (15,000,000) 60,000,000
g
Weight average exercise price 0.436 - - 0.302

MEFHHEE

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had 60,000,000
(2016: 60,000,000) share options outstanding for the
share options granted under the New Share Option
Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would result in the issue of 60,000,000 (2016:
60,000,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$600,000 (2016:
HK$600,000) and share premium of HK$17,520,000
(2016: HK$17,520,000).
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RZE—+t&+=ZA=+—8"
AN/A F)A60,000,00018 (ZF—7X
F 1 60,000,000153 ) 1B & 37 12 A% 4
BB 2 BN RITE 4
BTITZEREEZATFE BE
2 %5 4D # 1760,000,0000% ( ==&
— 7 4F 1 60,000,000 ) 28 2 &) &
AT - DA K 2 4 BESMIR ZAN600,000
BT (=& — 74 1 600,000 7T)
K B9 3% 18 17,520,000 ¢ ( =&
— 784 117,520,000/ 7T ) °
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The New Share Option Scheme (continued) (b)
The share options granted to Mr. James Beeland Rogers

Jr. may be exercisable at any time during the exercisable

period. In the event that the service agreement is
terminated before the term ends, they shall be entitled

to the said share options on a pro rata basis, and any

excess share options granted to but not exercised by

them shall lapse.

The vesting condition of the share option granted to Mr. Chen Li is
to exercise the share option only after satisfaction of the condition
that the net profit after tax of Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd
(based on its audited accounts) for the profit targets specified in
the employment contract. As Mr. Chen Li resigned from his position
on 1 July 2016, the options granted to him would be lapsed
accordingly.

Fair value of share options and assumptions (c)
The fair value of share options granted under the scheme

at the date of grant was determined using the Binomial

option pricing model with the following inputs:

34. RBRRHERTEI (&)

MR R (2

#% ¥ James Beeland Rogers Jr.%t
A 2 BB AR RE O] RN AT B N AE ] B
T LATT(E o 14 AR 75 7 sk 1O HABR 45
RATER I BEEEREIERLPI=Z
ELERE mESCERER
BT AW BEERERSS

B o

* RPN FAEZ BRI RS R IHE
R ERIZTT TOATRE  ZGTR
RITREBRHER R AIRBIRA
M (ERNELEZRE)ZIERS
KFRE BN BR R AKE
ERZZ—RELA—HEHME HE
BTz BB AR b SR

BREZAFERRER

R R EIRBE RT3 2
BRE 2 R FETRA —HA B
EERAZ NI BAREBESE:

9 November

2016

ZE—RE

Date of grant % B +—ARH
Fair value at the date of grant REEEBHZAFE HK$0.0757% 7T
Exercise price per share BRITEE HK$0.157% 7T
Expected volatility T8 H K 18 83%
Expected dividend yield 78 BRI B i 2s R -
Expected option period (years) TEERBE AR RE HARR (4F) 10
Risk-free rate 4 2 fox K1) K 1.01%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
of the shares of the Company over the expected option
period. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value of the share options
granted. During the year, the fair value of equity-
settled share-based payment of HK$877,444 (2016:
HK$1,688,031) has been recognized in profit or loss.
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35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 35.

The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had future aggregated
minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating
leases in respect of rented premises as follows:

EERORE

FEEERRBEA
R-ZB—tF+-_A=+—H A&KH
RIBTAT RS EHORBERYE RN
ZARZEHEEFBRBELT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

No later than one year —F R 2,598,200 1,594,446
Later than one year and —FREAFNAN

no later than five years 6,081,780 5,989,228

8,679,980 7,583,674

Leases in respect of rented office premises are negotiated for
an average period of one to five years (2016: one to five years).
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36. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING 36. FIERERRXS
INTERESTS
On 10 February 2017, the Group acquired an additional RZE—+F—A+H XEBEREE
25% of the registered capital of Shenzhen Guoyin Brilliant % 4 75 LA A R #1,640,00170 (FBE R
Precious Metals Limited for RMB1,640,001 (equivalent to 1,843,639/ 70 ) W R Y B R E &
HK$1,843,639) from non-controlling interests. Immediately T BEBRLEBR AR ZEIN%FTME
prior to the purchase, the carrying amount of the 25% non- Ao ZZIWEA NAYIHBETES
controlling interest in Shenzhen Guoyin Brilliant Precious Metals BEEBRRA A Z225%IF 2 i% # &
Limited was RMB2,951,756 (equivalent to HK$3,318,276). BREME A ARKE2951,7567 (FHE R
The Group recognized a decrease in non-controlling interest 3,318,276/ 7T ) o AN & B M R FE 12 AR 4
of HK$3,318,276 and an increase in equity attributable to o 48,318,276 T R B AR A A
owners of the parent of HK$1,474,637. The effect on the equity JE(EHEZSIE AN1,474,63778 7T ° FF N R
attributable to the owner of Shenzhen Guoyin Brilliant Precious JIERREESBEERR AR EGE
Metals Limited during the year is summarized as follows: mZ BT
2017
—T—t#F
HKS$
7T
Carrying amount of B IR IR s 2 BREE
non-controlling interests acquired 3,318,276
Consideration paid to EAT IR S A (E
non-controlling interests (1,843,639)
Excess of consideration paid MR 2 FFE R s
recognized in the transactions with R FEEERBR
non-controlling interests reserve ENREZSE
within equity 1,474,637
There were no transactions with non-controlling interests in =T — N B R AT ] S IR AR A R 10
2016. R
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37.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

37. EXEREALRS

BRitsr & MR E A

BHBEEIRS

Ef

KAESRIN REBRFARRTLIATER

Group had the following significant related party transactions EHEBEALRS:
during the year:
2017 2016
—T—tx —T—RF
Note HK$ HK$
M 5 I P TT
Office rentals paid to a director SHFARRRBEEZ
of the Company BAERS ) - 3,000,059
Service income received from BEERERELFKE
Guangdong Brightzone AR A
Financial Company Limited (TERER])WE 2
(“Guangdong Brightzone”) AR 7% W A (ii) 839,363 775,864
Unsecured borrowings KEBHEEATZ
from related party EMER (iii) 47,836,800 -
2017 2016
—F—tF ZE—RF
HK$ HK$
I 7T
Key management compensation FEBEEABZH
— Salaries and other short-term - HehEMEHREEREF
employee benefits 2,775,000 3,757,000
— Share options — W s 877,444 1,688,031
- Post-employment benefits — BB ER 36,000 46,500
3,688,444 5,491,531
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(il

The office rentals paid to the Company’s director by a few subsidiaries of
the Group were based on the market rental.

Mr. Wang Jiawei is an executive Director of the Company and therefore a
connected person of the Company as defined in the GEM Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions between those subsidiaries and Mr. Wang
constitute connected transactions for the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules.

Wealth Alliance (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
an agreement with Guangdong Brightzone pursuant to which Guangdong
Brightzone has appointed Wealth Alliance for the website operation and
sales promotion services. The service income were based on terms
agreed between the parties involved. Guangdong Brightzone is owned
as to 51.43% by Shenzhen Guangxin and the remaining interests by
independent third parties.

Shenzhen Guangxin Investment Company Limited is controlled by Ms.
Chen Dongjin. Ms. Chen Dongjin is the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming(who
is a former Director of the Company) and is therefore an associate of a
connected person of the Company as defined in the GEM Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions between Wealth Alliance and Guangdong
Brightzone under the Sales Agency Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions on the part of the Company under the GEM
Listing Rules.

During the year, one of the Group’s subsidiaries entered into a loan
agreement with POl #25 & B A IAB R 2 F (transliterated as Sichuan
Desheng Group Vanadium & Titanium Co., Ltd.) (“Sichuan Desheng”) for
borrowing an unsecured loans in amount of RMB40,000,000, bearing
interest of 8% per annum and repayable within one year.

Sichuan Desheng is controlled by the father-in-law of Mr. Wong Jiawei,
the Company’s Director and is therefore a deemed connected person
of the Company as defined in the GEM Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
borrowing transaction constitutes connected transaction on the party of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has given a corporate guarantee to the extent of
HK$30,230,000 (2016: HK$30,230,000) to a bank in respect of general
banking facility granted to two (2016: two) of its subsidiaries. As at 31
December 2017, an amount of HK$6,556,013 (2016: HK$8,554,953)
of such facility was being utilized by the subsidiaries. In the opinion of
the Directors, no material liabilities will arise from the above corporate
guarantee which arose in the ordinary course of business and fair value of
the corporate guarantee granted by the Company is immaterial.

W :

(i)

(ii)

(il

37. EXARAEALRS (&

FEBMZETHBRANTFARAREREZH
AEREHIRETSESMETE -

IRERERAARNTES  HULEGEM
ETRRER 2 ARRBEAL - MIRE
GEMLETRA ZEMBRRRELRE ZM
MR FERARRZBERS -

BER(ARRZ2ENBAR) BERER
RN B EREREAEBRREES
UhIE K E RS S R BIRTS - RIS UK
ADRBEFEENIERET BRIERS
B RIERE MBS = #HA51.43% %
Tl ehtEes -

RITEEREBRAANARLE L LR
Bl REELZ T AARRFEESTEXHL
EZRE Bt RARRBREALZE
BACEZRGEMLETRE]) - Bt - B I%
GEMEMHA EHEEFERRERRBEHEENR
BT 2 X BWRARF 255 ERER
5o

RAEE - REE ) — R E AR Em)| =
BEBMNKARIR ([WIEEDILE
I - B IK IR S A R #40,000,0007T °
ZERIREESEE R —FRERK-

mINRBaARREEERELEE ZERNE
- EMARBGEM E MR BIBR B AREZ
BREA L Bt RIBGEMLE MR A 5K
RHBRARDZHERERS -

AARERBEFERMR(ZE—AF W
XIMBRR 2 —BBITEERBITIED
30,230,000/ 7T ( = Z — /< 4F : 30,230,000
BIL)ZARER- R_TE—tF+=A
=t+—H ZEMBRARBEIHELEA
6,556,013% 7T (= Z — /X 4 : 8,554,953/
) EERA RBBEBPITLZ LA
RIERTEELEEAARE BEAARAMEL
NRAERZATFELTEKR-
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

38. KATIMBRRBEER

COMPANY
2017 2016
—T—tE ZE—RF
Note HK$ HK$
Mt T BT
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment e Y 155,025 75,994
Investments in subsidiaries RHTBE AR ZIRE 18 107,955,000 -
Interests in associates RN el - ey - 14,886,819
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE U B B A B FIE 54,742,373 497,250,928
162,852,398 512,213,741
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments, deposits and ERRIE EZe Rk
other receivables H {th e U FR08 213,838 262,137
Amounts due from former Director [ U Al (£ 2 = 3118 - 331,419
Bank balances and cash WITHBRNIE S 40,248,949 135,996,261
40,462,787 136,589,817
Total assets BEEE 203,315,185 648,803,558
Current liabilities REER
Other payables and accruals E b FE AT B R E AT UA 903,500 873,512
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATBT B A R FRIA 13,606,591 13,606,591
14,510,091 14,480,103
Net current assets REBEEFHE 25,952,696 122,109,714
Net assets EE%FE 188,805,094 634,323,455
Capital and reserves BAEREE
Share capital fi% A< 64,989,582 64,989,582
Share premium B8 19 5 (B 1,614,798,866 1,614,798,866
Other reserve H (16,000,000) -
Share-based compensation reserve A% 7 i € # & 30,554,498 30,383,874
Accumulated losses 2558 (1,505,537,852) (1,075,848,867)
Total equity EEEE 188,805,094 634,323,455
Wang Jiawei Lai Yuk Mui
IEE RE
Director Director
EZE E
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39. RESERVE OF THE COMPANY 39. KATf#EHE
Share-based
Share Share Other compensation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses  Total equity
[ et} i (B Hibfah  BROEEGRE RithE ELnGE
HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT B B
Balance as at 1 January 2016 RZB-RE-A-A2&H 64,089,582 1,614,798,866 - 34149275 (1,088011,713) 675,926,010
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (38,760,586)  (38,760,586)
Reversal of share-based compensation ERE R SRR R
reserve upon the forfeiture of HERE
share option - - - (4,530,000) - (4,530,000
Equity-settled share option IAREEHE 2 BRE R
arrangements - - - 1,688,031 - 1,688,031
Transfer of share-based BRERIKKERSER
compensation reserve upon R HEEE
the forfeiture or expiry
of share options - - - (923,432) 923,432 -
Balance as at 31 December 2016 RZB-—RF
+-A=+-Rz&H 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 - 30,383,874 (1,075,848,867) 634,323,455
Balance as at 1 January 2017 RZZ—+F-A-Bz%&H 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 - 30,383,874 (1,075,848,867) 634,323,455
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (430,395,805) (430,395,805)
Equity-settled share option IREEE 2 BRER B
arrangements - - - 877,444 - 877,444
Shares retrieval from Wiml s b 2 B fh (FE20)
escrow arrangement (Note 20) - - (16,000,000) - - (16,000,000)
Transfer of share-based BB RIS ER
compensation reserve upon R EEE
the lapse of share options - - - (706,820) 706,820 -
Balance as at 31 December 2017 RZB—+F
+ZA=t+—-Az&H 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 (16,000,000) 30,554,498 (1,505,537,852) 188,805,094
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Bt %5 W =

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the WIFADTIRKERGARFRRZAEER
Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the published BEREAMKFEEXENREEREGERE
audited consolidated financial statements is set out below: ;HHWT

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-t% —T—REF —T-1F —E-E —T-ZF
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
RESULTS £
Revenue Uk 29,186,397 8,896,415 45714003 40,616,592 14,809,860
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETER A (B518) /FIH (138,848,753)  (277,782,737)  (79,676,433) 120,366,125  (42,467,528)
Income tax income/(expense) SBA/ (B%) 2,545,494 32,879,188 18,628,673 (3,147,706) (844,111)
Profit from discontinued operation ERIEEEEHHE - - - - 9,333,152
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)/FIH (136,303,259)  (244,903,549)  (61,047,760) 117,218,419  (33,978,487)
Attributable to: JE1f -
Owners of the Company AREHERA (136,497,133)  (244,075,407)  (62,850,046) 114,540,442  (34,033,645)
Non-controlling interests FERER 193,874 (828,142) 1,802,286 2,677,977 55,158
(136,303,259) (244,903,549)  (61,047,760) 117,218,419  (33,978,487)
Year ended 31 December
HE+t-A=t-HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—B—t# —E-RE —E-IF —T—4F “E-ZF
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT B
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE BRERFERER
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Total assets BELE 409,576,495 500,383,613 802,266,703 900,049,433 154,122,355
Total liabilities BfERE (72,7111,195)  (31,346,192)  (71,550,339)  (98,789,783)  (35,364,540)
Non-controlling interests kRS (14,903,119) (6,215,475) (7,006,907 (5,267,851) (2,607,017

321,962,181 462,821,946 723,709,457 795,991,799 116,150,798
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